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Financial Highlights

MBEHEE HZE12A318LLEE
Financial Highlights For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214 i)
2022 2021 Change
WA ANREBSTT) Revenue (RMB million) 208.0 167.0 24.5%
EMNAREBET) Gross profit (RMB million) 47.5 35.6 33.3%
Kk BT 15 %4 A A B Profit before income tax
(ANR¥EEHETT) (RMB million) 23.4 4.2 459.9%
FRFE(ARESGEIT) Profit for the year (RMB million) 22.6 4.7 379.8%
ARSI R ESFE Profit attributable to equity
(ARBBET) shareholders of the Company
(RMB million) 22.6 4.7 379.8%
BRERKEERA Basic and diluted earnings per share
(ARESD) (RMB cents) 17.66 3.68 379.8%
AT ARA ®12A31H
Financial position As at 31 December
20224 20214 L))
2022 2021 Change
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 945,732 732,955 29.0%
MBEEFE Net current assets 504,197 487,720 3.4%
BEERLIBAE Total assets less current liabilities 654,615 632,011 3.6%
FCN=R Total liabilities 291,117 100,944 188.4%
B Total equity 654,615 632,011 3.6%
M B8R 128318
Financial statistics As at 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
B K Current ratio! 2.7 5.8
B A xR Gearing ratio? 0.3% —
FEREA&(RA)? Inventory turnover days (days)® 344.7 238.1
BEoREKIERAERAZ(H) Trade receivables turnover days (days)* 456.9 568.6
BZRENFIBAEAZ(H)S Trade payables turnover days (days)® 152.2 47.0
1. ML RSN RBEERURSDEE 1. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
2. BELERENEELERAERERS  BRENU 2. Gearing ratio = total borrowings/total equity x 100%
100%
3. ;%E?ﬁ BHESREELEHRBRAFARKA - B 3. Inventory turnover days = inventory balance/revenue for the year x 365 days
ELA365H
4. B o RWFIAREHSEENE SRR EE S 4. Trade receivables turnover days = trade receivables balance excluding bank
(Ei:@%ﬁiﬁgk)ﬁi?%}%) BRIAF AU A - FFFELAS6ES acceptance notes/revenue for the year x 365 days
5. B RENRBAEBHEAENE 5 EMN KBS 5. Trade payables turnover days = trade payables balance/revenue for the year x
FREASF R - B3ELASB5 H 365 days

4 sEEBHENERHGERAR
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)’) of M NERERMHBRAA (Wuxi Sunlit
Science and Technology Company Limited*) (the “Company”), |
hereby present the audited annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “Sunlit”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

In 2022, the domestic economy faced increasing downward
pressure due to multiple novel coronavirus disease (the
“COVID-19”) outbreaks across the nation. In view of the
complicated and difficult domestic and external environment, the
Group closely monitored market information, seized market
opportunities, rose to the challenges, carried out effective
pandemic prevention and control, maintained orderly production
and operation, and sustained stable growth in its operational
performance amid difficulties with concerted efforts.

During the Year, revenue of the Group increased by 24.5% as
compared to that of the corresponding period last year to
RMB208 million (2021: RMB167 million). Net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB22.60 million
(2021: RMB4.71 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB17.89 million. Earnings per share was RMB17.66 cents
(2021: RMB3.68 cents).

The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMBO0.08 per share
(before tax).

During the Year, B NERERMHDBE AR (Wuxi Sunlit
Science and Technology Company Limited*), the parent
company of the Group, was granted a new hi-tech enterprise
certificate for a term of 3 years by the Jiangsu Provincial
Department of Science and Technology, the Department of
Finance of Jiangsu Province and Jiangsu Provincial Tax Service
of the State Taxation Administration. Therefore, it can continue
to enjoy the 15% preferential tax rate.

During the reporting period, the Group was awarded the
honorary title of “Professional, Refined, Special and Innovative
Small and Medium Enterprise in Jiangsu Province for 2022” after
going through audit, review and professional assessment. This
accolade clearly demonstrated the official recognition of the
Group’s innovation skill, professionalism, unique character and
delicacy management. It bolstered the Group’s resolve to boost
its innovation ability and core competitive strength.

—E-—EERE O
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2023, both the international and domestic
economies will continue to face tremendous challenges.
Nevertheless, the fundamentals of the domestic economy will
gradually recover attributable to the promulgation and subsequent
gradual implementation of numerous macroeconomic regulation
and control measures in the country. According to the analysis of
the China Association of Automobile Manufacturers, China will
continue to pursue stable growth, improve overall economic
conditions, revitalise the market and stimulate consumption. As
such, the automobile market is expected to witness stable growth
momentum in 2023.

As tyre is a key component of automobiles, the demand for
tyres is closely linked to the production volume of automobiles.
Furthermore, unlike traditional diagonal tyres which use nylon
cord as casing layer, new radial tyres use steel cord as the
casing. Attributable to their premium performance, radial tyres
are gradually replacing diagonal tyres and enjoy positive growth
momentum in the automotive accessories and tyre change
markets. Being an upstream supplier of steel cord
manufacturing equipment in the tyre industry chain, the Group
will accurately gauge the development trends in the industry and
market outlook, and then upgrade its products as and when
necessary based on its existing product portfolio and production
capacity. It will also push through the research and development
of new projects in hand in order to explore new profit streams
and achieve stable development and growth momentum for the
Group’s operation. The Board remains positive and optimistic
about the long-term prospects of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, steadfast
business partners, suppliers and customers for their support,
and to all our dedicated employees for their contributions to the
Group’s development.

Zhang Degang
Chairman of the Board
Jiangsu, China

24 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the downturn in the global macro-economy and the
ever-changing pandemic caused interruptions in the domestic
supply chain, disruptions to transportation and a rise in
commodity prices. Through actively responding to external
difficulties and challenges while firmly grasping market
opportunities, the Company endeavoured to arrange the
schedules of its major projects efficiently. For example, upon
winning the tender contract with Zenith Steel Group Company
Limited (“Zenith Steel Group”), the Company rapidly adjusted
its production plans, re-organised its management and rallied the
entire work team in order to boost production and deliver the
equipment for the new project, which had a tight schedule and
a sheer scale. In spite of the wavering pandemic control
measures, all departments and projects remained in operation,
and all equipment were completed and installed, in an orderly
manner under sophisticated delicacy management.

In 2022, the production and sales volume of automobile
witnessed steady growth as the macro-economy in China
remained generally stable with remarkable resilience as
demonstrated by improving key economic indicators. According
to the data from the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers (“CAAM”), the production and sales volume of
automobile in China for 2022 amounted to 27.021 million
vehicles and 26.864 million vehicles, respectively, representing
increases of 3.4% and 2.1%, respectively, as compared with the
corresponding period last year.

As a result, the overall performance of the Group for the period
improved as compared with the corresponding period of 2021.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue amounted to
RMB208 million, representing an increase of 24.5% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2021. Net profit of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB22.604 million.
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B F5 R FINANCIAL REVIEW
PN Revenue
HBE12A31BILEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
EHEE ARETR % ELEE AREBTR %
Unit(s) sold RMB’000 %  Unit(s) sold RMB’000 %
BRI Heat treatment phosphating lines 2 22,793 11.0 — = 0.0
EIEEMMAALEELS  Brass electroplating wire production lines 3 21,206 10.2 4 35,398 21.2
HthEER Other production lines 33 34,696 16.7 9 11,655 7.0
ik Standalone machines 598 99,306 47.7 915 100,716 60.3
HASERE Other mould repairing equipment,

T 2B 44 K B4 components parts and accessories TERAN/A 24,433 11.7 NiE AN/A 12,264 7.3
WA Rental income #ERAN/A 5,614 2.7 i FAN/A 5,806 3.5
e ON Trading income TERAN/A - 0.0 N iE A N/A 1,206 0.7

208,048  100.0 167,045  100.0
FR - HMHOWABH021FHAREK During the Year, our revenue increased by approximately

167,000,0007T # 11 49 A R % 41,000,000
7T (3k #924.5%) & 49 A K % 208,000,000
T RN AEBERE £2022F12HA31H
EFERARMEBERFITI=MNEREAR
¥ 590,000,000 TTHIE KA 4 ©

BEFEREEAR - AFERNHEMIGHERE
(b 43 (20214F - &) -

MEEBRHEERAHR021IFHARE
35,400,0007C & 2 #140.1% ZE ) A R #&
21,200,0007C c WAB D EZEHREE T
BRFTEL

B EAR - B A E RS WA 2021
F 4 AR #11,700,0007T 32 10 49 A R #E
23,000,0007T & 49 A R #34,700,0007T °

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

RMB41.0 million or approximately 24.5% to approximately
RMB208.0 million when compared with the revenue of
approximately RMB167.0 million in 2021, since the Group signed
three significant contracts with amount totalling RMB590 million
with Zenith Steel Group during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Heat treatment phosphating lines. Two heat treatment
phosphating lines were sold during this year (2021: Nil).

Brass electroplating wire production lines. During the vyear,
revenue from the sales of brass electroplating wire production
lines decreased by approximately 40.1% to approximately
RMB21.2 million when compared with the revenue of
approximately RMB35.4 million in 2021. The decrease was
mainly due to a decrease in sales volume.

Other production lines. Revenue from the sales of other
production lines increased by approximately 23.0 million to
approximately RMB34.7 million when compared with the revenue
of approximately RMB11.7 million in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Standalone machines. Revenue from the sales of standalone
machines decreased by approximately 1.4% to approximately
RMB99.3 million during the Year, when compared with the
revenue of approximately RMB100.7 million in 2021. The
decrease was due to a decrease of sales volume of standalone
machines.

Other mould repairing equipment, components parts and
accessories. Revenue from sales of other mould repairing
equipment, components parts and accessories increased by
approximately 99.2% to approximately RMB24.4 million during
the Year, when compared with the revenue of approximately
RMB12.3 million in 2021. The increase was primarily due to an
increase in the number of renovation projects with higher profit
margins.

Rental income. Revenue from rental income arose from the
Group’s investment properties, which were rented to third
parties in 2022 and 2021. As the rental space decreased in
2022, the rental income decreased by approximately 3.3%
comparing to that of 2021.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately 33.3% from
approximately RMB35.6 million for 2021 to approximately
RMB47.5 million for 2022.

Our overall gross profit margin increased from approximately
21.83% for 2021 to approximately 22.8% for 2022, mainly due to
an increase of unit price of standalone machines.

Other income

Our other income increased by approximately 30.9% from
approximately RMB0.9 million for 2021 to approximately RMB1.2
million for 2022, primarily due to government subsidies which
mainly represented subsidies for the intelligent manufacturing
projects and contribution of stabling staff employment.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses remained relatively stable at RMB2.5 million
and RMB2.6 million, respectively, in 2022 and 2021.

—E__FE®RE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

9




T E 5t o E ST

Management Discussion and Analysis

TR F%
BMOITHRAXH20021FHARE
27,700,000 C & f1 E2022F A R
29,700,0007T  F 22 i i 28 7 2 38 0
FTEN -

EHEERCHEERBEEEFE

REER022FEACHEEREGNEE
BB B3 18 )F B 4 A K #4,300,0007T * 1M
21 FRAIEASREERANEERER
BFREH ARS,400,0007T  EEHR
2022F12A31B 2 ENEE - BIEN
R EAE BB BREERIGINATE -

Ryt~ (B515) — /F8E

20224 - AEBEBHEAMKEIFELOA
R #8,200,0007T * 20214 Bl $ 15 H b
518 F 58 4 A R ¥ 1,300,0007T °

Hi s FREEEEIERERIEAT
EFf ABENEREENDFEKS -
2022 F H At Yo ad F R AE 0 = EIRAIME Uk
IR AN o

HEHRA

20225 - REEHFHBWANIARE
2,900,0007T ' 12021 4F Al £% 15 B 75 W A
#9 N\ R #2,600,0007T °

FATSUR AIE I E B R TR 7 50F B IR A L
on e

BB % (%)

R2022%F - AEBHESHAERAIHNAR
#£800,0007T * 20214 B $k 15 Fr 15 Fi 1K
%4 AR #500,0007T °

AR BUE RS SRR A] B2 B FE AR B A T 4K 3
ARANEREZRRK - THEIARTEMEHE
E o

10 sz rEERHERAR
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased from approximately
RMB27.7 million in 2021 to approximately RMB29.7 million in
2022, primarily due to the increase in research and development
expenses.

Net impairment losses on financial assets and contract
assets

The Group incurred net impairment losses on financial assets
and contract assets of approximately RMB4.3 million in 2022,
compared with the net impairment losses on financial assets and
contract assets of approximately RMB3.4 million in 2021,
primarily due to the increase in the balance of gross amount of
contract assets, accounts receivable and commercial acceptance
notes as at 31 December 2022.

Other gains/(losses) — net

The Group recorded net other gains of approximately RMB8.2
million in 2022, compared with the net other losses of
approximately RMB1.3 million in 2021.

Net other gain mainly included foreign exchange gains and fair
value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The increase in net other gain in 2022 was mainly due to the
increase in foreign exchange gains.

Finance income

The Group recorded finance income of approximately RMB2.9
million in 2022, compared with finance income of approximately
RMB2.6 million in 2021.

The increase in finance income was mainly due to the increase
of interest income from deposits.

Income tax expense/(credit)

The Group recorded income tax expense of approximately
RMBO0.8 million for 2022, compared with the income tax credit
of approximately RMB0.5 million for 2021.

The Group recognised the deferred income tax assets only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contract assets and trade receivables

Our gross contract assets and trade receivables increased by
approximately 3.1% from approximately RMB308.2 million as at
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB317.7 million as at 31
December 2022 primarily due to the increased revenue in 2022.

Meanwhile, the allowance for contract assets and trade
receivables increased from approximately RMB51.4 million at the
end of 2021 to approximately RMB55.6 million at the end of
2022.

Inventories

Our inventories increased by approximately 80.3% from
approximately RMB109.0 million at the end of 2021 to
approximately RMB196.5 million at the end of 2022.

It is mainly because of the increase in the unfinished sales
contracts as at 31 December 2022 as compared with those as
at 31 December 2021.

Trade and notes payables

Our trade and notes payables increased by approximately
229.2% from approximately RMB47.9 million as at 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB157.6 million as at 31
December 2022.

It is primarily due to an increase in purchase of raw materials
and equipments in 2022 as compared with 2021.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash position and fund available

As at 31 December 2022, the total cash and bank balances of
the Group were approximately RMB281,900,000 (31 December
2021: approximately RMB170,200,000), comprising cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB113,300,000 (31
December 2021: approximately RMB33,800,000), restricted cash
of approximately RMB108,600,000 (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB59,900,000) and time deposits of
approximately RMB60,000,000 (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB76,500,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the current ratio of the Group was
7 (31 December 2021: 5.8).

The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as total borrowings
divided by total equity) was 0.3% (31 December 2021: zero).

The Group was still in a strong net cash position as at 31
December 2022 and 2021. The Group has sufficient and readily
available finance resources for general working capital
requirement and foreseeable capital expenditure.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had borrowings of
RMB2,000,000, which were related to transferred receivables,
the bank acceptance notes were discounted but were not
derecognised as the Group retained late payment and credit risk
of the issuers (31 December 2021: Nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditures amounted to
approximately RMB15.2 million (2021: approximately RMB1.8
million) which was related to the purchase of machineries and
equipments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the Year. The capital of the Group only comprises
ordinary shares.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in mainland China with most of the Group’s
transactions denominated and settled in RMB, except that
certain trade receivables and bank deposits are denominated in
US dollar (“USD”) which are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk.

If the USD had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the RMB
while all other variables had been held constant, the Group’s
post tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
have been approximately RMB3,109,000 better/worse (2021:
RMB4,558,000) for various financial assets denominated in USD.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Company’s H shares have been listed (the “Listing”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 11 November 2014 (the “Listing Date”). The net proceeds
from the Listing after the deduction of underwriting commissions,
fees and listing-related expenses amounted to approximately
HK$209.5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB165.3 million)
(the “Net Proceeds”).

—E__FE®RE
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

13




14

T E 5t o E ST

Management Discussion and Analysis

BTREAAFAERAEZEESFEN
ERAME EFSEERTZECKESR
EERVNEAEZESEAAINBR
T RERAFIERBESSESFHERE
BEMER UWRSEAKDS  BALAR
AERBESSEESFENEAMEMA
R EME-—TRSARTEBRA 5
ARm R EBER (TRRR]) BERME LN

FHNEZHIE  F2HARFBHA2016
FIA29BHAE ([ZAE]) -

EREBVERBEENEA  RAAEHE
FRH B H A2014FE10 30 B B K =12
((BRER) RZAE  #EFHALHE
SESFHERMNNPEITIHE EBOH
BUE R ([ RSP HERHE ) KA 853 3%
BERK S &I 3T o0 ([ SRSl 1) A K2
HapA#® o

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

With a view to improving efficiency in the use of the Company’s
temporary idle Net Proceeds, on the condition that the
construction of the projects committed and planned usage of the
proceeds for such construction will not be affected, the Board
has proposed to utilise part of the temporary idle Net Proceeds
to purchase wealth management products in order to increase
the capital revenue, improve the efficiency and effectiveness in
the use of the Company’s temporary idle Net Proceeds, which in
turn shall further enhance the overall revenue of the Company
and pursue better investment return to the Company and the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole.
For more details regarding the change of use of Net Proceeds
from the Listing, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 29 March 2016 (the “Announcement”).

Together with the income to be generated from the wealth
management products, the Company will continue to apply the
Net Proceeds from the Listing for the construction of the new
manufacturing facility located in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province of the
PRC (the “New Wuxi Facility”) and the new research &
development centre to be established in the New Wuxi Facility
(the “New Research & Development Centre”) and for other
purposes in accordance with the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”) and in the
Announcement.
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The following table sets forth the status of use of proceeds from

the Listing:
HE020EF HE20206E BE02E  XHALE
LHBRELFE 12A318  12R31BLEE 12A318  BEALEE
Al =] EBR  ABREH"™  BYUNER
Planned Utilised Unutilised balance  Expected timeline
use of net during the year upto  for unused net
proceeds from Utilised up to ended 31 December  proceeds
the Listing™" 31 December 2022 31 December 2022 2022"=2  from the Listing
(BBET) (BB#%TR) (BB%R) (B8%R)
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HKS million)
(#149) (#r49) (#49) (#189)
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
RERESHTZHR Funding the construction of the New Wuxi Facilty 163.00 129.59 186 4613 2045127318
HHERLREES and the New Research & Development K2l
Centre by 31 December
2024
REATEEHEES Developing certain targeted research and 2550 26,63 Hize)Noe 8 - - -
development projects
fF-REEEE REM General working capital and other general 21,00 21,00 - - -
—ReERR corporate purposes
&5t Total: 209.50 177.22 18.6 4613
B 5 - Notes:
(1) EPEEEELFHECL2R() LTEREEESF (1) The net proceeds allocated have been adjusted and recalculated with reference

#49209,500,000 T (KIKE2HAS - BAR
EHERREX)  RBREERABRESEEZEAE
ReENEEECYAA P L AERENE -

@ R2022%F12A31B  ABAEEELHA
46,130,0007% 7T ° #946,130,00078 7T H) & &) Ff &=
SEeF ADASEES (BEEEELFED
33,410,000 B TR ESEE S FHEMNED
12,720,000 70) EF AP B AHEFHEEELT -

3) SR8 E$$%255000008 T REEE R EREN
F51,130,000/8 L E AN EREE T B EHHIAR -

HREBERRBEEAZASAENIEAM
BF BPRLMERESFREZEH
R R ER L —FEAIEE - AR
COVID-19ORBEZERE - €BmMRELEF
FR BEE-—TEEIREEEDF
oA ARAHRBERERRZQ
TRBESA LMEEE S FENREA

85 -

to (i) the actual net proceeds from the Listing of approximately HK$209.50
million after the deduction of underwriting commissions, fees and listing-related
expenses; and (i) the percentage of the use of proceeds allocated to each of
the purposes as disclosed in the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2022, the unutilised proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$46.13 million. Among the unutilised proceeds of approximately HK$46.13
million, the unutilised proceeds, including the net proceeds of approximately
HK$33.41 million and interest from net proceeds of approximately HK$12.72
million, were deposited in licensed banks in the PRC.

The net proceeds of HK$25.50 million and interest of net proceeds of HK$1.13
million have been utilised for developing certain target research and
development projects.

There has been a delay in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds

from

the Listing to the construction of the New Wuxi Facility and

the New Research and Development Centre as there was a
change in business development strategies with the reasons set
out in the Announcement. There has been further delay in the
use of the Net Proceeds since the outbreak of COVID-19 which
affected the economy, business environment and customers’
demand. However, the Company will utilise the unutilised portion
of the Net Proceeds from the Listing according to the disclosure
in the Prospectus and the Announcement.
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PROSPECTS

In 20283, China will continue to strive for stable development by
boosting domestic demand amidst slow economic recovery
across the world. As the nation takes active measures to
improve the economy, the new energy vehicle market will enjoy
sustainable growth and stable development momentum. The
Group will stay abreast of market developments, seize market
opportunities, develop new products and new customers,
improve internal production procedures, optimise production
techniques, manage production cycles, enhance production
efficiency, exploit internal production capacity, increase
equipment utilisation efficiency, control costs and build up the
competitive strength of its products. It believes that despite the
severe operating environment and market competition, the
management of the Company will be able to maintain the
Group’s leadership with delicacy corporate management and
rational coordination.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 192
full-time employees (31 December 2021: 140), including
administration, finance, internal audit, research and development,
technical application, quality control, manufacturing,
procurement, sales and marketing staff. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group’s total employee remuneration was
approximately RMB24.3 million (2021: approximately RMB20.2
million).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed regularly.
Subject to the Group’s profitability and the staff performance,
the Group may also provide a discretionary bonus to employees
as an incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary
goal of the remuneration policy with regards to the remuneration
packages of the Group’s executive Directors is to enable the
Group to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against corporate
objectives achieved.

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
remuneration policy and structure of all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group places great emphasis on recruiting and training
quality personnel by providing orientation programmes to the
new employees and on-going internal training to the existing
employees to enhance their industry, technical and product
knowledge, their work ethics as well as their knowledge of
industry quality standards and work safety standards.
Furthermore, the Group encourages its employees to take
advanced courses and to obtain professional certifications.

The Group is confident that its employees will continue to
provide a solid foundation for the success of the Group and will
maintain a high standard of service to our customers.

The Group has not experienced any disruption of its normal
business operations due to labour disputes or significant
turnover of staff. The Directors consider that the Group has
maintained a very good relationship with its staff.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
The Group had no significant investments held during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, the Group had no acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

In 2018, the Group purchased 166 residential units of Tong Xing
Garden, No. 269 Guangxing Road, Kenli District, Dongying City,
Shandong Province, the PRC (the “Properties”), which carry a
total gross floor area of 18,920.9 square metres for the
residential units and 3,331.2 square metres for the ancillary
facilities. The Group has an intention to sell the Properties and,
accordingly, such rights are recognised as properties held for
sale upon the completion of the transfer of the title of the
Properties from the vendor to the Company on 29 May 2018.
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During the Year, the Group sold 10 units of residential units at
the total consideration of approximately RMB4.0 million, the
carrying amount of the unsold units as at 31 December 2022 is
approximately RMB43.6 million, representing 4.6% of the total
assets of the Group.

TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION OR
DISPOSAL OF PROPERTIES

As announced at 31 January 2023 (after trading hours of the
Stock Exchange), Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Company
Limited* (the “Vendor”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Agreement with a Chinese
government authority (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the
Vendor has agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to
purchase, the Property for a total consideration of
RMB13,085,208 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,047,989).

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the cash deposits in the amount of
approximately RMB108.62 million and note receivable in amount
of approximately RMB9.6 million were pledged to banks as
security for notes payable and letter of guarantee. (31
December 2021: RMB59.9 million). Save for that, the Group did
not have any charges on its assets as at 31 December 2022 or
31 December 2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

In the future, the Group will continue to implement its diversified
development strategy and proactively search for potential
investment opportunities.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus or in this Announcement,
the Group had no future plans for material investments as at 31
December 2022.
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Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Degang (3R#Efll), aged 50, is our executive
Director and the chairman of the Group since 24 July 2012. Mr.
Zhang Degang is one of the founders of the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the Group’s postulating business
development plans and overseeing our Group’s overall corporate
strategies. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Strategic Committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang Degang is the
brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.

Mr. Zhang Degang obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer
science and technology (e-business) (5T & #FI 2 B 1 l7 (B F 75
7)) through distance learning from Nanjing University (F 5K
£ in March 2005. In January 2013, Mr. Zhang was accredited
by FEHREERIHETIFZE R IHEMER (Chengjiang
Road Office of the Chengjiang Road Working Committee of the
Communist Party of China*) as the “BRE® % X" (Star
Entrepreneur®) for the year 2012. In April 2013, Mr. Zhang was

Medal*) by £ T4 T2 (Wuxi City General Union*). Mr. Zhang
was awarded the #&#5m & E)IREN (Labour Model of Wuxi*) in
May 2015.

From June 1990 to June 1994, Mr. Zhang Degang worked in JT
fedi 4B (Jiangyin Steel Wire Factory®); from June 1994 to
November 2003, Mr. Zhang worked in China Bekaert Steel Cord
Co., Ltd. (FEE FRFIHEZBR A, where he gained
considerable experience in the steel wire industry. From October
2002 to April 2004, Mr. Zhang acted as the supervisor of JIL[&
= MIT AR AR (Jiangyin Sanzhi Gongkong Company
Limited®) (“diangyin Sanzhi”), which was principally engaged in
the installation, modification, repair and maintenance of industrial
automatic control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was deregistered in
December 2015. From September 2005 to July 2012, Mr.
Zhang acted as the chairman, director and general manager of
IR BRHEWM TRARAA (Jangyin Beite Machinery and
Engineering Company Limited*), which specialised in the sale
and manufacture of industrial automatic equipment. In order to
allow Mr. Zhang to focus on the business of the Group, /TkEE
B T2 AR A7 (Jiangyin Beite Machinery and Engineering
Company Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.
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In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms.
Zhu Yingxuan) established 5T HiEZE#WK TREBR A A
(Wuxi Sunlit Machinery & Engineering Company Limited*) (the
“Predecessor Company”’) with Mr. Zhang Degiang. He has
been the director of TR =41 TIE# ik GRE A7 Jiangyin
Sanzhi Gongkong Machinery Company Limited*) (the “Sanzhi
Gongkong”) since April 2009 and he acted as the general
manager of Sanzhi Gongkong from April 2009 to December
2011; he has also been the director and general manager
of JTEREE NWiZEXRERIBR AT (Jiangsu Sunlit Equipment
Technology Company Limited®) (the “Jiangsu Sunlit”) since
August 2009; the general manager of 3§58 B E(FRI B R A
A] (Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Company Limited*) (the
“Haisheng Software”) since July 2011 and its director since

2 A] (Wuxi Shangda Automation Technology Company Limited*)
(the “Wuxi Shangda”) since December 2011. Wuxi Shangda was
deregistered in April 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Degiang (5Rf&3%), aged 53, is one of the founders
and general manager. He was appointed as an executive
Director on 24 July 2012. He is also the member of the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and Strategic Committee
of the Board. He is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
operations, strategic development and management of the
Group’s business. Mr. Zhang Degiang is the brother of Mr.
Zhang Degang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.
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Mr. Zhang Degiang obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (& F & &) from
Southeast University (2 AZ) in July 1991. In August 1998,
he was conferred by #EiHm TEEMFHFELeLFTE(B)EE
@ (Wuxi City Engineer Technology Intermediate Qualification
Socialisation Evaluation Committee*) with the qualification of
engineer. In November 2013, he was granted the qualification
of senior engineer by ITHEA BB WM TIERRBEERINE
WEFEEE < (Jiangsu Wuxi Mechanical Engineering Senior
Professional Technique Qualification Evaluation Committee®). In
January 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was recognised by J& &
ANERBF (Zhoutie Town People’s Government*) and A Bl 4L &
ZFEEEZES (Zhoutie Town Committee of the Communist
Party of China*) as the “BRE K& (4 )" (Star Factory Director
(Manager)*) for the year of 2010. He was also accredited as the
“EFRENPER” (Outstanding Non-public Entrepreneur®) for two
consecutive years of 2010 and 2011 by & ARBF (Wuxi
People’s Government*) and Bl HEZE&EEH T Z (Wuxi Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party of China®).

From August 1991 to October 1995, Mr. Zhang Degiang
worked in BECEEB AR ET AR (Haiying Enterprise Group
Company Limited*), where he gained experience in designing
machinery. From October 1995 to April 2006, Mr. Zhang
worked as the department head of the production and technical
department in EH A HEFHRAF (Wuxi Murata Electronics
Company Limited*), which was principally engaged in the sale
and manufacture of electronic products and components. From
April 2004 to November 2005, he acted as the supervisor of
Jiangyin Sanzhi, which was principally engaged in the installation,
modification, repair and maintenance of industrial automatic
control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was deregistered in December
2015.

In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degiang founded the Predecessor
Company with Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms. Zhu
Yingxuan).
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From March 2006 to March 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was the
director of the Predecessor Company. In March 2011, Mr.
Zhang Degiang took up the role as the general manager of the
Company, and he acted as the executive Director since July
2012. From April 2009 to December 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang
acted as the director of Sanzhi Gongkong and as its supervisor
since December 2011. He has also been acting as the
supervisor of Jiangsu Sunlit since August 2009; the supervisor of
Haisheng Software since July 2011; and the general manager of
Wuxi Shangda since December 2011, Wuxi Shangda was
deregistered in April 2016.

Ms. FENG Lili (‘5EERE), aged 42, was appointed as the
executive Director on 17 June 2022. Ms. Feng graduated from
Nanjing University of Finance & Economics (8 R B 4& A Z)
majoring in finance and accounting. In 2013, she obtained the
EEEWEEKFEE (Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary®)
from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the® &t 2 2 Hi it #)
EEZE (Qualification Certificate of Speciality and Technology in
Accounting (Elementary)*) approved and authorised by the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China and the Ministry of Finance of the
People’ s Republic of China. In 2019, she obtained the €5t =
ERMPAERZE (Qualification Certificate of Speciality and
Technology in Accounting (Intermediate)*) approved and
authorised by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC and the Ministry of Finance of the PRC. In
2020, she obtained her Certified Management Accountant (CMA)
certification.

Ms. Feng was a manager of the Finished Products Department
at BN T AR AR (Yangzhou Jiyuan Textile Co., Ltd.*)
from 2002 to 2005 and a business manager at & #4 L 7I K
fuH (Changshu Proportion Beddings Factory*) from 2005 to
2010. She worked at the Management Department of the
Company from February 2011 to July 2012 and as a
representative for securities matters at the board office of the
Company from July 2012 to June 2015. She has been the
secretary to the Board of the Company since June 2015 and
the financial controller of the Company since November 2019.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED




ERITEE

IREBEL T 0 605% ' N2015F8A28H &
ZAEBENITES - RELTARERILE
MR {EsR AR MR o

RFELZTMI7T8F7TASHFEXE K H
BIF2012462 8 M2013F2 A E H &
EIREmEZERIETARBAETIES
REAEIE | HBRER o

B1979F3 A E 1991511 B 1k REFE
ZHRIRRT EERSEFHEN - 51991
F10 A #E E2002F 108 1k - BT EB
BMEXEAMRARIE - REZETM19985F10
AERFEARLMBEAEIHE XL
WA EBERGE BE TR B
B FESE - 52002410 A #£ = 2005
FMAL BREEFIBR=ZMHNEEEHL
I - §2004F3 A E2009F 11 ALk &
EAEIR=FEISFEHERAFNESER
BSE  ZAREEREI XS LES
RGBT HEMEE - BTERL T
BARARERNER IR =(F T
BREARER2012F7 ABEEM -

REFELZ T R2009F4 A MNBEAEE - #&
E=ZMNTIENEE - TR2011F12EZ
EEBREIE - ZANMTIEER2015F 12 AR
$HEEMM - B2012F7 A#E - HETHRME
Bl 4A 4838 o R 20135E8 A R X BT
EEN2015F8A  FHWITESTAML
FEMITEE - WEHTAIRLE -

EX ESEREREEEGE

Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Non-Executive Director

Ms. ZHANG Jinghua (3RFFZE), aged 60, was appointed as the
non-executive Director on 28 August 2015. Ms. Zhang is the
sister of Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang.

Ms. Zhang Jinghua graduated from high school in July 1978. In
February 2012 and February 2013, respectively, she was
recognised by FEI*XEE TR MZ (Jiangyin Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party of China*) and JLEET™ AR
BT (People’s Government of the Jiangyin City*) as the “B 54
#3287 (outstanding general manager®).

From March 1979 to November 1991, Ms. Zhang Jinghua
worked as a teacher in JLf2M ZZEH £ (Jiangyin City Yaosai
Secondary School*). From October 1991 to October 2002, she
worked in JTRREBEXEGMRAF (Jiangyin Liantong Industrial
Company Limited®). Ms. Zhang obtained a qualification certificate
of speciality and technology in statistics (elementary level)
approved and issued by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC
(R E AR HFIE A ZEEB) and conferred by the National Bureau
of Statistics of the PRC (BIZR#t5T ) in October 1998. From
October 2002 to November 2005, she acted as the director and
manager of Jiangyin Sanzhi. From March 2004 to November
2009, she acted as the director and general manager of T =
ETE®MARAR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery
Company Limited*), which was principally engaged in the design,
sale and manufacture of industrial automation control system. In
order to allow Ms. Zhang to focus on the business of the
Group, IR =FETE#MAER AR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong
Machinery Company Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.

Ms. Zhang Jinghua joined the Group in April 2009 as the
director of Sanzhi Gongkong, and in December 2011, she was
appointed as its general manager. Sanzhi Gongkong was
deregistered in December 2015. Since July 2012, she has acted
as our vice-general manager (Bl #). In August 2013, she
was appointed as the executive Director. In August 2015, she
was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director and resigned as the vice-general manager.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Yiu Cho (R##1H), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2021. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board and a
member of the Strategic Committee of the Board. He obtained
a master’s degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He was admitted as a fellow member of
the Associate of Chartered Certified Accountants in March
2019.

Mr. Leung was the assistant financial controller of Ta Yang
Group Holdings Limited (1991.HK) from 2006 to 2007, the chief
financial officer and board secretary of Highland Asset
Management Corporation from 2012 to 2013, an executive
director and the vice investment principal of Artini Holdings
Limited (789.HK) from 2013 to 2019 and an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of
Grace Life-tech Holdings Limited (2112.HK), formerly known as
CAA Resources Limited from 2017 to 2020 and since 11 March
2022. He was an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of the audit committee of Zheng Li Holdings Limited
(8283.HK) from 21 October 2016 to 30 June 2022. He was the
financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (309.HK)
from 2 July 2021 to 5 August 2021. He has been the company
secretary and authorised representative of Universal Star
(Holdings) Limited (2346.HK) and China Dredging Environment
Protection Holdings Limited (871.HK) since 13 July and 29
December 2021, respectively.

Mr. YU Jianfeng (8i#UI&), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2021. He is also
the chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of
the Board and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Board. He obtained a doctor’s
degree in mechanical and electrical engineering from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University. He obtained his higher education teaching
certificate (BEZ2RHYEMNE %) from the Jiangsu Education
Department in November 2015 and was admitted as a professor
of Jiangnan University in June 2018.

Mr. Yu was awarded the third prize (=% #€) from the People’s
Government of Jiangsu Province in February 2012 for his
research on the measures and system for energy efficiency
technology of domestic and imported energy-consuming
products, and received the third prize (=%%%) from the People’s
Government of Jiangsu Province in February 2016 for his
research, development and application of the typical process of
fortifying food with microwave (H§0K %1t & G B85 38 72 BE 48 B i
N ER).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



B 2004 F £ 20064 * gyt LR E— T
5 5 M # R = £ T 280 : 2006 F £2014
FEEHEABERBRRERKERLAES
& TIRAD - 2014F2 A £2018F6 A E /L
BAEZEIHIE  2018F6 A ESEIMA
B -

SEImUESR & - 465% - 20216 H18H %
ZAEARBUIENTEZE -BNAESSE
THMEZZEZEENKERREEZES
MK - HEENTEBRERITER - =
[EHE—f 1L -

B 1999 F £ 20004 + $& % AT EHEHM B
IR B R A RMERAT & : 20004 £2001
F EEGRMBIRBERARTEEE
R 2001 FEE 2002 F £ £ 5 R B 1 #
WAR A MERE  20056%F £2013F 7T
BT RBRBAER A RERMELERE : 2013
FE2016FE IRFABREBRAGES
B EI4E 2016 F 25 1 /LR B R AR &Y
BB AIMEBLLIE -

BEE

Bk A& 5957 - B2014F8H15H 2
EEBRERREZTARMNEST - &
ER2002F7TA BT AERE - FEHK
WET I - ZEER2003FANER
MAZRIEIIZME - 2019F 11 A%
TEmAANBRMESREREBEE LS R
AR B - 2021 12 AL EHE ARK
T A I #RE FF AT ) SR B TER o

EX ESEREREEEGE

Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Yu was the chief technician (= £ T %
Bf) of the diesel engine factory of China FAW (FE—q) in
Wuxi; from 2006 to 2014, he was a senior engineer of the
mechanical and electrical department of the Wuxi Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (5 AE iR RS
A 0); from February 2014 to June 2018, he was an associate
professor of Jiangnan University; and since June 2018, he has
been a professor of Jiangnan University.

Mr. ZHONG Ruifeng (8ilE), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2021. He is also
a member of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Board. He graduated from
Jiangyin Polytechnic College (TR ZH1T2F) majoring in
mechanical and electrical integration (# & —221t).

From 1999 to 2000. Mr. Zhong was a technician of #&$5EHin )
N ARZAF]; from 2000 to 2001, he was the head of
production (£EREK) of EBEIME) WM BRRAE]; from 2001
to 2002, he was a plant manager (i) of #$5 Rl fin B AR
BMRAA]; from 2005 to 2013, he was the manager of the
technology department ($:1i7EB) of JTRE ¥ KERBZER A F]; from
2013 to 2016, he was the executive vice president (& 75 EI42)
of STEF ABEEEMR AR, and since 2016, he has been the
general manager of )L &R EHK RSB R A A

SUPERVISORS

Mr. PENG Jiashan (8 0Ll), aged 59, was appointed as our
supervisor as a shareholder representative with effect from 15
August 2014. Mr. Peng graduated from Jiangsu University (T &k
A £8) majoring in mechanical and electronic engineering (## =
FT42) in July 2002. Mr. Peng received the qualification of
engineer (L#2AM) from #EIFTAER (Wuxi City Personnel
Bureau®) in September 2003. He received the qualification of
head teacher (IE = A% ZkAD) from L& & A N B RME SRERE
(Human Resources And Social Security Department of Jiangsu
Province®) in November 2019. In December 2012, he was
awarded the title of Outstanding Teacher of Jiangsu (L& & %
WEEM) by the People’s Government of Jiangsu.
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From July 1988 to September 1991, Mr. Peng Jiashan worked

currently known as %85 8 Z T2 (Wuxi School of
Technology*)) as an internship tutor (& & 5& EHA0). From
September 1991 to August 2005, Mr. Peng worked in JT & H
LB TER (Jiangyin City Transport Workers School®) as a
teacher. Since August 2005 till now, Mr. Peng has worked in jT
FHEIERERITHE SO (Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin Central
School of Vocational Technology Education®, currently known as
TERE TR EHEEER (Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin Secondary
Professional School*)) as a teacher. Mr. Peng has been granted
jointy by F#HTREMRAEZLZEE (iangyin City Transport
Bureau Commission®) and IR /E (Jiangyin City Transport
Bureau®) the title of SE¥EAZE (T{E)#& (advanced (working)
producer®) in February 2000 and January 2001, respectively.
He was granted the title of &M EHHE T1EE (outstanding
educator in Wuxi City*) by &5 E /B (Wuxi City Education
Bureau®) in September 2019.

Ms. WEI Yi (f2E), aged 53, was appointed as our supervisor
as a shareholder representative with effect from 15 August
2014. Ms. Wei obtained a bachelor's degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (& F & &) from
Southeast University (REIAZR) in July 1991. From August 1996
to July 1999, Ms. Wei studied Modern Financial Accounting
courses at Xidian University (8% & F £ K2) and graduated
from Xidian University in July 1997. Ms. Wei received the
certificate of accounting professional issued by the Financial
Department of Shaanxi Province (BR78%& B () in April 2003.

After graduating from Southeast University, Ms. Wei worked
as an engineer in FEIARBREHEELEES (General Logistics
Department of the People’s Liberation Army*). From January 2005
to December 2008, Ms. Wei worked as the chief financial officer
at PREGAI 2 RIEABR AR (Shaanxi Red Star Boiler Company
Limited®). From May 2009 to August 2017, Ms. Wei worked
as the deputy general manager of BiEE TR ORI R
A 8] (Zhuo Sui Electronic Science and Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*). From September 2017 to September 2022,
Ms. Wei has worked as the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
ASA Industrial Co., Ltd.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Ms. YANG Jinghua (158 2E), aged 41, was appointed as our
supervisor as the employee representative with effect from July
2012. Ms. Yang graduated with a major in business
administration from Jiangnan University. From July 2000 to June
2006, she worked in B TR EHEFBR AT (Wuxi Alps
Electronic Company Limited*) and her last position was training
officer. From June 2006 to February 2007, she worked in X5
FEEERRBEERLARES S AA (Nippon Express (China)
Company Limited* (now known as B@EEE¥x (R EH) AR A
A])), which was engaged in statistics work. Since May 2009,
Ms. Yang has worked in the Company on personnel related
work.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. OU Guojian, aged 56, graduated from Soochow University
in June 1988, majoring in Organic Chemistry. In June 2000, he
was granted the engineer qualification by F /T EEH1iT A B B
8T ELEE/ AN AZE (Job Title Working Group of Technical
Professionals of Changzhou City*).

Mr. Ou Guojian served as the technical quality manager in & #
BB (Wujin Pesticide Factory®) from August 1988 to May
2002, the R&D Engineer in %M BEEBR EEH R A A (Changzhou
Kangli Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*) from May 2002 to March
2004; the R&D Engineer in JTEAJIMETAER AR (Jiangyin
Baichuan Chemical Co., Ltd.*) from March 2004 to February
2005, the production technology minister in JTEZ T/ THIR
/28] (Jiangyin Chengjiang Chemical Co., Ltd.*) from March
2005 to July 2011. In August 2011, he joined the Company as
sales director and was promoted to vice-general manager in
October 2016.

Mr. HUANG Liming (E3IBH), aged 42, graduated with a major
in automatic control from Wuxi Institute of Technology (#7583
R EB3) in July 2004, and a major in business administration
from Jiangnan University (TEIAZR) in July 2015. Mr. Huang was
granted the title of Az F 8 T (intelligent staff*) in the 2013-
2014 Labour Competition (2013-20145 E B T 4 5 &E/EF)) in
April 2015, which was organised by the Bl R LZHEBER TS
(Federation of Trade Unions of Changan Street, Huishan®).
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WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Mr. Huang Liming acted as the head of electric department of T
B =T HE#M AR AR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery
Company Limited*) from July 2004 to March 2010. T =FT
T AR AR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery Company
Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.

Mr. Huang Liming acted as the vice-general manager of Jiangyin
Sanzhi since March 2010. Jiangyin Sanzhi was deregistered in
December 2015.

Mr. Huang Liming acted as the director of the production
department of the Company, and was promoted to be vice-
general manager in August 2015.

* For identification purposes only
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

On 20 July 2012, the current session of the board of
supervisors of the Company (the “Board of Supervisors”) was
established upon the approval of the inaugural meeting of the
Company. The current session of the Board of Supervisors
comprises three supervisors, namely Mr. Peng Jiashan, Ms. Wei
Yi and Ms. Yang Jinghua.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, for the Company’s
long term interests and its Shareholders’ interests, the Board of
Supervisors acted in strict compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, rules, regulatory documents, the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
earnestly performed their duties of supervision as to the acts of
the Directors and senior management of the Company. The main
area of work of the Board of Supervisors in 2022 is summarised
as follows:

I. MEETINGS CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS
The Board of Supervisors convened three meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

II. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The work of the fourth sessions of the Board of
Supervisors mainly comprised of the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of resolutions of the
general meetings
The Board of Supervisors exercised supervision and
inspection of the implementation of the resolutions in
general meetings by the Board and the senior
management of the Company through observation and
attendance at the board meetings and general meetings.
The Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that the
Directors and senior management of the Company have
diligently performed their duties in compliance with
resolutions of the general meetings. No violation of any
laws or regulations or the Articles of Association or any act
which jeopardises the interests of the Company or
Shareholders has been found in the performance of duties
by the Directors and senior management of the Company.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

. BEEIEwe . WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(Continued)
2. WEXAFERZEEERL 2. Inspection over legal compliance of the Group’s
operations
EEeruAEEERTEELK The Board of Supervisors exercised supervision on a
EREEKERERETEE - ¥ regular basis over the legal compliance and rationality of
EFeRARRRAERENTIIER the Group’s operation and management in its ordinary
METEE - EEZERE - A5EE works. It has also exercised supervision over work
EEREBE  WEBTHEEBE performance of the Board and senior management of the
B ER RAURABERMEA - E Company. The Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that
EeXERAEESRERERRDY the Group’s operation is sound and rational, and is in
B BREST  BIBREREEAEE compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and rules
FRRARBIITR © and the Articles of Association. The members of the Board
and senior management of the Group have conscientiously
and diligently performed their duties, and none of their acts
would prejudice the interests of the Group or the
Shareholders.
3. REAXAEEBLEEEITHER 3. Inspection over the Group’s daily operating activities

EEeUASERERDETEE -
EFERRAKEERRITENA
BERRL - AAWEAMIIERE
BB EMETT - BRUEEHIEBLZ
R - AEREOEE BT HEAE
#ERREBEREMA -

The Board of Supervisors exercised supervision over the
Group’s operating activities. The Board of Supervisors is of
the opinion that the Group has a sound internal control
system and has made a great progress in the formulation
and implementation of its internal work procedures, thus
effectively controlled its exposure to various operating risks.
The Group’s operation is in compliance with the PRC laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association.

30 Eom EREROERAT
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

Il. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(Continued)

4. Inspection over the Group’s financial condition
The Board of Supervisors has verified the Group’s 2022
consolidated financial statements, supervised and inspected
the Group’s implementation of relevant financial policies and
legislations as well as details on the Group’s assets,
financial income and expenditure. The Board of Supervisors
is of the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
for 2022 fairly reflected the Group’s financial position and
operating results.

Looking forward, the Board of Supervisors will continue to carry
out its duties in strict compliance with the Articles of Association
and the relevant laws and regulations and protect the interests
of the Shareholders.

Peng Jiashan
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Jiangsu, China, 24 March 2023
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code for corporate governance.
The Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
CG Code provisions for the Year. The key corporate governance
practices of the Company is summarised below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders. The Board has established four
Board committees, being the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration and appraisal committee (the
“Remuneration and Appraisal Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the strategic
committee (the “Strategic Committee”) (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Feng Lili, one
non-executive Director, namely, Ms. Zhang Jinghua, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Yiu
Cho, Mr. Yu Jianfeng and Mr. Zhong Ruifeng. Mr. Zhang
Degang is the chairman of the Board.

Their biographical details and their family relationships (where
applicable) are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to
28 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
roles and functions and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors are available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Degang, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, is the brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua, who are the executive Director and general manager,
and the non-executive Director of the Group, respectively. Save
as disclosed, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members of the
Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, Directors’ appointments or re-appointments,
investment policies, dividend and accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the executive Directors and the members
of senior management. The functions and powers that have
been delegated are reviewed periodically by the Board to ensure
that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. The Board
also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report
to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s
expense upon their request. During the Year, all Directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance
and financial position to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of directorships or other positions which they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the
overall interests of the Shareholders and the Group. They serve
actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide their
independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One of
the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted an
annual confirmation in writing of his independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmations and upon the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill and
diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. Every
newly appointed Director receives an induction to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of
his(/her) duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
rules and requirements.

In compliance with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code
and to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices, the Directors have participated
in the following continuous professional development in the Year:

B E a5

Training organised by

EEns Name of Directors professional organisation

BITES Executive Directors

R 12 M 5 A& Mr. Zhang Degang 7

SRIELR LA Mr. Zhang Degiang v

HEEX T Ms. Feng Lili v
(R2022FE6 A17HEZRT) (appointed on 17 June 2022)

FBITES Non-executive Directors

REFEL LT Ms. Zhang Jinghua v

BIAERITESE Independent Non-executive Directors

REAELE Mr. Leung Yiu Cho v

BRI EE Mr. Yu Jianfeng Y

8% I I8 S Mr. Zhong Ruifeng v

BisE : AARE KB ESEKIIRN 2 B EF R

BT -

continuous professional training.

Note: The Company has received from each of the Directors the confirmations on taking
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer are separate and are not performed by the same
individual as this ensures better checks and balances and hence
better corporate governance. Mr. Zhang Degang holds the
position of the chairman of the Board, who is primarily
responsible for the overall strategies, planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Zhang Degiang serves as the
general manager of the Group, who is primarily responsible for
the operations of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of the Board Committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and Strategic
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and written
terms of reference approved by the Board covering its duties,
powers and functions. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee are available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

() Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three Directors, namely Mr. Leung
Yiu Cho (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Yu
Jianfeng (independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
Zhong Ruifeng (independent non-executive Director). Mr.
Leung Yiu Cho, who has appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters, was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, relationship with
external auditor of the Group, overseeing the audit process
and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. These include reviewing the
Group’s interim and annual reports.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i) Audit Committee (Continued)
During the Year, the Audit Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and for the year
ended 31 December 2022, respectively, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
the report prepared by the external auditor covering major
findings in the course of the audit, the selection and
appointment of the external auditor as well as the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Audit Committee
has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
Year.

During the Year, four meetings of the Audit Committee
were held. The attendance records of individual committee
members are set out below:

HE SHRH

Attendance/

REZ Name of member Number of Meetings

2B A Mr. Leung Yiu Cho 4/4

AR Mr. Yu Jianfeng 4/4

45 T U8 5 A Mr. Zhong Ruifeng 3/3

(FR2022F 4 A20 B EZ 1) (appointed on 20 April 2022)

FNEEREESE (i) Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

FEEZZE SR BREXERST
AN - REBERE A=2EF
AR DRI AETZIE A OB IEH
TEF)  ERELEE OB IFNTE
FIRKRBERAEEBTES) - A2
BEERFTHEEZZESLR -

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was
established with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Yu Jianfeng
(independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhong Ruifeng
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang
Deqgiang (executive Director). Mr. Yu Jianfeng is the
chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee (Continued)

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
structure and policy for all
management as well as the specific remuneration packages
for the executive Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for
developing such remuneration policy. No Director takes part
in any discussion on his own remuneration. The Company’s
objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain fair and
competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of
remuneration and fees paid to the members of the Board,
market rates and factors such as each Director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the Group’s
performance are taken into account.

Directors and senior

During the Year, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee has, inter alia, reviewed the remuneration policy
relating to the Directors and senior
management of the Company as well as the specific
remuneration packages for the executive Directors and
senior management, assessed the performance of executive
directors, approved the terms of executive directors’
service contracts and made recommendations to the
Board.

and structure

During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee was held. The attendance records of
individual committee members are set out below:

HE R

Attendance/

REEZ Name of member Number of Meetings

SRIBGR ST A Mr. Zhang Degiang 1/1

AR EE Mr. Yu Jianfeng 11

EIn g 5 Mr. Zhong Ruifeng 11
BERNENEROGERA A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee (Continued)

The remuneration of the members of the Directors,
supervisors and the senior management of the Group by
band for the Year is set out below:

A

Number of persons

Z £250,000
Nil to 250,000

250,000 500,000
250,000 to 500,000

500,000% 1,000,000
500,000 to 1,000,000

REEESE
REZESECEREEERTAIMNK
Vo REBESE A=2EFA
X DRIRRIEREL (FITES) -
AIRIE LA B IFITESR) RiB
&4 OB EMITES) - RIEMIK
ERREBRBEER -

REZEBENIZBRAEREIEFR
ANEEENEN  BRERE - AR
RETLE - UERESSAGES
KSEXBATNHGER - REERE
BoRBZEBENARZERAES
SHEARAEERAETESFENX
BHATL ERESETLRINFEZ
BYFRTEFTNEILE - RBERE
SEVEABAEERAIEEESRS
REHNER  TEEEEZTELT
EBR MEFERETFRIESTS
STAEBRNEREAY  RERE
EFE LU EBRFI ATt E BRI AN
Pget - MR EESEKRE BB FRE
o

(iii)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises

three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Degang (executive
Director), Mr. Yu Jianfeng (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Zhong Ruifeng (independent non-

executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the composition of the Board, including its
structure, size and diversity, at least annually to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group. It is also responsible to consider and recommend to
the Board any suitably qualified person to become a
member of the Board, monitor the succession planning of
Directors and assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also give
consideration to the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) identifying suitable qualified
candidates to become the members of the Board, and the
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis, so as to develop
and review measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on achieving
these objectives.

when
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2015. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The Board has adopted the nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) on 24 August 2018 which sets out
the nomination criteria and procedures for the Company to
select candidate(s) for possible inclusion in the Board. The
Nomination Policy could assist the Company to achieve
board diversity in the Company and enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance
standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such
as the qualifications, skills, integrity and experience will be
taken into consideration as a whole. In the case of
independent non-executive Directors, they must further
satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Since the selection of candidates should
ensure that diversity remains a central feature of the Board,
a range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience would be considered.

The procedure and process to identify potential candidates
for the Board would be as follows:

(1)  identifying potential candidates, including recommendations
from the Board members, professional search firms and
the shareholders of the Company;

(2) evaluating the candidates based on the approved
selection criteria through methods such as reviewing
the resume and conducting background checks;

(8) reviewing the profiles of the shortlisted candidates and
interviewing them; and

(4) making recommendations to the Board on the selected
candidates.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee (Continued)
The Nomination Policy also includes the Board succession
plan to assess whether vacancies on the Board would be
created or expected due to the Directors’ resignation,
retirement, death and other circumstances and to identify
candidates in advance if necessary. The Nomination Policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.

During the Year, two meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held. The attendance records of individual committee
members are set out below:

HE SRR

Attendance/

54—} % Name of member Number of Meetings

SR 12 I 5% A& Mr. Zhang Degang 2/2

BRI E Mr. Yu Jianfeng 2/2

8 T I 50 A4 Mr. Zhong Ruifeng 2/2
HREET (iv) Strategic Committee

BREZEERCERY  RABES
C B=REFAEK - 25 RREH
FEMBTESR) REBREE NI
ER)MRRELELECBIUIFNTE
=) REMEESBREZESTE -

BRZEENEERARRARAIN
RHEREBAESTSRLES -

FR-BREZESC (HPERE)
ARRBEE R RPER - Wil
iR 2 -

The Strategic Committee was established with terms of
reference and comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Degang (executive Director), Mr. Zhang Deqgiang (executive
Director) and Mr. Leung Yiu Cho (independent non-
executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman of
the Strategic Committee.

The primary function of the Strategic Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the long-term
development strategies of the Company.

During the Year, the Strategic Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the financing plans and long term development of
the Company and given suggestions accordingly.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iv) Strategic Committee (Continued)
During the Year, one meeting of the Strategic Committee
was held. The attendance records of individual committee
members are set out below:

HE EHHRE

Attendance/

REKSZ Name of member Number of Meetings
SR 12 I 5% A& Mr. Zhang Degang 1/1
SR 1898 ST A Mr. Zhang Degiang 1/1
2B A Mr. Leung Yiu Cho 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

MECHANISM ENSURING SUFFICIENT
INDEPENDENCE VIEWS TO THE BOARD

The Board recognises Board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Company has put in place the
mechanisms to ensure a strong independence element on the
Board, which are summarised below:

(i Board Composition
The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors and at least
one-third of the Board members being independent non-
executive Directors (or such higher threshold as may be
required by the Listing Rules from time to time).

Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by
the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain Board
committees, independent non-executive Directors will be
appointed to other Board committees as far as practicable
to ensure independent views are available.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee shall strictly adhere to the
nomination policy and the independence assessment
criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with regard to the
nomination and appointment of independent non-executive
Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director is also required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any
change in his own personal particulars that may materially
affect his independence.

The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess annually
the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors by reference to the independence criteria as set
out in the Listing Rules to ensure that they can continually
exercise independent judgement.

Decision Making

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are entitled to seek further information and documentation
from the management on the matters to be discussed at
board meetings. They can also seek assistance from the
Company’s company secretary and, where necessary,
independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expense.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any board
resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which
such Director or any of his close associates has a material
interest.

The Board had made an annual review on the
implementation of the abovementioned mechanisms and
was of the view that the abovementioned mechanisms had
been satisfactorily implemented.
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EEEREER BOARD PROCEEDINGS

BIBEESERME  EESBFARTE Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required to
DR EEEe TR AFAAEFNEES hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be convened
g5 o erTHeRATHEL+TEA and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice of at least
BA MERNEFSSZBAAREEA fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular Board meeting
A BAEE ZBMESPAREBRES while the notice of an extraordinary Board meeting shall be
SLEOFHE  WE RN MERERE despatched five days prior to the date of the meeting. The

MESgXHEREREZRTRI=AH notice shall state the time, venue and means by which the
RIZETERES - Board meeting will be convened, and an agenda and

accompanying board papers shall be sent to all the Directors at
least three days before the relevant meeting.

ESSCRNETABELRESHEN The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least half

— ¥ EENHRILEETSEE - I of the total number of the Directors. A Director may attend the

EBAFRAEZEAS EFHEZEZRRLE Board meeting in person, or appoint another Director in writing

EEeeR ESSNERERERER as his proxy to attend the Board meeting. The secretary to the

EXeeRsl . YHRRZSHELHET Board is responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes of

HEMNEZEEER - Board meetings and ensuring that such minutes are available for
inspection by any Director.

FRN - EFCCRTAASE  HELE During the Year, five Board meetings were held and the

HHAT attendance records are set out below:
HE SHRE
Attendance/
EEHs Name of director Number of Meetings
SR 128 Al 55 A Mr. Zhang Degang 5/5
SRIBGR A Mr. Zhang Degiang 5/5
i)y Ms. Feng Lili 3/3

(R2022E6 A17HEZT) (appointed 17 June 2022)

REFELZ T+ Ms. Zhang Jinghua 5/5
RRELEE Mr. Leung Yiu Cho 5/5
BIREIE S A Mr. Yu Jianfeng 5/5
Eng k£ Mr. Zhong Ruifeng 5/5

44 smgpmhERERAERAR
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the company convened one annual general
meeting of the Company. The meeting was held on 17 June
2022 and the attendance record is set out below:

HE ERZRH
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

oR ) % A&
RIER L E
BB
(FR2022F6 A17BEZ )
REFERL LT
28 LA
BRI E
Eim g

ZERERESE
TAFRTEERBYIFRTESNIE=
FRETHEE-

RIFAGERALR  EFARANRARR
AR LEXBE EHR/A=F YA EE
B ARFIEREZEEFEFTER —EAX
R REZESARRERERER R
MEBERARNGE EERARRNE
BRISRE ZTREFNIERER  FURE
FRAEM YRERERXABRTESS
B - IEFRENERTHALRRKRE
BBRALE -

Mr. Zhang Degang 11
Mr. Zhang Degiang 11
Ms. Feng Lili N/A

(appointed on 17 June 2022) N8 A
Ms. Zhang Jinghua 11
Mr. Leung Yiu Cho 11
Mr. Yu Jianfeng 11
Mr. Zhong Ruifeng 11

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be subject
to election at the Company’s general meetings with a term of
office of three years and may be re-elected. The Company has
implemented a set of effective procedures for the appointment
of new Directors. The Nomination Committee shall, in
accordance with provisions of the relevant laws and regulations
and the Articles of Association, take into account the practical
situations of the Company, consider the selection criteria,
selection procedures and terms of office of the Directors, and
record and submit the resolutions to the Board for approval. All
newly nominated Directors are subject to election and approval
at general meetings.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Except Ms. Feng Lili, each of the Directors has been re-elected
for a term of three years at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 June 2021.

Ms. Feng Lili was appointed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 17 June 2022 and ending on the date of
the conclusion of the fourth session of the Board of the
Company.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors consists of three members. The
employee representative supervisor, namely Ms. Yang Jinghua,
was elected by employees, and the other supervisors were
elected by the shareholders of the Company. Each of the
supervisors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date. All of the current supervisors have been re-elected
for a term of three years at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 June 2021. The functions and duties of
the Board of Supervisors include, but are not limited to:
reviewing and verifying financial reports and, if in doubt,
appointing certified public accountants and practicing auditors to
re-examine the Company’s financial information; investigate when
an unusual operation situation of the Company is discontinued;
supervising the performance of the Directors and senior
management members, and monitoring whether they had acted
in violation of the laws, regulations and Articles of Association in
the performance of their duties; requesting the Directors and
senior management members to rectify actions which are
detrimental to the Company’s interests; and exercising other
rights given to them under the Articles of Association.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an
external service provider, namely Ms. Ho Wing Yan (“Ms. Ho”),
who was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”). Mr. Zhang Degang, the chairman
of the Board and executive Director, is the primary corporate
contact person of the Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that the Board policies and procedures are
followed. Ms. Ho is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and should also facilitate induction
and professional development of Directors. During the Year, the
Company Secretary has complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by
undertaking not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the
Model Code as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and supervisors of the Company.
Upon making specific enquiries of all the Directors and
supervisors of the Company, each of the Directors and
supervisors of the Company confirmed that he/she has fully
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year. The Board is of the opinion that the Model
Code has been fuly complied with during the year end 31
December 2022.

Any employee of the Company or director or employee of any
subsidiary of the Company who, because of their office in the
Company, are likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the securities of the Company, have also been
requested not to deal in securities of the Company when he
would be prohibited from dealing by the Model Code as if he
were a Director.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
management of the Company the matters relating to risk
management and internal control of the Group. The Board
complied with the code provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG code. The Board has
overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an annual and ongoing basis. A year
end review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems has been conducted for the Year
and upon the review by the Audit Committee, the Board was of
the view that the risk management and internal control systems
are considered to be effective and adequate. Self-assessment
and comprehensive risk assessment surveys have been
conducted during the review. The Company also has an internal
audit function to carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems, and
has procedures in place to keep information confidential and
manage actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal
structures have been designed to prevent the misuse of inside
information and avoid conflicts of interest.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

All Directors and those employees who could have access to,
and monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for
making appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of
such information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from
using inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the
form of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash
flows for the Year and in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies and has
applied them consistently based on prudent and reasonable
judgments and estimates. The Board considers that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to any events or conditions that may affect the business
of the Group or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going
concern.

The responsibility of PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual
report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. During the Year, the fees paid or
payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of its audit
services provided to the Group was RMB1,490,000 and no non-
audit services were provided.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the Year under review.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company is conscious of maintaining Board diversity with
an appropriate level of female members on the Board, which
shall not be less than one female member with immediate effect
and may further increase in the next five years. During the Year
and as at the date of the Annual Report, two of the seven
Directors of the Company are female, representing 29% of the
Board. The Board considered that Company has achieved
gender diversity of the Board during the period and will continue
implementing the Board Diversity Policy in the future to enhance
the overall performance of the Board and the effectiveness of
decision-making. It is expected that the ratio of female Directors
will remain at 29% in the following years. The Company will
continue its nomination policy to select suitable candidates with
no gender limitation to be newly appointed Directors in the next
few years.

While conscious efforts are being taken by the Company to fulfil
its Board Diversity Policy, all appointments are ultimately made
on a merit basis taking into account available and suitable
candidates.

The Nominations Committee will review the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board for the
Board’s review and approval to ensure its continued
appropriateness and effectiveness.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (Continued)

For recruiting potential successors to the Board to archive Board
diversity including gender diversity, the Board has prepared a list
of desirable skills, experience, qualifications, gender or
perspectives which the candidate should have. If the Board
determines that an additional or replacement Director is required,
it will deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including referral from Directors, shareholders,
management, advisors of the Company and external executive
search firms.

The Board had reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Board Diversity Policy and was of the view that the Board
Diversity Policy and its implementation was sufficient and
effective.

WORK FORCE DIVERSITY

The Group strictly adheres to fair and appropriate employment
practices and labour standards. With an anti-discriminatory and
equal-opportunity policy in place, the Group provides job
applicant and employees with equal opportunities of employment
and promotion, and prohibits all forms of discrimination on
gender, religion, race, disability or age. As at 31 December
2022, the current gender ratio of the company workforce
(including senior management) is 43 females per 149 males,
which has decreased from 35 females per 106 males as of last
year. Although the gender ratio decreased, the Board
considered that the Company has still achieved gender diversity
and will continue focusing on the area because workforce
gender diversity is associated with resources that can provide a
sustained competitive advantage to the company, which include
market insight, creativity and innovation, and improved
problem-solving. Men’s and women'’s different experiences may
provide insights into the different needs of male and female
customers. Further, men and women may have different
cognitive abilities, such as men’s proficiency in mathematics and
women'’s proficiency in verbal and interpersonal skills. Therefore,
a mix of cognitive abilities in a gender diverse team may
enhance the team’s overall creativity and innovation as proved
by research. Moreover, a gender diverse team produces high
quality decisions. The plan for the Group in terms of gender
diversity in workforce is to maintain the balance of gender
diversity in the foreseeable future. Although there may be some
mitigating circumstances where gender diversity can be very
hard to achieve (for instance, male workers are more commonly
seen regarding physical labor and female workers are more
often seen during psychological consultation), the Company will
keep focusing on the workforce gender diversity to maintain its
current strength as well as to further improve its competences in
the future.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure,
enable all its Shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and allow all Shareholders to engage
actively with the Company.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

Purpose

The Company recognises the importance of providing current
and relevant information to the Shareholders. This shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”) aims to set out the
provisions with the objective to ensure that the Shareholders
and potential investors are provided with equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their
rights in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and
potential investors to engage actively with the Company.

General Policy

The board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and will regularly review the Policy to ensure its
effectiveness.

Information is communicated to the Shareholders as well as the
stakeholders through periodic disclosure through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as
well as by making available all the disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and other corporate publications on the Stock
Exchange’s website and corporate communications on the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company’s
website (www.wxsunlit.com).

Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders
shall be ensured at all times. Any questions, requests and
comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to Suite
2703, 27/F, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, or by email to fenglili@wxsunlit.com, or through the
Company’s share registrar, Union Registrars Limited.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy (Continued)
General Policy (Continued)

The Company believes that communication with Shareholders by
electronic means, particularly through its website, is an efficient
way to distribute information in a timely and convenient manner.
Shareholders are encouraged to access to the corporate
communications posted on the Company’s website
(www.wxsunlit.com) to help reduce the quantity of printed
copies and hence reduce the impact on the environment.

The Company’s website will be updated on a regular basis and
with material posted to the Stock Exchange’'s website
immediately thereafter. Such material includes but not limited to
financial statements, results announcements, circulars and
notices of general meetings and associated explanatory
documents.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent such information is publicly
available.

Shareholders shall be provided with designated contacts, email
addresses and enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable
them to make any query in respect of the Company.

The Company has reviewed that the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy has
been conducted for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy (Continued)

General Policy (Continued)

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal procedures of the
Company, the Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following
rights:

U]

(i)

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the Board
and the Shareholders. The Company encourages the
participation of the Shareholders through annual general
meetings and other general meetings where the
Shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board,
and to exercise their right to vote at meetings. The
Company shall arrange notices of meetings and circulars
containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent to the
Shareholders no less than 45 days before the relevant
meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors.

Enquiries to the Board

The Company encourages Shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make enquiries by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance
matters to the Board and Board Committees at the general
meetings or providing written notice of such enquiries to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Suite 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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R R RRER (o) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) alone or
jointly holding 10% or more of the shares have the right to
require the Board to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting by a written request. Within ten days after
receipt of the request, the Board shall, in accordance with
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, gives a
written response in respect of whether or not it agrees to
convene a shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting.

If the Board agrees to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, a notice of shareholders’ general meeting
shall be issued within five days after the Board reaches such
a resolution. Where the notice alters the original proposal, the
approval of the relevant shareholders shall be required.

If the Board refuses to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, or fails to respond within ten days after
receipt of the request, the Shareholder(s) alone or in
aggregate holding 10% or more of the Shares have the right
to propose to the Board of Supervisors by a written
requisition the convening of a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting.

If the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene a shareholders’
extraordinary general meeting, a notice of shareholders’
general meeting shall be issued within five days after receipt
of the request. Where the notice alters the original proposal,
the approval of the relevant Shareholders shall be required.

Failure of the Board of Supervisors to issue a notice of
general meeting within the stipulated period shall be deemed
as its failure to convene and preside over a general meeting,
and Shareholder(s) alone or in aggregate holding 10% or
more of the Company’s Shares for ninety consecutive days or
more shall be entitled to convene and preside over the
meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings (Continued)

The Shareholders require to convene an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting shall follow the following
procedures:

(@) Shareholders who separately or jointly hold 10% or
more of the shares of the Company carrying voting
rights may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by
signing a written request or several copies in the
same form and to illustrate the proposed resolutions
of the meetings. The Board shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting as
soon as practicable upon receipt of the foresaid
written request. The aforesaid amount of shareholding
is calculated as of the date of the submission of the
written request by the Shareholders.

(b) A shareholder’s general meeting shall be convened in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

All reasonable expenses incurred by convening and holding
the aforesaid meeting by Shareholders due to the failure of
the Board to hold such meeting in response to the
aforesaid request shall be borne by the Company. Such
expenses shall be deducted from the amounts due by the
Company to the Director(s) who have defaulted their duties.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(iv) Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general

(v)

meeting

In overseeing and monitoring the business operation of the
Company, the Shareholders have the right to put forward
proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders individually or
together holding 3% or more of the Company’s voting
shares have the right to put up ad hoc proposals in writing
to the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business in Hong Kong
currently situated at Suite 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the
Company shall include such ad hoc proposals into the
agenda for such general meeting if they are the matters
which fall within the functions and powers of general
meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be within
the scope of duties of the general meetings. It shall have a
clear topic and specific matters to be resolved on, and
shall be in compliance with relevant requirements of the
laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of
Association.

Shareholder Inquiry

The Shareholders shall direct inquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar.

Name of Registrar:
Address:

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square,
338 King’'s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone Number:  +852 2849 3399

The Shareholders may request for the Company’s
information in the public domain at any time.

The Company shall provide the shareholders with
designated contact details, email address and hotline
number for the shareholders to inquire about the
Company’s matters.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(v) Shareholder Inquiry (Continued)
The Company highly values the view and comment by the
Shareholders’ and relevant shakeholders to the Company
and would invite the Shareholders’ and relevant
shakeholders to communicate with the Company by
employing the abovementioned means. In view of the above
shareholders’ communication means and measures
adopted by the Company, the Board is of the view that the
shareholders’ communication policy implemented during the
Year was sufficient and effective.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) on 13 May 2014 which sets out the appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend
payment of the Company. The Company takes priority to
distributing dividends in cash and shares its profits with the
Shareholders. The dividend distribution decision of the Company
will depend on, among others, the financial results, the current
and future operations, liquidity and capital requirements, financial
condition and other factors as the Board may deem relevant.
The Dividend Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In 2022, certain amendments were made to the Articles of
Association concerning the change of name of promoter and the
change of number of Directors. These amendments were duly
passed by the Shareholders at the general meeting of the
Company held on 17 June 2022 and the amended version of
the Articles of Association has been adopted since 10 August
2022. Save as disclosed above, there was no change made to
the Articles of Association during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group is committed to promoting sustainable development,
which is extremely important to create long-term value for the
Group’s shareholders, customers, employees, other
stakeholders, as well as the general public. The Group cares
about the impact of its daily operation on the environment and
the society and strives to set a good example for the public;
hence in conducting business operation, it also makes great
effort to satisfy the interests of all stakeholders, the economy,
the environment, the society and corporate governance and
strives to achieve a fine balance.

After reviewing the Company’s environmental, social and
governance practices and the relevant provisions of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules, the Board is satisfied that the Company has
complied with the “Comply or Explain” Provisions set out in the
ESG Reporting Guide for the Year.

THE ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

We consider environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
commitment as a part of our fiduciary duty and we pledge to
embed ESG considerations into our decision- making process.
To achieve this, we have developed a core governance
framework to ensure the alignment of ESG aspects with our
strategic growth, while advocating the integration of ESG
considerations into our business operations. Our corporate social
responsibility structure is divided into two components, namely
the board of directors (the “Board”) and an ESG taskforce.

The Board takes overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
issues and oversees the ESG strategies, direction and policies.
In order to better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
related issues and potential risks, the Board discusses and
reviews the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities, performance,
progress, goals and targets regularly with the assistance of the
ESG taskforce. The Board is also responsible for ensuring the
effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control
mechanism and facilitates the exchange of best practices with
other comparable companies.
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THE ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (Continued)

The ESG taskforce is composed of core members from different
departments of the Group. The ESG taskforce facilitates the
Board’s oversight of ESG matters and has the responsibility for
collecting and analysing ESG data, monitoring and evaluating the
Group’s ESG performance, ensuring compliance with ESG-
related laws and regulations, and preparing ESG reports. The
ESG taskforce arranges meeting semi-annually to evaluate the
effectiveness of current policies and procedures, and formulate
appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance of such
ESG policies. At such meetings, the ESG taskforce discusses
the existing and upcoming plans in order to monitor and
manage the Group’s strategic goals in terms of sustainable
development, mitigating potential risks, and minimising the
negative impact on our business operations. The ESG taskforce
periodically reports to the Board, assists in assessing and
identifying the Group ESG risks and opportunities and evaluates
the implementation and effectiveness of internal control
mechanism.

REPORTING SCOPE

Unless otherwise stated, the Environmental, Social and
Governance report (the “ESG Report”) mainly covers the Group’s
operation, which is principally the manufacturing and sales of
equipment for steel wire production lines. The Company is also
engaged in the research and development, design, supply,
installation, testing, repair and maintenance of production lines
for manufacturing steel wire. Through its subsidiaries, the
Company is also involved in the software development and
software patent rights trading business in the People’s Republic
of China, which contributed substantially to the Group’s revenue
during the Reporting Period. The Group will continue to assess
the major ESG aspects of different businesses of its major
subsidiaries to determine the reporting scope of the ESG
Report.

The reporting boundary is determined according to the
corresponding materiality of each entity to our business and
operations. Entities outside the scope of the ESG Report can be
found in note 1 to the financial statements in the Annual Report
2022.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
structure and practices has been set out in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Annual Report 2022.

During the preparation of this ESG Report, the Group has
applied the reporting principles in the aforementioned ESG
Reporting Guide as follows:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the
confirmed material issues as the focus for the preparation of this
Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by
the Board and senior management. Please refer to the section
headed “Stakeholder Engagement” for further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the
calculation of relevant data in this Report, as well as the
applicable assumptions were disclosed. The key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) are supplemented by explanatory notes to
establish benchmarks where feasible.

Balance: This Report was written in an objective and impartial
manner to ensure that the information disclosed faithfully reflects
the overall performance of the Group in ESG aspects.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this Report was
substantially consistent with the previous year, and explanations
were provided regarding data with changes in the scope of
disclosure and calculation methodologies.

This ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of
the Group and was approved by the Board.
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REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges, and
measures being taken during the year ended 31 December
2022.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding
its businesses and ESG aspects. To understand and address
stakeholders’ key concerns, the Group has maintained close
communication with its key stakeholders, including but not
limited to shareholders and investors, customers, tenants,
employees, suppliers and subcontractors, government and other
regulatory bodies as well as the local community.

In formulating operational and ESG strategies, the Group
considers stakeholders’ expectations by utilising diversified

EERERFMHENEE : communication channels as shown below:
& BERE L
Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations
BRRRIRESE o HIBHE o EBERE

s RREFRE o BRI

e  RAHBUL e {HEENR

e EW o  EBURHEM

s REEMEREHN
o ARKER

Shareholders and investors o Financial reports o Business strategy
° Annual general meeting ° Financial performance
° Company website o Corporate governance
o Press releases o Business sustainability
° Investor relations inquiry

J Hotline and email

BF s EFRBAEKLER s MRBREMEER
e KRHFEARZ o REFR
. RE
Customers ° Customer service hotline and e Quality of the services and
email products
o Complaint hotline o Timely service

° Exhibitions

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Government and other regulatory
bodies
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Local communities
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

BERE

Communication channels

o IFJ
o REHE
s TEHEH

e [MHEHE

o Staff performance appraisal
° Training

° Internal policies

° Regular meetings

o Surveys
. wHER

s HERKREMAE

e TEHBERKLFH

° Business meetings

e Quotation and tendering
processes

o Regular audits and
assessments

o JEBRXEKBM

o BHHEMIKE

° Statutory filings and notices

o Compulsory or voluntary
disclosures

s HEREF
e EIKEY

° Community activities
o Sponsorships and donations

the wider community.

B2

Expectations

REA S A2 A

8 T % B

R M IE

TR
BE@EREZD

Rights and benefits

Staff remuneration
Development and training
Working hours
Occupational
safety

health and

Hh

NENSDES

HEEEREE
Commitments

Payment schedule

Business ethics and reputation

BPRERER
NEERERAE
Compliance with
regulations
Transparency of
information

laws and

internal

[HE 3K

TEREBHRSE

RIRIRE

Business ethics

Fair employment opportunities
Environmental protection

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve
its ESG performance and continuously create greater value for
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BOARD STATEMENT
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the ESG
Report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
This Report demonstrates our growing commitment to advancing
our sustainability performance in areas such as corporate
governance, community participation, customer satisfaction, and
employee care.

We view ESG commitments as part of our responsibility and are
committed to incorporating ESG considerations into our
decision-making process. As such, the Group decided to set
directional targets for the financial year ended 31 December
2024 (“2024”), which would be a three-year target plan. By
setting ESG-related goals, the Group can raise the employee’s
awareness of environmental protection and improve its ESG
performance continuously.

We believe that a forceful governance structure is of utmost
importance to the successful integration and effective
management of sustainability issues at Wuxi Sunlit. The Board
takes overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG issues and
oversees the ESG strategies, directions and policies. In order to
better manage the Group’s ESG performance, related issues and
potential risks, the Board analyses and reviews the Group’s ESG
risks and opportunities, performance, progress, goals and targets
regularly. The Board is also responsible for ensuring the
effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control
mechanism and facilitates the exchange of best practices with
other comparable companies.

Looking forward, we will continue our efforts to further deepen
the integration of ESG concepts internally and externally,
implement sustainable management more responsibly, and work
together.

Finally, | would like to express my greatest gratitude to the
Board, management and staff of the Group for their strenuous
contribution in the past year. Furthermore, | would also like to
take this opportunity to sincerely thank our customers, suppliers,
business partners and shareholders for their continuous support
and trust. | believe all members of the Group will dedicate their
best effort to drive business growth and to deliver enhanced
returns to shareholders.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s major operations
have participated in the preparation of this Report in order to
assist the Group in reviewing its operations, identifying relevant
ESG issues and assessing the importance of related matters to
its businesses and stakeholders. The Group has compiled a
questionnaire with reference to the identified material ESG issues
to collect information from the stakeholders of the Group.

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems for
ESG issues during the Reporting Period and confirmed that the
disclosed contents are in compliance with the requirements of
the ESG Reporting Guide.

ENVIRONMENTAL TARGETS

To better manage the Group’s material topics and its
performance on those aspects, the Group has set some
directional targets for the financial year ended 31 December
2024, which would be a three-year target plan.

The table below summarises the Group’s sustainability targets
for 2024. The Group will continue to review the progress of the
set targets every Reporting Period prior to 2024, and will
continue to work for the set targets.

BREREEHE 1A &
Environmental Targets Status
e o 2024F R ERBHMEER2021FFEIK1% EITH
Emissions ° Reduce greenhouse gas emissions intensities by 1% in In progress
2024 as compared to 2021
BEEYEE o 2024FEEEYMEE 82021 F[F1E1% EiTH
Waste Management o Reduce waste intensity by 1% in 2024 as compared to In progress
2021
BE#E o 2024F B RTHMEE 2021 FFE K% EITH
Energy Consumption ° Reduce electricity and gasoline intensities by 1% in 2024 as In progress
compared to 2021
IKFE o 2024F FEKEE B 2021 F [F1E1% #EiTh
Water Consumption ° Reduce water consumption intensity by 1% in 2024 as In progress
compared to 2021
“EZFERSE
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CONTACT US

Please feel free to provide comments and suggestions on this
Report or the Group’s ESG performance through email at
fenglili@wxsunlit.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Al.

Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes

Protecting the environment is one of our key concerns; we
are committed to protecting the environment and focusing
on environmental protection in our operation, hoping to
reduce our long-term negative impact on the environment
through close supervision and stringent control.

Energy Management

As indirect greenhouse gas emissions, which are
generated from our daily electricity power
consumption, are the main source of the Group’s
carbon footprint, we will keep monitoring and
disclosing the Group’s carbon footprint to find out and
control the impact of our daily operation on the
environment. At the same time, we will implement the
following energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures at various business locations to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions:

a. Install high-performance electrical equipment;

b. Require the purchasing department to purchase
energy-efficient products;
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes (Continued)

1. Energy Management (Continued)

C.

Employ automatic lighting control systems;

Deploy LED lighting on office floors;

Require employees to turn off the lights and any
unnecessary energy-consuming devices to
reduce energy consumption and avoid
unnecessary waste of energy;

Utilise natural light as much as possible on office
floors;

Install auxiliary electricity meters to monitor
electricity consumption; and

Other energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures.

Our finance department shall collect information about
the Group’s usage of electricity annually for the
management to disclose in the ESG Report in each
financial year starting from 1 January 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes (Continued)

2.

Waste Management

In order to lighten the load of landfills, we adopt a
responsible waste management policy, including waste
avoidance, reducing waste from its source and reuse,
recycle and responsible disposal of waste. Our offices
post memos and notices at conspicuous places to
encourage the employees to reduce the production of
waste. We have introduced waste separation
measures from the sources of:

a. Waste paper (excluding paper cup, paper plate,
etc.);

b. Metal (including aluminum cans and other metal
cans);

c. Plastics (plastic bottles, containers and packaging
materials); and

d. Other recyclables (such as old clothes, electrical
appliances, computers, magazines, etc.).

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group was fined for breaching
the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution (% ARZFBEKFEAE) and
has actively taken remedial measures correspondingly.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group has complied with the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FRZE A Rt
B IR E IR #)K), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution (FFZE A R It
MBI K5 2BFAE), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (9%
ARKEMBEKRRIFEMAZ) and the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Pollution from
Environmental Noise ({2 A R EMBIIRERE )50
J87%) and other relevant laws and regulation relating
to environmental protection in all material respects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Policies on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials)

s

Reducing electricity consumption

We will comply with the Group’s policies on emissions
of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes to reduce electricity
consumption.

Paper reduction

In order to reduce waste paper, we have developed
the following measures:

a. Deploy recycling bins to collect used paper
products such as waste papers, posters, letters
and envelopes;

b. Place waste paper recycling bins next to printers
for setting aside waste papers from papers that
have been printed only on one side and can be
reused;

c. Print on both sides of paper;
d.  Write on both sides of paper;
e. Bring your own cup and avoid using paper cup;

f. Reuse stationeries such as file folders and
envelopes;

g. Reuse packaging boxes; and

h.  Ship waste paper, other than those containing
confidential information, to scrap paper
companies or paper mils for them to be
recycled into new paper.

Our finance department shall collect information about
the paper products purchased by the Company and
the waste papers that are shipped to scrap paper
companies or paper mils for the management to
disclose in the ESG report in each financial year
starting from 1 January 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Policies on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials) (Continued)

3.

Water conservation

In Hong Kong and the PRC, fresh water is a precious
resource. We should economise on water, and try our
best to protect water resource, for which we have
developed the following measures:

a. Repair dripping faucet or hose in a timely manner;

b. Adopt effective water-saving production methods
and instruments;

c. Check water consumption regularly; and

d. Minimise water pressure.

Green procurement

Green procurement is aimed at reducing environmental
load. Quality, cost, delivery time are the main focuses
when the Group procures goods or chooses
suppliers, but on top of that, we give priority to
environmentally friendly and energy-saving products.
We adopt the following measures:

a. Give priority to the most energy-efficient
products;

b.  Give priority to effective water-saving products;

c. Require the suppliers to reduce packaging

material; and

d. Remind suppliers that we value environmental
protection and energy saving.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A3. Policies on minimising the Group’s significant impact
on environment and natural resources
The Group manages and minimises the impact it may
cause to the environment, directly or indirectly, through the
following methods:

1. Make sure its business operation complies with the
environmental laws in Hong Kong and its operating
locations, including the PRC;

2. Establish and improve environmental protection
mechanism to ensure that its operation does not
pollute water and land;

3. Monitor gas emissions and use of resources, and
establish emission reduction target;

4. Make sure that in our daily business operation, we
conserve energy, water and other raw materials with
all efforts to reduce direct impact on the environment;

5. Whenever the Company holds banquet, shark fin is out
of question and sustainable seafood should be
served. Order reasonable quantity to reduce waste;

6. Urge the employees to reduce paper usage and adopt
other energy-saving measures; and

7. Cooperate with government agencies and support
environmental organizations’ activities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
A4. Climate Change

Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

The Group recognises the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, and is
committed to managing the potential climate-related risks
which may impact the Group’s business activities.
Therefore, the Group has established a robust set of policy
and procedures to identify, monitor and manage ESG
issues, including climate change. Material climate-related
risks are identified and managed under our enterprise risk
management framework.

Climate-related Issues

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as extreme cold or heat, storms, heavy rains
and typhoons can disrupt operations by damaging the
power grid or communication infrastructures, obstructing
and injuring our employees on the road or during their
work. These events could disrupt supply chains, interrupt
business operations, and damage the Group’s assets. As
countermeasures, the Group will identify these risks and
prioritise those that have a serious impact to take
precautionary measures in the first place. At the same
time, the Group will examine the possibility of a change of
business model to reduce or avoid these serious effects on
business operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
A4. Climate Change (Continued)

Climate-related Issues (Continued)
Transition Risks

There are more stringent climate legislations and regulations
to support the global vision of decarbonisation. For
instance, the Stock Exchange has required the listed
companies to enhance the climate-related disclosures in
their ESG reports. Stricter environmental laws and
regulations may expose enterprises to higher risks of claims
and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also be damaged
due to failure to meet the climate change compliance
requirements. The companys’ related capital investment
and compliance costs thus increase. In response to the
policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks, the
Group regularly monitors existing and emerging trends,
policies and regulations relevant to climate and is prepared
to alert the top management where necessary to avoid cost
increments, non-compliance fines or reputational risks due
to delayed response. Besides, we have set targets to
reduce our energy consumption and emissions during
2021.
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

As employees are important assets of the Company, we care
about their well-being, respect their personality traits, make sure
that all employees are subject to legislative protection and have
equal opportunity in their career path. We also strive to increase
their sense of belonging to the Group.

B1. Policies on compensation, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare
1. Compensation

We offer competitive pay and benefits to our
employees according to their job requirements and
individual performance. We review overall salary and
benefits annually to ensure the Company’s
competitiveness in local markets, and also make
reference to the relevant industries and similar
organisations. Each year, KPIs will provide direction
and guidance to the employees’ individual work plan.
We also assess the achievements and contributions of
the employees to appraise and reward them.

2. Dismissal

We ensure that all employees are subject to
applicable employment laws, including:

a. Whenever an employee resigns or is being laid
off, the human resources department (“HR”)
should interview him or her before the
termination to find out the reason for the
termination;

b. HR is required to issue employment verification
document to the dismissed employee;

c. When the employer terminates an employee’s
employment contract, the dismissed employee
shall be given due notice or wages in lieu of
notice, and his or her annual leave and maternity
leave should not be counted towards the notice
period;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Policies on compensation,
promotion,

dismissal, recruitment,

working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare (Continued)

2. Dismissal (Continued)

d.

An employee cannot be dismissed when she has
been confirmed pregnant or given notice of
pregnancy;

An employee cannot be dismissed when he or
she takes a paid sick leave;

An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her giving evidence or information in any legal
proceeding relating to the enforcement of labour
laws, any industrial accident or any breach of
work safety regulations;

An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her membership in labour union or participation
in labour union activities; and

An employee cannot be dismissed if he or she is
injured on duty, and a compensation agreement
has not yet been reached or the relevant
evaluation certificate has not yet been issued.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Policies on compensation, dismissal, recruitment,

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other

benefits and welfare (Continued)

3. Recruitment and promotion
In the Group, recruitment and promotion should be
fair and open for all employees, and cannot be
affected by age, gender, physical or mental health
status, marital status, family status, race, colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation, sexual
orientation and other factors, and the employees will
be employed, recognised and rewarded for their
contribution, work performance and skills, while the
Company will do its best to provide them with a good
working environment and development opportunity.

4. Working hours and rest-periods
The employees shall enjoy proper rest periods under

the applicable laws and regulations.

Employees are entitled to enjoy the following rest
periods:

a. Each employee can take two days off every 7
days;

b.  Statutory holidays;

c. Paid annual leave prescribed by their employment
contracts;

d. Sick leave;

e. Marriage leave;

f. Maternity leave; and

g. Paternity leave.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Policies on compensation, dismissal, recruitment,

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other

benefits and welfare (Continued)

5. Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare
Equal opportunity must be provided for recruitment,
training, promotion, transfer, remuneration, benefits
and termination of contract. Such opportunities shall
not be affected by factors such as age, gender,
physical or mental health status, marital status, family
status, race, colour, nationality, religion, political
affiliation and sexual orientation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC (FF# A £ A1 E &
A RJA) and other relevant laws and regulations
relating to employment in all material respects.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2. Policies on safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards
We are committed to protecting the health and safety of
the employees and the community, and we require all
employees to comply with all relevant occupational health
and safety regulations, and do our utmost to provide them
with a safe and healthy working environment. As a result,
we have implemented the following measures:

1. Develop internal guidelines to ensure that offices and
factories are in line with or better than the
requirements of relevant laws;

2. Establish safety procedures for the recognised
dangerous work;

3. Provide necessary protective equipment and medical
insurance to the employees;

4.  Ensure that the offices and working environment are
healthy and safe by regularly checking the

machineries and equipment;

5. Establish emergency measures such as fire or
explosion emergency plans;

6. Regularly arrange rescue, fire and evacuation drills;

7.  Establish mechanism to record industrial injuries and

analyse their causes;

8. Provide and maintain an environmental-friendly, healthy
and safe working condition;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2.

B3.

Policies on safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards (Continued)

9.  Drinking is not allowed during the working hours unless
with prior approval;

10. Actively promote environmental protection, health and
safety awareness of the employees, and support
development of environmental protection, health and
safety in the industry;

11. Provide all employees with job information, guidance,
training and supervision as required; and

12. Provide a smoke-free working environment.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC (F#E AR KEMBEH SREE)
and other relevant laws and regulations relating to health
and safety of employees in all material respects.

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. We understand that the employees’
knowledge and skills are essential to the Company’s
operation and business growth. Good development plan
lays a good foundation for the employees to face business
challenge in the future, and it also helps them to grasp
promotion opportunities and fulfill their career aspirations.
We provide the employees with effective training and
develop a clear promotion ladder, ensuring that the
employees have the required skills; we also nurture
outstanding successors for the Group and foster learning
atmosphere. The Group conducts performance evaluation
annually, and provide the staff with appropriate training,
and offer job, development and promotion opportunities for
outstanding employees based on the assessment result.
Under the Group’s human resource management system
requirements, the HR manager is responsible for carrying
out related assessment and training.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour

The Group firmly adopts a zero-tolerance policy on child
and forced labour, and strictly forbids such conduct which
is prohibited by international standards and relevant local
regulations of the places in which we operate. In all part of
our business operation (including our subcontractors or
suppliers), child and forced labour is not allowed and we
treat child and forced labour as a serious crime. Our
policies on preventing child and forced labour are as
follows:

1. Child labour refers to employment of people under 16
years of age, and if any country or region in which the
Company or its subsidiary operates has a more
stringent definition of child labour, such definition shall
prevail;

2. Forced labour refers to people providing labour or
service against their will, as a punishment or under
threat;

3. Hired employees must be at least 16 years of age. The
Group shall never recruit child labour and forced
labour, and if it knows that any of its suppliers or
subcontractors employ any child and forced labour,
the Group will not conduct business with them
anymore;

4.  Employees under 18 may not engage in any potentially
hazardous work and are prohibited from working at
night lest it might affect their education;

5. Before hiring any job applicant, HR should take
effective procedures to verify his or her age. HR
should check documents that can prove the age of
the applicant, including government-issued photo
identification and birth certificate, driver’s license,
household register, academic certificates or any other
credentials that can prove the date of birth. HR must
ensure that the applicant’s appearance is consistent
with the photograph on the identification card;

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour
(Continued)

6.

HR, especially those responsible for recruitment, should
take part in prevention training about child and forced
labour;

If employment of child labour under the legal minimum
age is found in the Group, we will see to the best
interests of the child, and take the following measures
in accordance with the relevant legislations:

a. Take the child away from the workplace
immediately, and ensure the safety of the child;

b. Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to
verify all relevant information, confirm whether the
child is under 16 years of age, sever labour
relations with the child, notify the local social
welfare institution, and take remedial measures to
protect the child’s best interest;

c. Send the child to a special occupational health
inspection institution to do medical check-up to
confirm the child’s physical and mental health,
and conduct investigation to fully understand the
child’s situation;

d. Provide the child with re-employment when he or
she reaches legal minimum age for employment;
and

e. Immediately find out the problems in the hiring
process of the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90 working days.
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#HE @ SOCIAL (Continued)
B4. BHIEETI REH S T BB K (&) B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour
(Continued)

8. WEARKEEFPEREHLET @ F 8. If forced labour is found in the Group, we will take the
98 1L FRAB VA 2 8 B SRR ER following measures in accordance with the relevant
AT 6 - legislations:

a. VEBZBREITEEIE a. Take the labour away from the workplace
B MRS IE H® immediately and ensure the safety of the labour;
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b. Iﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂj\ﬁﬁfn%ﬁﬁﬁ b. Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to

CZEFBMEBEER verify all relevant information and confirm whether
aﬁ?%%/\%%‘%%?ﬁ il the person is subject to compulsory labour;
BT
c. BZBEBIEETHEMNE c. Send the labour to a special occupational health
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WEREE -

BT LA Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

FRN - AEBRFABEERTHEHCES During the Year, the Group has complied with the Labour

EP%AE LB EERPEARSL Law of the PRC (% A RH£FEI 25 E))X) and the Labour

MBS EEREAREBEBHEA Contract Law of the PRC (F# AR KEAE L84 [E)E) and

MHEERER - other relevant laws and regulations relating to employment

in all material respects.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

B5. Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain
We attach importance to developing and maintaining long-
term relationships with our suppliers, and look forward to
forming long-term partnerships with them. We will take a
fair and open principle on procurement of materials and
services. We will only cooperate with the suppliers that
share common moral values and standards with us. The
Group also supports and encourages the suppliers to
promote efficient use of resources and environmental
protection and fulfill corporate social responsibility:

1. We advocate the principle of fair and open competition,
and develop and maintain long-term relationships with
the suppliers and contractors based on mutual trust;

2. We have strict ethical standards in the procurement of
materials and services to ensure the quality of the
finished products and maintain the continued
confidence of the customers, suppliers and general
public;

3.  We review our suppliers and assess them based on
price, quality, suitability and demand, and only those
rated as qualified can be our approved suppliers. We
only purchase from the approved suppliers;

4.  We conduct follow-up assessment on the suppliers
regularly and, if necessary, audit them through a third
party organisation. When a supplier is found to be
inconsistent with the Company’s policy or contractual
requirements, the Company will cease future
cooperation until the situation has been improved;

5. In an unprejudiced way, we choose appropriate,
capable and responsible suppliers;

6. We support and encourage the suppliers to improve
the environmental-friendliness of their products and
services, and their employees’ benefits and
protection;

7. The suppliers must comply with the relevant laws,
regulations and contractual obligations; and

8. We adopt effective monitoring and management
systems to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other
misconducts in procurement and bidding processes.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B6. Policies on health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

Health and safety of products and services

We are committed to providing the customers with high-
quality products and services, settling customer complaints
effectively, continuously improving service level and
ensuring customer satisfaction. Accordingly, the following
measures are taken:

1. Make sure that the products and services comply with
related laws and standards;

2. Provide the customers with accurate product
information and high-quality products, and develop
return policy and after-sale services for related
products;

3. Take the initiative to explain the problem and find a
mutually satisfactory solution for the customers if there
is a problem with a product; and

4. Keep proper records after handling a customer’s
complaint, arrange the relevant department to review
the complaint and develop measures to prevent the
recurrence of similar complaints so that the Group’s
service quality keeps improving.

Advertising, labelling and protection of customer
information

Customer information will only be used for specific
business purpose and not for other unrelated purposes. All
employees should handle and use customer information
with extreme caution, protect customer information, and
comply with the requirements under relevant laws and
regulations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
Production Safety Law of the PRC (FZEARLFEZ 2 £
EEJK) and other relevant laws and regulations relating to
health and safety of products and services, advertising,
labelling and privacy in all material respects.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering

Ethics and integrity are the cornerstones of the Company’s
success. We adopt a zero tolerance approach to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. In their daily work,
the Directors, management and staff must comply with all
related national and local government laws and regulations
on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. All employees are not only responsible for
understanding and complying with the above regulations on
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, but also have an obligation to report violation to
the appropriate person. Any person who contravenes the
regulations will be subject to disciplinary sanction. We will
make every effort to protect the informer and the received
information. However, if an informer’s intention is to harm
others, they may be subject to disciplinary punishment.

1. Soliciting or accepting benefits

Any employee (including the Directors, management
and all full-time, part-time, hourly-paid and temporary
workers) of the Group cannot, directly, indirectly or in
any manner, solicit or accept any form of benefits
from a third party, including, but not limited to,
money, gift, excessive entertainment and hospitality,
subsidized travel and accommodation, loan,
guarantee, preferential credit terms, fee, reward,
position, employment, contract, service, privilege and
exemption of all or part of the responsibilities that
ought to be fulfilled, or do anything that might be
seen as bribery. The employees should reject any
interests and benefits relating directly or indirectly to
the Group’s business if such benefits would hamper
their objectivity, harm or damage the interests of the
Group, or cause bias or misconduct.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

1.

Soliciting or accepting benefits (Continued)

In social events such as festivals, activities,
entertainments and other daily routine, refusing to
accept a modest gift may be considered impolite or
lacking social graces. With that in mind, the
employees may consider accepting benefits offered on
a voluntary basis under the following principles:

a. Receiving such benefits will not affect his or her
performance and decision;

b. He or she will not feel the need to reciprocate;
and

c. He or she can openly discuss the benefits.

If the Group finds out any employee’s inappropriate
behaviour of soliciting or accepting benefits, it will call
the police and terminate the employment relation with
such employee.

Providing benefits

In any case, any employee shall not provide bribe or
improper benefits to any person or organisation in
order to seek personal gain or benefit the Group. If
the Group finds out any employee using bribery, it will
call the police and terminate the employment relation
with such employee.




ZEEG e

B7. BHLLEERE B FE RERKEEDN
BUR (8)
3. HF

ERHAMBEED RS — AR
& HBEfES-ABXEKX
i LA AR 556 99 75 S 2 ] N8
MESK - BIEBILBRFE - FTARE
BTS2H - B - BEEAE
RITR - AEBWMEREMES
ETHRITR - HEREREIA
K& IEEREEREAR -

R

EfRIANE BAERRER B - (&
BEsm— A%z XBEFES
— ANEXEKX - BBLHGFE
FREBNFFEESAAR T
BRFRAN ST RREE T
BRENFZ2E - BRI HIE
AIREET R - ARE N IREM
BREETHFTR  $ERER
BARKIEREEBRE -

FEBEE

AR E A - SBAE
MR EREHIDEE S KR - RfE
BLBESEUAENBE - KE
B AR EMEEET - HY
RZBEERAEARRETS °

RIE - HERELARE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

3.

Extortion

Making any unwarranted demand by threat in order to
seek benefits for oneself or for another person or with
intent to cause loss to another person shall be
considered as extortion. All employees shall not
participate in, assist in or cover up any kind of
extortion. If the Group finds out any employee
committing extortion, it will call the police and
terminate the employment relation with such
employee.

Fraud

Using any means of deception in order to seek
benefits for oneself or for another person or with
intent to cause loss to another person shall be
considered fraud. Common employee fraud includes
embezzlement, wage fraud and stealing company
assets. All employees shall not participate in, assist in
or cover up any fraud. If the Group finds out any
employee committing fraud, it will call the police and
terminate the employment relation with such
employee.

Money Laundering

Money laundering refers to an individual or institution
attempting to conceal the source of illicit money, or
makes such money looks legitimate in any way. The
Group will not tolerate any employee’s participation in,
aiding and abetting any form of money laundering.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering (Continued)

5.

Money Laundering (Continued)

The Company has established an anti-money
laundering team. The general manager is the team
leader and responsible for organising the anti-money
laundering team. The team’s main responsibilities
include organising and implementing anti-money
laundering tasks, investigating reported money
laundering, arranging anti-money laundering training,
working with regulatory and judiciary authorities to
investigate suspicious transactions of funds, as well as
paying attention to requirements of and updates on
anti-money laundering laws and regulations.

Anti-money laundering procedures include identifying
customers, keeping transaction records, reporting and
following-up investigation of suspicious transactions,
and anti-money laundering training.

a.  Ildentifying custormers

In dealing with new customers, salespeople must
establish a high degree of anti-money laundering
awareness, comprehensively grasp the
customers’ information through communication
with prospective customers, thereby running the
first check on the customers. After successfully
securing the client, regular contact is required to
grasp the customers’ updates. If an abnormal
situation occurs, the salesperson needs to timely
communicate with the relevant departments.

b.  Keeping transaction records

Salespeople and accounting personnel should
keep customer identification information, including
register customer identification and related
information, keep all sorts of records and
information reflecting the payment agency’s
customer identification process, and keep
transaction records such as each transaction’s
information, business voucher, ledger and
necessary documents and other relevant
information to reflect the details of each
transaction to ensure that each transaction is
traceable.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

5.  Money Laundering (Continued)

C.

Reporting and following-up investigation of
suspicious transaction

If any salespeople and accounting staff find out
a suspicious transaction, they need to report
such transaction immediately to the corporate
headquarters’ anti-money laundering team. The
team analyses and investigates all reported
suspicious transactions. If there are reasonable
grounds to believe that the transaction or the
customer has ties with money laundering,
terrorism and other criminal activities, relevant
authorities including the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit (JFIU) of the HKSAR
Government will be notified.

Anti-money laundering training

All employees should attend anti-money
laundering training at least once a year. The
training includes learning the harmful effects of
money laundering, anti-money laundering
regulations, the role of the employees in anti-
money laundering, how to identify suspicious
transactions, ways to report suspicious
transactions, and the consequences if one fails
to comply with anti-money laundering
regulations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with
the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC (
# AR HEMBE R %), the Criminal Law of the
PRC (R ZE ARHFBIE), the Law of the PRC
Against Unfair Competition (7 A R £ & 7
EE#F)X) and other laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
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COMMUNITY
B8. Policies on community engagement to understand the

needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests

Community engagement is important to the Group’s long-
term development. We are committed to promoting the
development and construction of the community in which
we operate. We benefit the community through a variety of
actions, such as investment and contributing money, time,
products, services, influence, management knowledge and
other resources.

We participate in community building through three main
ways as follows:

1. Organise, facilitate and support the staff to take part
in volunteer services, such as regularly visiting people
who need help, arranging outdoor activities for
underprivileged groups and holding Blood Donation
Day.

2. By means of donation, we donate money, goods or
services to directly support or fund the projects of
various social service agencies. In addition to our own
donation, we also appeal to the Company’s
stakeholders (including the employees and customers)
for donations.

3.  We endeavour to provide employment opportunities to
the underprivileged and create a win-win situation,
such as hiring disabled people who have completed
retraining courses, giving priority to purchasing from
the suppliers who hire disabled people, or
participating in a variety of mentorship programs.
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COMMUNITY (Continued)

The Group maintains an effective environmental management
system which was awarded an 1SO14001:2004 certificate by
Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center on 14 July 2010.
Such system underwent another audit in accordance with the
requirements under 1ISO14001:2015 and passed the examination
and evaluation of ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. in 2022. The Group was awarded a
Certificate of Environmental Management System Certification*
(CGRIBEEBRAEFFESE)) (Certificate No.: 02022E0883R4M) by
Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center on 8 July 2022
confirming that the environmental management system of both
the Group’s businesses of industrial automatic integrated
equipment (integrated equipment for steel wire products) design
and manufacturing and general machinery components and parts
processing complies with the Environmental Management
Systems — Requirements with Guidance for Use* ((3R3% & 1248
RERKFAEM)) (GB/T24001-2016/1ISO14001:2015).

In October 2019, the Group obtained the certification for
ISO45001 occupational health and safety management system
for the first time from Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification
Center. The standard sets higher requirements for quality control
and operation model of an enterprise by comprehensively
regulating and improving its occupational safety and hygiene
management with the goal of delivering comprehensive
economic benefits. In 2022, the Group underwent another audit
in accordance with the requirements under [1SO45001:2018
occupational healthy & safety management system and passed
the examination and evaluation of ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification
Center (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. The Group was awarded a
Certificate of Occupational Health & Safety Management System
Certification* ((BERRELZE2EIREEREHFE)) (Certificate No.:
02022S0839R1M) by Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification
Center on 8 July 2022.

The Group strictly controls the emissions of waste and
greenhouse gas from its equipment production processes. It also
ensures that all emissions conform to the environmental quality
standards stipulated by the local governments of the regions in
which the Group operates. Relevant laws, regulations and rules
include but are not limited to the Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC (FEIRZER#E), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (% Bl K &,55 %
B767%), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution (4 BI7K)52F58)%), the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the laws of Hong Kong) and Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Cap. 603 of the laws of Hong
Kong).
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Air Emissions

Air pollutants also come from vehicles and generally include
nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur oxides (SO,) and respirable
suspended particles (RSP) (also known as particulate matter
(PM)). Relevant data for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2022 were as follows:

2021%E12H31H
31 December 2021

2022%E12H31H
31 December 2022

AEILINO,)
Nitrogen oxides (NO,)

B &L #(SO)

Sulphur oxides (SO,)

£2)% FERL(RSP)

Respirable suspended particles (RSP)
ZRARMEE

Air pollutants in total

it 2 WA HER
BERBRESEREEDY  PIWENHE
e KOHREFIREBIARER - R=REBH
Mg aE — albix R HE MR =R ()
I KE(CH,) ~ BETZAN0) - RERE
BEREMRMIKBEE EFANETERAZ
— M-SR BBAREB RN T
ZRERE - AEERNEAFTEBTR
DR R EERERTERNERIAE
ERERBAER
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47,093.27 ()
47,093.27 (grammes)

47,413.67 (%)

47,413.67 (grammes)

842.49 (72) 848.22 (%)
842.49 (grammes) 848.22 (grammes)
3,467.38 (5%) 3,490.97 (3=)

3,467.38 (grammes)
51,403.14 (%)
51,403.14 (grammes)

3,490.97 (grammes)
51,752.86 (52)
51,752.86 (grammes)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas comes from all sorts of daily activities, such as
the use of electricity, water and gas as well as driving. Total
greenhouse gas emissions include carbon dioxide and other
greenhouse gases, such as methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide
(N,O). The increase in greenhouse gas emission is one of the
major causes of global warming. In particular, carbon dioxide is
the principal greenhouse gas emitted from human activities. The
Group strives to reduce burning and improve energy and
resource efficiency in its daily operation so as to manage its
greenhouse gas emissions.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2022 were as follows:

2021%F12H31H 2022%F12H31H
31 December 2021 31 December 2022
HITERERE B BB PR 155,193.05 (F52) 156,248.89 (F52)
Direct emissions from combustion of fuels in motor 155,193.05 (kilogrammes) 156,248.89 (kilogrammes)
vehicles
BB N ARIEEE RS AR BE B 494,416.11 (F52) 714,199.08 (T 52)
Indirect emissions from electricity purchased from 494,416.11 (kilogrammes) 714,199.08 (kilogrammes)
power companies
HEBFAMEENHEERENR 4,280.59 (F3) 6,423.59 (F7)
Indirect emissions due to disposal of paper waste 4,280.59 (kilogrammes)  6,423.59 (kilogrammes)
R B KBE IR A B B FR V5 K B 5| By R B HE 14,381.99 (F ) 12,972.89 (F %)
Indirect emissions due to sewage processing by 14,381.99 (kilogrammes) 12,972.89 (kilogrammes)
sewage processing companies
BRERBATRE 668.27 () 889.84 (M)
Greenhouse gas emissions in total 668.27 (tonnes) 889.84 (tonnes)

SRR EE
AEEEESHERERAKE  KAEEE
EEAETEFK £EFKEBEBBEESK
EREEHIUKEEERAAHETH—
BRI - BN - REBAESKSFRAE
HEHEBRARNKEBRARNKRA  BE
2022F 12 A1 B IEFE » £)E 5K B
ME - LEBTEE L£LTEESHER
REMZRENA o

Effluents Management

The production workshops of the Group do not require water
supply. The Group only produces domestic sewage that is
transmitted to #E#HFIL/KEIEAFRAF for unified treatment
through sewage pipelines. During the period, the domestic
sewage of the Group has been tested by # 5% i B EHE A
fR 72 7] every year. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
potential of hydrogen (pH), chemical oxygen demand (COD) and
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) of the domestic sewage were
all within required limits.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

In addition to the emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse
gas, the Group also produces hazardous waste from using paint
in its spraying and painting processes. The intensity of
hazardous waste produced for the year ended 31 December
2022 was 0.0343 (2021: 0.021).

Property Services Co., Ltd.*) to transport and handle its
domestic waste. As at 31 December 2022, the impact on the
environment was negligible with 1,504 (2021: 1,150) bins of
waste in total being transported and handled and the intensity of
non-hazardous waste produced for the year ended 31
December 2022 being 5.64 (2021: 4.31).

The Group strives to adopt and implement the policies relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as
set out in this ESG Report in the annual report in order to
mitigate such pollution.

The information on hazardous and non-hazardous waste for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 were as follows:

2021%£12H31H
31 December 2021

20225%12H31H
31 December 2022
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BEEEY
Hazardous waste
BEEEY
Non-hazardous waste

B REERFEKEE
AEBHEREEREEEZAEEEH
EWEH  BHE2022F12A318 ILFE
FTEEMEEREERE 5283,412.34
(20214 :196,196.87) * AR EFEE A
#1,133.64F LB (LA F & & i7) (2021
F 78478 FFLEF (AT REAL)) o

REBREKBEETBEREELTFESK - HE
202212 A B IEFEFMEAENEKE
€ 54,633.18 (20214 : 5,136.43) ' 1M #E
K#E AB18,532.72 (2021 %F :
20,545.72) °
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16.89 (M) 29.07 (Hg)
16.89 (tonnes) 29.07 (tonnes)
17.25 (&) 22.56 (M)

17.25 (tonnes) 22.56 (tonnes)

Indirect Energy and Water Consumption in Total

The daily indirect energy consumption of the Group mainly
comes from purchased electricity. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the intensity of energy consumption was
283,412.34 (2021: 196,196.87) and energy consumption in total
was 1,133.64 kWh in 000’s (2021: 784.78 kWh in 000’s).

The total water consumption of the Group mainly consists of
domestic sewage. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
intensity of water consumption was 4,633.18 (2021: 5,136.43)
and the water consumption in total was 18,532.72 (2021:
20,545.72).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Indirect Energy and Water Consumption in Total (Continued)

The Group enjoys stable water supply as it purchases water
from EIFTHEKKER A E (Wuxi Waterworks Co., Ltd."), a
sizeable state-owned enterprlse and hence has no difficulty in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

The Group strives to adopt and implement the policies relating
to the efficient use of resources as set out in this ESG Report in
the annual report in order to attain the goal of reducing energy
and water consumption. They contributed to a reduction in
energy and water consumption when compared to the last
reporting period.

Packaging Material Used for Finished Products

The Group properly packs its products according to the
requirements of the customers before delivery so as to prevent
damage during transportation. For the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2022, the types and total amount of
packaging material used were as follows:

2021%£12H31H
31 December 2021

20225%12H31H
31 December 2022

N

Wood

BER(5)
Stretch film (wrap)
RB IR

Bubble film

PE&

PE film

HE2022F12A31BILFEFMFERANE
MR E 50.039 (20214 : 0.024) °

AEBAREXBEHHRRERAAERL
REEEBEARE ASRESRETIR
BEEREINAFRRE L& MER
BETERABEAREHRRERAAER
EREAZENRR  UBFRHERERX
RERHRE ©

18.27 (Wg) 31 (W)
18.27 (tonnes) (tonnes)
1.13 (Mg) 1.33 (W)
1.13 (tonnes) 1.33 (tonnes)
N/A 0.18 (Mg)

38 0.18 (tonne)

N/A 0.6 (Mg )

i 6 (tonne)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the intensity of
packaging material used was 0.039 (2021: 0.024).

The daily operation of the Group has no material impact on the
environment and natural resources. The Group will continue to
adopt and implement the policies relating to minimising its
significant impact on the environment and natural resources as
set out in this ESG Report in the annual report in order to
safeguard the environment and natural resources.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)

Health and Safety

The Group provides compensation to employees suffering from
work-related injuries or occupational illnesses in accordance with
the laws, rules and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC in
relation to the compensation for employment and occupational
illness, including the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.
282 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Standard of Compensation
for Work-Related Injuries and the Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurance. The Group may also consider providing
compensation beyond statutory requirements to employees who
are injured, died or suffer from occupational illness at work. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group maintained good
production safety with no major work-related injury, accident or
death. There is no lost day due to work injury.

The Group maintains all 5 major social security schemes, namely
retirement, medical, work-related injury, maternity and
unemployment insurance, as well as housing provident fund for
all of its employees with 100% participation rate in strict
compliance with national laws and regulations. It also makes full
and punctual payments to these social security schemes and
provident fund. The Group implements standard working hours
of 40 hours per week in strict compliance with the working-hour
and rest-time requirements under the Labour Law of the PRC
(P E A R A FIE 4 8))K). Holidays are provided during national
holidays according to statutory requirements while substitute
holidays or overtime payments are granted in accordance with
the regulations if an employee is required to work on statutory
holidays. Employees’ legal right to paid leave is fully protected in
strict compliance with the Calculation Method of Paid Annual
Leave of Staff (BIHEFHFHRBILEFEHE)). The Group
offers entrance, on-the-job and exit occupational health checks
to employees who are exposed to occupational health hazards
in accordance with the Technical Specifications for Occupational
Health Surveillance (B fi 5T B & £ 17 47 €0 ))(GBZ188-2014),
and removes employees who are found in the checks to have
occupational ilinesses from their original positions.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)

Total employees

The Group had a total of 192 full-time employees as at 31
December 2022, and all employees were located in China.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group adjusted
the number of employees in accordance with its business

needs.

Set forth below are the Group’s employee turnover rates by

gender, age group and geographical region:

BE BE

20225 12A31HIEEE 2021F12A31HILEE
5l For the year ended For the year ended
Category 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
74 35]
By gender
S 10% 14%
Male 10% 14%
gl 3% 2%
Female 3% 2%
RERHER
By age group
30BRIA T 3% 6%
30 or below 3% 6%
31E405% 6% 5%
31-40 6% 5%
41 £508% 2% 6%
41-50 2% 6%
51 2% 0%
51 or above 2% 0%
BMEES
By geographical region
H 100% 100%
China 100% 100%
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)

Total employees (Continued)
Set forth below is an analysis of the Group’s employees as at
31 December 2022 by gender and age group:

5l EEAH Bt
Category Number of employees Percentage
7435

By gender

S 149 78%
Male 149 78%
g 43 22%
Female 43 22%
RERHER

By age group

B0 IAT 24 24%
30 or below 24 24%
31 E405% 85 85%
31-40 85 85%
41 E505% 47 47%
41-50 47 47%
S1pR A E 36 36%
51 or above 36 36%
2% R Ryl Development and training

AEBTEHREEREZEMNEIIRER
e -\ DRBREENFERLH  %F
BISFREEBFIRE

a. AHEY — SEEEEEIEAR
BAKENBER  XE - AEHIER
BRAREMEMMAH

b. BAEI — SHABRKBENES
AT

c. HEBEI — BREEATAKED
Em REHERLEHABNHEER
OREFRBEE  WHEREENE
EREFIABRITEEMNEEEHRE
B o
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The Group provides comprehensive training and development
opportunities to its employees on a regular basis. The trainings
are arranged according to the needs of employees, which were
identified annually by individual departments:

a. Orientation training — To familiarise employees with the
Group’s objectives, culture, rules and regulations, safety
and product-related knowledge on the first day of work;

b. Pre-job training — To familiarise new employees or
transferred employees with their new duties;

c. On-the-job training — To ensure that the employees are
familiar with the Group’s products, to sharpen the sales
technique and customer service standard of sales and
marketing personnel and to ensure the production and
quality control personnel perform proper quality control
procedures.




FASERIEE @
%R Rl ()

RIE - HERELARE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Development and training (Continued)

INTEHINAEE R TR REEBRIE D Set forth below are the number and percentage of training hours

BETHIBIIRE B

completed by the Group’s employees by gender and employee

category:
#E2022F12A31BILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

RESER
gl 5 ey sl
iE3 4= 074
Bt g3 % of training
1% 31l B 2% 3% 31l B 8 £ 32 21| B B hours by
EEEHH Male Female Total employee
Employee category training hours training hours training hours category
=RREBEAR 90 28 118 6%
Senior management 90 28 118 6%
RREEAB 247 89 336 18%
Middle management 247 89 336 18%
Hitvfg & 1,102 298 1,400 76%
Other employees 1,102 298 1,400 76%
B 1,439 415 1,854 100%
Total 1,439 415 1,854 100%

REREI S HERE B DL 78% 22% 100%

% of training hours by gender 78% 22% 100%

#HE2021F12A31BILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

RESER
gl 5 ey sl
BEE S
Bt g % of training
3% 3l 6% 2 & 5l B 2 4 3 2l B B hours by
EEEHH Male Female Total employee
Employee category training hours training hours training hours category
BREEAEB 85 24 109 6%
Senior management 85 24 109 6%
RREEAB 276 97 373 21%
Middle management 276 97 873 21%
EHfbfE B 1,036 267 1,303 73%
Other employees 1,036 267 1,303 73%
B 1,397 388 1,785 100%
Total 1,397 388 1,785 100%

RIMBIE D E BN R St 78% 22% 100%

% of training hours by gender 78% 22% 100%
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)

Supply chain management

The Group purchases raw materials and equipment based on its
own needs, the specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, and the reputation, after-sales service and delivery
time of the supplier. The Group compares different suppliers to
select qualified suppliers (based on their product specifications,
product compliances, production management, quality
management, environmental friendliness and also corporate
social responsibility performances) before the Group enters into
contract with the qualified suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group also considers whether
the equipment is energy efficient and environmentally friendly.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, all of the Group’s
294 suppliers were situated in the PRC.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the ESG principles
that the Group has adopted in the management of its business
operations. In order to ensure that the components and raw
materials meet the requisite safety and quality standards, the
Group adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection (including but
not limited to whether they provide high quality raw materials,
whether they maintain a high standard on environmental
protection and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether their prices are comparable to market rate, and
the location of their factories) and continuously monitors existing
suppliers on an annual basis based on criteria such as quality,
defect rate, delivery punctuality rate and responsiveness.

Whether a supplier will continue to be included in the Group’s
list of approved suppliers depends on the score it achieved in
the annual evaluation. The awareness of environmental
protection is one of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.




FAR#EYIEE @

EmiRE R E
EREEHAEBENFENNEZHRES -
AEEFERERFEGN —EmmE
REBZEBERE AEERBEEEEREE
TR E ST - AEERKME®
MNEEREZE AEBEMNEESZHEE
HETRE - UFTHEEEHEER B K
M WEKNERE-—DNBRZEREE &
AEBFRBELZEFAALETRES - &
RAFEEFPEX AEBEFBERLTHA
BRFRERSETEBELHAS  mE
AEBEHFEENEHFERETEE  ANEE
1Rk BE [ W B B R 1 o

HZE2022F 128318 LFE - AEBW
EEMEROK BREEREBEDRRE
REZ2HERER  WBERREEF
M BRI o

MEEERENLR
AEEERTERAREL H MEEME
MEZE®HER AHLERPR - REEK
FEMEBARMERARER LT AR
Ko Ho Al FOGBEEHE ©

RIE - HERELARE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Product assurance and recall

Product quality is crucial to the Group’s continued success. The
Group places strong emphasis on achieving a consistently high
quality for its products. To achieve such purpose, stringent
quality control measures were implemented throughout the
production process to ensure the quality and safety of our
products. The Group’s quality control department performs
regular inspections to evaluate the effectiveness of the quality
control measures and further enhance these measures when
necessary. For any of the Group’s equipment which is found to
fail to meet customer requirements during installation, fine-
tuning, testing or operation, the Group will arrange staff to
perform on-site repair and assist fine-tuning and testing as soon
as possible. For any spare parts sold by the Group which fail to
meet quality standards, the Group will arrange recall of the
relevant batch as soon as possible.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
experience any product recall, material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to product health and safety or
receive any material complaints from its customers.

Intellectual Property Rights and Information Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the Group itself and
its products in the PRC to foster its corporate image. The Group
relies on the relevant laws and regulations to protect its brand
names, trademarks and other intellectual property rights.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)

Intellectual Property Rights and Information Security
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was not
aware of any material infringement by the Group of any
intellectual property rights owned by any third parties. Further,
there were no pending or threatened material claims made
against the Group with respect to the infringement of intellectual

property rights owned by the Group.

Anti-corruption

According to the Group’s anti-corruption policy, all employees
shall abide by the laws and regulations of the PRC and shall not
engage in any illegal activities. Employees shall uphold the code
of ethics, advocate fair competition and act against bribery. Any
bribery, fraud, money laundering and embezzlement are
prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any improper benefits
including banquets, gifts, securities, valuables and high-
expenditure entertainment activities from business partners,
suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any alleged case in
violation of laws, regulations, code of conduct or the Group’s
policies, the Group will investigate and impose disciplinary
actions on the offenders after verification. Directors and
employees received training from time to time to ensure that
they comply and are familiar with the anti-corruption guidelines,
policies and procedures of the Group.

The Group has maintained reporting channels for whistle-
blowers to disclose, in confidence, information in relation to any
suspected misconduct, malpractice or non-compliance. Upon
receiving such report, the Group will issue a notice of
acknowledgment, assess the validity and relevance of the report
and determine the needs to carry out a full investigation. If an
investigation is necessary, the Group will investigate the matter
reported in detail. Such report will be handled with caution and
the concern raised by any whistle-blower will be fairly and duly
addressed to.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group complied
with all applicable laws relating to the prohibition of corruption
and bribery of the PRC and there was no concluded legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

*  For identification purposes only

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present this report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the PRC and has its principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suite 2703, 27th Floor, Shui
On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Group’s registered office and its principal place of business in
the PRC are situated at 1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are research and
development, design, manufacture, equipment supply,
installation, testing, repair and maintenance of production lines
for manufacturing steel wire products in the PRC. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Five-
Year Financial Summary of this annual report and the
paragraphs below.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance. No important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year to the
date of this annual report.
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KEY RISK FACTORS

Set out below are the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is subject to government
policy, and relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension
of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and
markets as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of
such changes.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in
some parts of its business to improve performance and
efficiency of the Group. While gaining the benefits from external
service providers, the management realises that such operational
dependency may pose a threat of vulnerability to unexpected
deterioration or lapses in service including reputation damage,
business disruption and monetary losses. To address such
uncertainties, the Group engages only reputable third-party
service providers and closely monitors their performance.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer
to the Prospectus.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual
needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all
employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace
accidents are found during the Year.

The Group places great emphasis on working relationships with
suppliers to meet our customers’ needs in an effective and
efficient manner. Our departments work closely with our
suppliers to make sure the tendering and procurement process
is conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s
requirements and standards are also well-communicated to
suppliers before the commencement of a project.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Report of the Directors

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analysis on customer feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only
quality products and services are offered to the customers.

The Group is an integrated production solution provider of steel
wire products in the PRC. We provide customised and
distinctive solutions to steel wire product manufacturers in
accordance with their production needs and specifications. As
such, we can provide one-stop service including undertaking the
construction of comprehensive production lines (scope of work
covering technical design, equipment supply, installation and
fine-tuning and testing of the production lines), repair and
maintenance or replacement of certain parts within their existing
production lines or supply of equipment and machines on a
standalone basis to upgrade their existing production lines.

The Group has, on average, over 3 to 5 years of business
relationship with the key suppliers, which are mainly located in
Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang and Shandong in Eastern China as
well as Henan in Central China. The suppliers mainly
manufacture customised parts and components and electrical
units according to specific designs. Our largest supplier mainly
provides customised parts and components according to
specific designs and is located in Jiangsu in Eastern China. In
general, suppliers grant a payment term of 30-90 days.
Payables are usually settled by electronic remittance or
commercial bill of exchange within the credit period.

The Group’s key products are customised in accordance with
production needs and specifications. The quality of the parts and
components provided by the supplies are vital. The Group has
formulated the Supplier Management System* (i /& &2 & I2 i &)
and the Supplier Certification and Assessment Management
System* (HEEREZSZEEHE) to assess, manage and
control the suppliers and ensure that the products procured by
the Group satisfy its requirement. The Group continuously
monitors the qualified suppliers to ensure the long-term and
stable supply of satisfactory products and services from them.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any material
contractual dispute with its suppliers.
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The Group treasures customers’ opinions and advice, which are
collected channels to
understand the customers’ preferences and needs. It also
regularly analyses the feedback and opinions of the customers
so as to develop new products and provide quality services in
accordance with their needs.

in various forms through several

The Group’s customers include several leading steel wire
product manufacturers in the PRC. According to our track
records, our key customers include companies listed on the
Stock Exchange, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Apart from domestic sales, the
Group also exports its products. Our sales contracts usually
provide for a product delivery date of about five to nine months
from the contract signing date. The relatively long manufacturing
cycle is primarily attributed to the time required for product
design and manufacturing, delivery, on-site installation, fine-
tuning, testing and trial production.

The Group has, on average, over 5 years of business
relationship with the key customers. It offers different credit
terms to the customers according to its assessment of their
business scales and financial positions. According to the average
number of days for receipt of payments, and the average
number of days spent on different stages of its business models
adopted for the major production lines and standalone
machines, the payment terms granted by the Group to its
customers requires (i) receipt of 10% to 30% of contract value
within 90 days from the contract signing date, (i) receipt of
30% to 40% of contract value upon completion of production,
(iii) receipt of 20% to 40% of contract value upon completion of
installation, fine-tuning and testing, and (iv) receipt of quality
warranty payment (10%) within one year. The Group
continuously monitors and controls the accounts receivable from
its customers.

During the reporting period, the Group did not suffer from any
material business loss due to material delinquency or default by
its customers with financial difficulties.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five
largest customers accounted for 32.4% (2021: 49.0%) and
73.6% (2021: 90.1%), respectively, of the Group’s total revenue
for the Year.

During the Year, aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest
and five largest suppliers accounted for 20.7% (2021: 18.2%)
and 33.7% (2021: 36.0%), respectively, of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
(who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers, raw material suppliers and
subcontractors during the Year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 208
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of the
Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 131 of
this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the
Year and material factors underlying its results and financial
position are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the
Company were RMB508.2 million (2021: RMB482.4 million).

DIVIDEND

For the Year, the Board resolved to recommend a final dividend
of RMBO0.08 per share (before tax) totaling RMB10.24 million
(before tax), subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 9
June 2023 (the “AGM”). The final dividend, if approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid to the Shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 30 June 2023. Dividends payable to the
holders of the Company’s domestic shares shall be paid in
RMB, whereas dividends payable to the holders of the
Company’s H shares shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars.
Dividends on H share are also subject to PRC Withholding
Income Tax. It is expected that the final dividend will be payable
on or around Monday, 17 July 2023 and a detailed plan of
distribution will be set out in the circular of the Company to be
despatched on or around 24 April 2023.

TAX REDUCTION AND EXEMPTION

(FOR H SHAREHOLDERS)

Non-resident enterprise shareholders

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (FFZE A
REFMBEMETEFRE) and its implementation rules, which came
into force on 1 January 2008 and other relevant rules, where the
Company distributes any dividend to non-resident enterprise
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
for H Shares of the Company, it is required to withhold
enterprise income tax at the rate of 10%. Any H Shares
registered in the name of non-individual registered shareholders,
including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or
other organisations or groups, will be treated as Shares being
held by non-resident enterprise shareholders, and consequently
will be subject to the withholding of the enterprise income tax.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Non-resident individual shareholders

According to regulations by the State Administration of Taxation
(Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) and relevant laws and
regulations, if the individual H Share shareholders are residents
of Hong Kong or Macau or those countries which have entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of
10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of these shareholders.
If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will make applications on their behalf to seek entitlement of the
relevant agreed preferential treatments pursuant to the relevant
tax treaty. If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of
those countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less
than 20%, the Company will withhold and pay individual income
tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty. If
the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20%, or those countries which
have not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or under
any other circumstances, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of these
shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 10 May 2023 to Friday, 9 June 2023, both dates
inclusive, the period during which no transfer of shares will be
effected. The holders of shares whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 9 June 2023
will be entitled to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM to be held
on Friday, 9 June 2023. In order to be qualified to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the H Share
Registrar of the Company, Union Registrars Limited at Suites
3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s
Road, North Point, Hong Kong (in respect of H shares), or to the
Company’s registered office in the PRC at 1 Yanxin Road East,
Huishan Economic Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC (in respect of Domestic shares) no later than 4:00 p.m.
on Tuesday, 9 May 2023.
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BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had borrowings of
RMB2,000,000 (2021: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float under the Listing Rules during the Year and
up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it
to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion
to their shareholdings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events after the reporting period up to
the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The following table sets forth information concerning the

AARRREEREEHNER -

Directors and supervisors of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2022.

2 i BRE i EZE0Y
Name Age Position Appointment Date
=

Directors

SRR T & 50 HTEERIE 201247 H24H
Mr. ZHANG Degang Executive Director and Chairman 24 July 2012
RIEERELE 53 HITEERBLE 201247 H24H
Mr. ZHANG Degiang Executive Director and general manager 24 July 2012
BEEBRL 42 HITER 202246 A17H
Ms. FENG Lili Executive Director 17 June 2022
REFELL 60 ERTES 201548 A28H
Ms. ZHANG Jinghua Non-executive Director 28 August 2015
RBHESE 43 BAUFNTES 202146 A18H
Mr. LEUNG Yiu Cho Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2021
g 48 BUFNTES 20216 A18H
Mr. YU Jianfeng Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2021
i I8 S 4 46 BAUFNTES 202166 A18H
Mr. ZHONG Ruifeng Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2021
ks 59 B 201448 A15H
Mr. PENG Jiashan Supervisor 15 August 2014
fBEX L 53 E= 201448 H15H
Ms. WEI Yi Supervisor 15 August 2014
BERELL 41 EERASNEBBERE 2012467 A24H
Ms. YANG Jinghua Supervisor and personnel and general affairs manager 24 July 2012

—z-——apgs 11
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent of the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 19 to 28 of
this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Except for Ms. Zhang Jinghua’s service contract which was
entered into on 28 August 2015, Mr. Leung Yiu Cho, Mr. Yu
Jianfeng and Mr. Zhong Ruifeng’s service contracts which was
entered into on 18 June 2021 and Ms. Feng Lili’'s service
contract which entered into on 17 June 2022, each of the
Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 24 October 2014 and 20
October 2014, respectively, and such service contracts will
continue to be effective upon re-election. Hence, each of their
service contracts is continued to be effective pursuant to the re-
election of the Directors at the annual general meeting held on
18 June 2021. The service contracts may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contracts.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has or is
proposed to have a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by such member of the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Report of the Directors

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to
the Group’s success. To ensure the ability to attract and retain
talents, the Group’s remuneration policy of Directors is built
upon the principles of providing equitable and market-
competitive remuneration package that support the performance
culture and enable the achievement of strategic business goals.

The Directors’ remuneration comprises fixed salary or service fee
and variable components (such as bonus and share options),
which is benchmarked against companies of comparable
business or scale with reference to a mix of factors such as the
prevailing market condition, the Company’s performance and the
qualifications, skills, experience and educational background of
the Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration is reviewed annually and are subject
to shareholders’ approval.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors of
the Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid employees
are set out in note 9(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DETAILS OF OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any share
option scheme in force.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such indemnity provisions for the benefit of
the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the Year.
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DONATIONS
No donation was made during the Year (2021: nil).

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which will have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, will be as follows:

(i) Interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company

G HHEAEE R
i N L )
BalLWEY (EERTRE
Approximate  ZEEHEL
percentage B4 b M=
in the Approximate
relevant percentage
BHEE class of in the total
ESna &R Number #E#3ME share issued share
Name of Director Class of shares of shares Nature of interest capital Note)  capital Nete !
SRS 4 NE R 43,221,504 EmHEARA 45.02% 33.77%
Mr. Zhang Degang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NE Rk 34,010,496 EEE A A+ HFFA R R TED 35.43% 26.57%
Domestic Shares Interest held jointly with another person Mt 2
NE K 4,416,000 X% Gl A B R 5 ) 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation N2
SRR NE R 20,983,104 EmHEAA 31.23% 23.42%
Mr. Zhang Degiang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NE Rk 47,248,896 EEE Aty A+ HFFA R R TED 49.22% 36.92%
Domestic Shares Interest held jointly with another person Mt 2
NE K 4,416,000 X1 Gl A B R 5 ) 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation Mot 2
REELL NE R 4,027,392 EmBEEA 4.20% 3.15%
Ms. Zhang Jinghua Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
RNE R 77,620,608 ELEfh A+ HREFFE KRR =2 80.85% 60.64%

Domestic Shares

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Interest held jointly with another person Mt 2
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Report of the Directors

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 128,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020, which
comprised 96,000,000 domestic shares and 32,000,000 H shares.

(2) Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua are
persons acting in concert and accordingly each of them is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by each other. By the Acting in Concert
Agreement dated 26 July 2013, each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang
Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua confirmed that they have exercised their
voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and/or directors of the
members of the Group in unanimity since the establishment of Sanzhi
Gongkong on 17 April 2009, and will continue to do so.

) Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang are two of the general partners
of EIFIBMTLELE(ERESE) (Wuxi Shunxin Investment Enterprise
(Limited Partnership)*) (“Shunxin”) and are therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Shunxin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022, no
persons or corporations (other then the Directors, chief executive
or supervisors of the Company) had or deemed or taken to have
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was
a party, and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with any of them had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, there had been no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor any contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries. None of the shareholders of the Company entered
into any arrangement to waive or agree to waive any dividend.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, the controling shareholders of the
Company and their respective close associates had any
business or interest that competes or may compete with the
business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor had any
other conflicts of interest with the Group during the Year.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua (the controlling shareholders (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) of the Company) has given an annual declaration
to the Company confirming that he/she has complied with the
non-compete undertakings given by them to the Company under
the deed of non-competition made on 11 March 2014 in favour
of the Company. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the non-
compete undertakings and confirmed that all the undertakings
thereunder have been complied with during the Year.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or supervisors of the Company, or were such rights exercised by
them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC.

—E__FE®RE
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Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The employees of the Group are required to participate in a
central pension scheme (the “Defined Contribution Schemes”)
operated by the local municipal government, which these
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage,
which was pre-determined by the local municipal government, of
the sum of basic salary and allowance of employees to the
Central Pension Scheme. The contributions by the Group for the
Defined Contribution Schemes are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
relevant rules of the respective schemes.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i) for
each of the two years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022, there was no forfeiture of contributions under
the Defined Contribution Schemes; and (i) there were no
forfeited contributions available for the Group to reduce its
existing level of contributions to the Defined Contribution
Schemes as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022.
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Report of the Directors

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the
Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions during the Year are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and these
transactions do not fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Listing
Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction(s) or continuing connected transaction(s) under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Company during the
Year.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, financial reporting systems,
risk management and internal control systems, and has reviewed
the Group’s consolidated financial results for the Year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

BOBNERBERBARAT

(Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited*)
Zhang Degang

Chairman

Jiangsu, the PRC, 24 March 2023

* For identification purposes only
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AKE

To the Shareholders of Wuxi Sunlit Science and
Technology Company Limited

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wuxi Sunlit Science and
Technology Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 129 to
207, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
FELT i ACH B 7] FTHB T - i PR F A 221
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
of trade receivables and contract assets.
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Impairment of contract assets and trade receivables

F2MGeMBRRNTIDMBERER - GRA
M\Wﬁqﬂamééﬁf%%WmﬁﬂﬁMmﬁﬂﬂé
WEE BHRAMEYE]

Refer to note 3.1(b) “Financial risk management — credit
risk”, note 4(a) “Impairment of contract assets and trade
receivables” and note 18 “Contract assets, trade and other
receivables” to the consolidated financial statements.

R2022512A318 - BHRUFERE (BREREN &
FERARE ROARZBRANEE)RARY
317,661,0007C * 1% Bl & & A K %55,587,0007C * & it
BEFEAARK262074000 1 BEEER2022F12
A3 BREEN28% -

As at 31 December 2022, the gross amount of trade
receivables including accounts receivable, commercial
acceptance notes, bank acceptance notes and contract
assets amounted to RMB317,661,000 and respective
provision amounted to RMB55,587,000 resulting in the net
carrying amount of RMB262,074,000 and representing 28%
of the Group's total assets as at 31 December 2022,

ERERRAG A EHEANEERE FRKTEN 2SR
HEEEX - ESENEPEERLRERAREES A
W BRHMEERL - EREERYENERREHRLE
Wi EERE SRS  UREHERRR RERR G
EnEBAERELHE ZRERBREPHALLE
05k FEFE MBRARY EHRRE NNEMREER -
Management applied the simplified approach to measure
the lifetime expected credit losses of contract assets and
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses
(*ECL"), customers of the Group were grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. Management assessed
the ECL based on estimation about risk of default and
expected loss rates, and judgment was used in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, including the historical settlement
records, credit ratings, financial positions of the customers
and other factors that impacted their ability of repayment.

BI BT RE (8)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

EMmE S NTRERRENEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MR ERERG T NEERE DU ERETEL BT T A TRR
We obtained the assessment of impairment of contract assets and trade receivables from the
management and performed the following procedures:

TREREHANEERE ZRUFERBEERXNATATIRFERE L2
B A EELNRZE RECERRRREZNKT (FIMmREENERER  BRE
RRERBENHIEN) MEEAERRANEFRR -

Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control and assessment
process of ECL of contract assets and trade receivables, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity of models, subjectivity of key
assumptions and data used.

FERANREREHANEERE RN ERDEERRNTHLER ITHE
BEELEHNRFRERN -

Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of ECL of contract assets and trade
receivables to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation process.

FEVARERER T SHNEEREHRNFARDE SR XA EN BRI
BREENREK O -

Evaluated and tested management’s key controls in relation to the assessment of the
ECL of contract assets and trade receivables, including the review of ageing analysis.

THEBRERANEERBIRUFENARGRRRE R KRR BETIENR
Fﬂﬂzﬁ{ (ﬁﬁ%%ﬁjﬂ %7;\_ u'm'

Assessed the appropriateness of the grouping of contract assets and trade receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics and ageing periods and the credit loss
provisioning methodology adopted by management.

RRMERERNET BRI
RV TR o

Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the aging profile of contract assets and
trade receivables prepared by management by checking to acceptance certificates or
other relevant documents.

AAEEERRNANBERE SRIGAR

—E__FE®RE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

HEENEE
Key Audit Matter
BHEERESRKRIERE

BMmE T RRRRENEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of contract assets and trade receivables

EREAETRAEERRMNBRED  TERAE
HERE-

Management also took into account of forward-
looking adjustments to determine ECL.

BAEINAE BEFSPRAEGNEERES
ElFUasE - AR RREERANERE
Mo MELEARRRERIBRNESTHRE -
We focused on this area due to the significance of
the contract assets and trade receivables balances
and the complexity of models and subjectivity of
significant assumptions and data used in the
estimation of ECL.

24 sEEpmAERNEBRAERAR
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

10)
10)

HERNFTE(TH L2 RGN EE

BARERRERITKE  ARATPNELAERR -
Tested, on a sample basis, the historical settlement of the customers by
checking to the bank slips.

ERE ﬁEﬁLmHM&%%EA?
(BREEEES  RBERREREE
MREEERZE -

Challenged management’s estimation of the risk of default and ECL rate
referencing to customers’ credit information including settlement records,
their financial positions and ability of repayment and collaborated
management’s explanations with publicly available information and
supporting evidence.

ARE m&a ER2ERPERER
) LRERENEARAFASE

%Fw%&ﬁﬂ haE -
%&/ﬁ%ﬁﬁ°

Evaluated the appropriateness of the forward-looking information with

reference to our industry knowledge and relevant published

macroeconomic data.

Mok

PEERMFANEREHRE ARNEH

A\

REGERRCEERABENEMERE
Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the allowance of
ECL.

AEEANEERBE SRR ERNEERATHERNRERT EH -
Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to assessment of ECL of
contract assets and trade receivables.

AMRA EEERNFEANEERE

HRNCGRIBRE R PTE A B R B RRAMRERERAETRF R -
Based on above procedures performed and the evidence obtained, we
considered that the judgement made and assumption used by management in
the assessment of the impairment of contract assets and trade receivables was
supported by the evidence obtained and procedures performed.




Hitfs 8
BERREFRHEMEEAT - HMER
BREFHRANMBER  BETEEKRAY
BmERMBPBLEROZBEARS -

BAEGEEMBRERNBEAL NRER M
=8 RPN ZFEMESBEREM
HAMEZE® -

RRMEEEMBRENES THEMS -
BPWEERHELMESR  URELS
B ZREMESEESEREAMBEHE
SR MEETERETMERNBRAFEE
RNBE L EUFHFEEAHERBRENER -

ERBACETHIE  MREMARBSE
fEEFEEANEREL RAFBERS
ZEE-fEhE BB ERRSE -

EERERZEEMGESUBEER
ARBHERE

BERAEZRERBREB ST ASHEM
RKE BT R EEL) RBE (R BEG)D
MEBERERBEEMT ENEAVBR
R URERRAELEE W ERROBE
PEFEHERRIFRERMERMNEKRER
SRt P 75 B 79 B 122 7

==
= °©

ERBEAVBEBRRE EFAAHFN
i BEEERELENREN  LHEERRB
MATEBEEFELLABNER  URE
ARHECERSTER KRIEFEFE
# EEREBRIELLE  KAERM
ERONBRITER - BIERR

ENZECREEE

BERENMBRE

BI BT RE (8)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

ZE TR E T S S M BRRRED
BfE

BPNER UGV BEHRREBRS
NFEARE E’Fifa%eﬁﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁ’]ik%&
ARG AEERE  YHABRERMER

MAZEE RS - HfER BTHESE
B)RERMOER BRI 2 AHSEH
EHEMEHN LA TERARENATR
FEAEMALTE FHFEEERMEE - 51
EFRRKTHEE  BTRERERR(E
BEEADETNRN  EX—EKAHE
AR R AR BE B IR - SRARIRAL A A
HEFRtERal e - MREBEEHTMER
SERERAEFEFEYBHRRERE
Wfﬁﬁv?éﬁﬁi‘%i&%%ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ B EERE - A
BRANERRA TR RIEEAX -

BB BB ERDE
RAUEM T HE A8
B o B

TT%H‘I’#)&E!%EEF
REFTERERRE

o FHRIFFHEBENEFFREER M E AR
/—\Bﬂ%iﬁﬁrﬁiﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ@
B R RMITE R AREEL
Rk ARERGEMEENEE
& ERRMABENER - ARG
ARESNER  BE EFRERE
RER - SERBAENES 2 £ - Eit
REHRRRFMEBMEXNFERR
A e [ e 7= I R RE B3R R SR RR T B 2
BB A SR R Rt e LB

o ERARERFTERAAARES -

HENBREF 1555’9313%1 ﬁ
SEANFIEFNBERERRESR -

o HEEEMRASHERNREER
{ER T AT AR EN SN -

EHERNDENBZROBRAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

omissions,

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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SEERTRE - BEMFRE A
BHZEEMBHRERER - BAME
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BI BT RE (8)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

feRELZZEQRBNERT  RMEE
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EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheng, Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
3T 20224 20214
Note 2022 2021
LN Revenue 5 208,048 167,045
iHE A Cost of sales 6 (160,567) (131,420)
EF Gross profit 47,481 35,625
HERX Selling expenses 6 (2,478) (2,558)
THAX Administrative expenses 6 (29,677) (27,723)
THMEENASHEEME Net impairment losses on
1B F R financial assets and contract
assets 3.1(b) (4,284) (3,416)
HAth g A Other income 7 1,232 941
HapUgzs, (E5#8) — 7F% Other gains/(losses) — net 8 8,167 (1,337)
wENE Operating profit 20,441 1,532
B YA Finance income 10 2,925 2,641
B Fir 18 B¢ Ao F B Profit before income tax 23,366 4,173
M (A, HE Income tax (expense)/credit 11 (762) 538
AATHELSIREEIEEM  Profit for the year attributable
FIE to equity shareholders of the
Company 22,604 4,711
FREATIELKREEIE Earnings per share
BREFN (UARES attributable to equity
FI7R) shareholders of the
Company for the year
(expressed in RMB cents)
— BREAREERTF]  —Basic and diluted earnings
per share 12 17.66 3.68
LA E4RE U a2 e ERBE R MY A — FBIAE o The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20224 20214

2022 2021

ERFHE Profit for the year 22,604 4,711

Hih 2mEH 25 Other comprehensive income - =
AATHELSBRFELENRE Total comprehensive income for the

Wiz 48 5A year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 22,604 4,711

LA 4R & 2 T Uk 5 3% FE S BE R B 5 — BF B The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
° should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

30 Eom EREROERAT
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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HEBERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

®12A31H
As at 31 December
B 5 20224 20214
Note 2022 2021
&aE ASSETS
ERHEE Non-current assets
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 13 21,195 17,957
W - WE R Property, plant and equipment 14 91,708 73,340
"REYE Investment properties 15 20,605 37,507
BREE Intangible assets 13 32
BHEE EHNHM Contract assets, trade and other
JFE U FR T8 receivables 18 3,408 1,642
RIS ERE — F{E Deferred income tax assets
— net 19 13,489 13,813
150,418 144,291
RENEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 20 196,474 108,968
RELEYE Properties held for sale 21 43,554 46,495
TEF 3B Prepayments 22 12,001 3,936
ABHEE -BEHNHEM Contract assets, trade and other
JE W 5k I8 receivables 18 261,448 258,887
ESMITA Derivative financial instruments - 227
BRFIER Restricted cash 23 108,617 59,875
TEHFE R Time deposits 23 59,970 76,459
HekReEHEEE Cash and cash equivalents 23 113,250 33,817
795,314 588,664
HEE Total assets 945,732 732,955
HEx EQUITY
fi% Zx Share capital 24 128,000 128,000
&R % B Share premium 24 311,464 311,464
] Reserves 26 66,282 66,599
RE&F Retained earnings 25 148,869 125,948
gL Total equity 654,615 632,011
—E-—EEHE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

®12A318
As at 31 December
B FE 20224 20214
Note 2022 2021
BfE LIABILITIES
RENAE Current liabilities
B 5 & H b e 508 Trade and other payables 27 171,181 58,539
EHEE Contract liabilities 5(a) 117,414 42,204
EHMGEHAE Current income tax liabilities 522 201
N Borrowings 28 2,000 —
291,117 100,944
WEE Total liabilities 291,117 100,944
BESRARE Total equity and liabilities 945,732 732,955

A L E B E R EREEREMN M T — G5

HE o
F126E2 131 B4R & B TSR3k E 722023

FIA4BEESTE A WHIATAL
REEE

S Al SR 85

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 131

were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023
and were signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Degang Zhang Deqiang
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GEEREEHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

EAT B ANEN
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bt sE BE BRORE fE RIEEFH gt
Share Share Retained

Note capital premium Reserves earnings Total
R20215E1H1BM%ER  Balance at 1 January 2021 128,000 311,464 66,772 127,464 633,700
2mES Comprehensive income
FRFHE Profit for the year - - = 4,711 4,711
2HEI L Total comprehensive income = = = 4,711 4,711
HEAANRS Transaction with owners
PATEES Safety fund used 26(b) - - (179) 173 -
BE RS Dividend declared 29 - - - (6,400)  (6,400)
HEFANRZ 5EE Total transactions with owners = — (173) (6,227) (6,400)
#2021%FE12H 31 HH45ER Balance at 31 December 2021 128,000 311,464 66,599 125,948 632,011
®20225%F1 A1 8B 468 Balance at 1 January 2022 128,000 311,464 66,599 125,948 632,011
2mix Comprehensive income
FAFHE Profit for the year - - - 22,604 22,604
WIS EE Total comprehensive income - - - 22,604 22,604
HBEAANXS Transaction with owners
PHZEES Safety fund used 26(b) - - (317) 317 -
EBAANNR B EE Total transactions with owners - - (317) 317 -
#2022 1231 HH9 4568 Balance at 31 December 2022 128,000 311,464 66,282 148,869 654,615

A B4R A 1 25 B0 B 5% 8 2 B B PI o — B B9

=
g °

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

34

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
B 5 2022 20214
Note 2022 2021
HETPINRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
BEMR/ (TR Be Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 30(a) 31,107 (833,960)
ERFEH Income tax paid (117) (446)
KESEBATE,(FTA)ESF5  Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities 30,990 (34,406)
BRETHNRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
BEWE  BERKE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (13,717) (1,752)
LEME - BE REEN Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fr{S 508 plant and equipment 30(b) 46 45
BERATEFAEBRD Purchase of financial assets at fair
CRMEE value through profit or loss (106,400) (100,410)
HEZ AT EFAEBREN Proceeds from disposal of financial
CRVE ERFERIEA assets at fair value through profit
or loss 106,637 101,034
BRHIE SR, (EM) Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 31,091 (13,768)
& BT SO Decrease in time deposits 22,935 35,691
HETESm T ARERIAE Proceeds from disposal of derivative
financial instruments 400 200
KREFRSMEREFRE Net cash generated from investing
activities 40,992 21,040
REEFHNRERE Cash flows from financing
activities
FEW AR AR SR Cash inflow from discounting notes
receivables 7,000 —
2R RS Dividends paid 29 - (6,400)
BB EE TS, (FTH )& F%  Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities 7,000 (6,400)
HeERBR&LEBEHFEEM Net increase/(decrease) in cash
(iBL) and cash equivalents 78,982 (19,766)
EEXREHIE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 451 (280)
FVHRERREEFEHER Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 33,817 53,863
FRMRERREEEHER Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 113,250 33,817

A LR ARSI E R EERE M T — H6I

=5
n=

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of a range of
equipment for steel wire production lines.

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) as a limited liability company on 21 March
2006. The Company was converted into a joint stock company
with limited liabilities under relevant PRC laws and regulations on
24 July 2012. The address of the Company’s registered office is
1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic Development Zone,
Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 11 November 2014.

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (the “COVID-19”)
had brought unprecedented challenges and added uncertainties
to the economy. COVID-19 may affect the financial performance
and position of the industry of tyre manufacturing. Since the
outbreak of COVID-19, the Group kept continuous attention on
the situation of the COVID-19 and reacted actively to its impact
on the financial position and operating results of the Group. As
at the date that the consolidated financial information is
authorised for issue, COVID-19 does not have any material
adverse impact on the financial position and operating result of
the Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi thousands (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 24 March
2023.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the vyears
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCQ”) Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

(a) New standards and amendments to standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments and annual

improvements for the first time for their annual reporting period

commencing 1 January 2022:

Standards/Amendments Subject

A &3 i
Al M - WE KRR E
E165 &K — {EEER&AT
R FT 13 3K8
BERMBREERN HESERORL
E 3R EER
BB ER EEEH — BT
FEITHHEKR A KR
FEHE BB G HREER
2018 £ 20204
B B4 S i
KI5t HEEH S
51 E55% aFgRE
EBMBHRELER 2021F6A308 %
E165% BB K &) Covid-1948
HeE=E
EHEBRNENBEROERA T

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020 Cycle

Merger Accounting for
Common Control
Combinations

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements

Revised Accounting

Guideline 5

Amendments to HKFRS 16

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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B BRERNEERTERRA:
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Standards/Amendments/Interpretation

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New standards and amendments to standards adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the

amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to

significantly affect the current or future periods.

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretation to

standards that have been issued but are not effective
The following new standards, amendments and interpretation to
standards have been published that are not mandatory for
31 December 2022 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group:

RT3 B8

2B

& FEEWN
Effective for

annual years

beginning on

Subject or after

EANERELENFI7TERE BT ERE
KB FEAT7IR B

HKFRS 17 and amendments to HKFRS 17

BB ST ERESTHIEK
Amendments to HKAS 8

ERGHEUNFE 1R REBM B HRELED
EBBRRAE2RMNER

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

FREGTENF 12BN

Amendments to HKAS 12

RE M:.,U(a?ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬂ@ﬁﬁ%\;‘%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂu 20231 HA1H
FATHERBERNBEREERFH —
LB E L)
Insurance Contract (including Initial 1 January 2023
Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information)

BRHAEEHNER 20231 A 1H
Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BETBOR I E 20231 A 1H
Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
HE-QRZELANEENABABEN 2023F1 A1H
EIETRIA

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a Single Transaction
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretation to

EHIRIIEX RZRE (&) standards that have been issued but are not effective
(Continued)

RT5 B &

ZiEmMiEE

A 1&g RE & FEER
Effective for

annual years

beginning on

Standards/Amendments/Interpretation Subject or after
BB ERFE1RAIENR BEEIBRAREKIERE 2024F1H18
Amendment to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2024

BEAGTENE1HRBR
Amendment to HKAS 1

BRI ERE 165 MIEER
Amendment to HKAS 16

FERBELR (BX)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

B HRELERF10HR B EGTER
252855 I & X
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

AL B 2 FA Rl Ll 37 R 22 R A R 22 R
MERkRBENTE  ERETHE RN
SENZERM RRAEBEFMEN
Y125 5HAE - FEHA bl 3 AT 2E BI LA S 2RIl
B ERBERERR TS HARENES
XEIPBEMABRENTE -

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Non-current

MBERZENIERBEE 202441 A1H
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
EREONEERR 202441 A1H
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024

MBHRENZ2Y — ERABFHBRENL 20241 A1H
BEREXNEHERSE

Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2024
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

KEEHRAEBENRINEGELERNEE BERFEE
HEHIZA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Determined

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of the above new standards and amendments and
interpretations to standards, certain of which are relevant to the
Group’s operations. According to the preliminary assessment
made by the directors of the Group, it is expected that the
above new standards and amendments and interpretations to
standards will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
operating results or financial position when they become
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns

from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. The
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 FETHBRE#BE®

22 MEBAS @)

2218 % (%)

@ XBEEG B
REBRZFBWIEEEBRRFUREAD
EFEIE AR M 2 - R UE AP B IR
BRERYETHERBE AR GREIZLH
DEERFEENEERER  UATE
) 35 BRF R S AR s PR (N A IR A RT3
BEECHRSENLOIGTE - BRIEFBH
BREEAEETEFAS —TE2EE &
AIZEfE IR iR M FT A Bt B o 19 LA EE B
HEOAFEE -

WK ARELRI R -

M 375 & OF 0 B BRAETT - BRI AR I
FBASTATR A M AR R B M ERE E
ENAERKBREYNQTE: BEFE
EEMEARERERNEmER -

AEBFAEENTAXARECREER
BAVEER SREEXABNIAR
ERFEREZY REFEGHERNSE
MMM TE - NIERERNEAEMEM
W B BER - D RARENHIARE
TEEHAE MERGEERNEDAR -

PR B - B AT R R
7R N 01 W BB A B AA] 5 A RSCRE O UALE
BRI A FEBBMKERREFEER
FENBOARIMETE - MpAEREN
B CHRAFERESMEFELRAFE
M BER AR RBEN R ERE TAT RN B
REFEENRATE Z2EENGEEK
mARFER

EHERNDENBZROBRAE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

The Group interest in the

acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling

interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests

and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s

net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair

value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in

the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

All other components of non-controlling interests are measured

at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement

basis is required by HKFRS.

recognises any non-controlling

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any

retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at

the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying

amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial

carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for

the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial

asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted

for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had

directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This means

that certain amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income may be reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2Separate financial statements

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the entities

within the Group are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the

“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are

presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s

functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated income statement within finance
expense. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “other
gains/(losses)”.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 10 years
Vehicles 4 years
Computer and electronic equipment 3-5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Interior decoration 5 years

Except that the residual value rate of interior decoration is zero,
the residual value rates of other property, plant and equipment
are 5%.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains/(losses)” in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Historical expenditure that
is directly attributable to the construction comprises construction
costs, the cost of plant and machinery and applicable borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment categories and
depreciated in accordance with the policy mentioned above.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties that are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Investment
properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, at rates
sufficient to write off their costs over their estimated useful lives
of 20 to 50 years. The residual values and useful lives of
investment properties are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate
at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are
included in the consolidated income statement when the
changes arise.

The Group shall transfer a property to, or from, investment
property, and only when, there is a change in use. A change in
use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. If an investment property becomes owner
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. Its
carrying amount as at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for subsequent accounting purposes.

2.7
Intangible assets represent computer software, which are
amortised over their estimated useful lives not exceeding five
years.

Intangible assets

2.8

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
impairment whenever events or changes
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

reviewed for
in circumstances

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRIFTE BEUAARE T THIR)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets

2.9.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets

measurement categories:

in the following

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (OCI) or through profit
or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.9.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
2.9.2Recognition and derecognition (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the notes receivables which are subject
to discounting or endorsement arrangement. Under this
arrangement, the Group has transferred the relevant note
receivables to the suppliers or banks in exchange for cash and
is prevented from selling or pledging the receivables. However,
the Group has retained late payment and credit risk. The Group
therefore continues to recognise the transferred assets in their
entirety in its balance sheet. The amount repayable under the
endorsement agreement is presented as trade payable, the
amount repayable under the discounting agreement is presented
as borrowing. The Group considers that the held to collect
business model remains appropriate for these receivables and
hence continues measuring them at amortised cost.

The Group should assess if the terms are substantially different
when a financial asset is exchanged or its terms are modified
but the asset remains between the same borrower and the same
lender. If the terms are substantially different, the transaction
should be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial asset and the recognition of a new financial asset. The
Group should perform quantitative analysis and qualitative
assessment for derecognition.

When a financial asset measured at amortised cost is modified
without the modification resulting in derecognition, the Group
should recognise a gain or loss immediately in profit or loss. The
gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the original
contractual cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

2.9.3Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
2.9.3Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in the consolidated income
statement as other gains/(losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated income statement and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

—ECFEERE 14
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

2.9.3Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair

value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present

fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is

no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to

profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in

the consolidated income statement as other income when the

Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are
not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

2.9.4lmpairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting

period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value

depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging

instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The

Group designates derivatives as either:

° hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
(fair value hedges).

° hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows
of recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable
forecast transactions (cash flow hedges).

° hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net
investment hedges).

At the inception of the hedging, The Group documents the
economic, relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, including whether changes in the cash flows of the
hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash
flows of hedged items. The Group documents its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedge
transactions.

Derivatives held by the Group are only used for economic
hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. If the
derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

—TECCEERE 149
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of properties comprises acquisition costs
attributable to the properties. Net realisable value is determined
taking into account the selling price expected to be realised, less
applicable estimated selling expenses to make the sale.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at
fair value. Trade and other receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

When the terms of trade and other receivables that would
otherwise be past due or impaired have been renegotiated,
trade and other receivables are remeasured using the revised
effective interest method determined according to the
renegotiated terms and conditions. Any difference between the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables before and after
the renegotiation is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

2.14 Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances includes cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits and restricted cash. In the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Time
deposits mainly refers to the bank deposits with initial term of
over three months but within one year. Bank deposits which are
restricted to use are included in “restricted cash” of the
consolidated balance sheet.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Borrowings (Continued)

(a) Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a

qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is

required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use

or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or

sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
HKAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense. Warranty provision mainly represents the estimation
cost of providing maintenance services as well as the
replacement of accessories in connection with the quality
warranty based on past experience.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and value-added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below.
The Group bases its estimates on historical experience, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specification of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of a
range of equipment for steel wire production lines and
standalone machineries. Revenue from sales of equipment is
recognised when the control of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually upon (1) delivery of products
to the customer; (2) completion of the installation and on-site
testing (if required in the sale contract); and (3) the acceptance
by the customer of the equipment without any further unfulfilled
obligation. The Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms is recognised as a
provision, see note 27.

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

(c) Income from trading

Income from trading belongs to contract obligations to be
satisfied at a point in time and the corresponding income is
recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the
buyer.

The Group distinguishes whether the Group is a principal or an
agent in the transactions regarding whether the Group has the
control of goods when transferring the goods to the customer.
Provided that the Group has the control of goods before the
transfer of the goods, it is acting as a principal and should
recognise revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for the specified goods
transferred; otherwise it is acting as an agent and should
recognise revenue in the amount of any fee or commission. The
Group is acting as an agent and recognises the agent business
income in net amount.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Financing components

The Group does not have any contracts where the period

between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the

customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a

consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction

prices for the time value of money.

(e) Contract asset and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer and
assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide
services to the customer. The combination of those rights and
performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining rights and
the performance obligations. The contract is an asset and
recognised as contract assets if the measure of the remaining
rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance
obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability and recognised
as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining
performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining
rights.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation but does not
have an unconditional right to consideration, the Group should
recognise a contract asset. The contract assets of the Group are
mainly composed of product quality warranty to be billed upon
expiry of warranty period and no material quality deficiency of
the product is identified.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans and
receivables are recognised using the original effective interest
rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases

Where the Group is a lessee, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Assets
and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments (where applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees,

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term (note 5). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received, and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall
risk management program of the Group focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on financial performance of the Group.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in mainland China with most of the Group’s
transactions denominated and settled in RMB, except that
certain trade receivables, bank deposits are denominated in US
dollar (“USD”) which are exposed to foreign currency translation
risk.

If the USD had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the RMB
while all other variables had been held constant, the Group’s
post tax profits for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
have been approximately RMB3,109,000 better/worse (2021:
RMB4,558,000) for various financial assets denominated in USD.

No hedging is currently in place against foreign exchange risk.

The Group will continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to
best preserve the Group’s cash value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interests rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk for certain
interest-bearing cash at banks and bank deposits. Cash at

banks at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, if the interest rate on cash
at banks, time deposits and restricted cash increased/decreased
by 0.5% with all other variables held constant, the Group’s post
tax profits for the year would have been RMB1,192,000 higher/
lower and RMB723,000 higher/lower, as a result of the
increase/decrease in variable interest rates.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits, contract assets and trade
and other receivables. The carrying amounts, where applicable,
of each class of these financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
corresponding class of financial assets.

(i) Risk management

To manage the credit risk, bank deposits are placed with/issued
by highly reputable financial institutions.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1

(b)

(i) Risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that products are sold to customers
with appropriate credit history. The Group assesses the
creditworthiness of a customer by closely examining a number of
indicators which include its financial and operational conditions
(including whether the customer’s production facilities are in full
operation, the site of the facilities, scale of operation, and the
customer’s amount of investments in property, plant and
equipment), its credit rating and competitive landscape of the
market. Based on such assessment and the value of the
relevant contract, the Group sets a maximum balance of amount
due allowable for a customer. The finance department of the
Group monitors the past due trade receivables and directs the
sales personnel to follow up the collection of the trade
receivables. The sales department of the Group also sets up a
credit profile for each customer. Records relating to the
transactions with the customer are updated monthly to monitor
the amount of sales, payment, accumulated amount outstanding,
amount past due and unpaid, and accumulated expected credit
losses made as at the end of the month. The finance
department of the Group monitors and updates the customer’s
trade receivables position from time to time, keeps track of the
movement of the trade receivables, and ensures that the
outstanding amounts due do not exceed the maximum balance
allowable for a customer. Specific review on the recoverability of
past due trade receivables is performed on a regular basis and
detailed disclosure of allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is set out in note 18. Normally the Group does not
require collateral from trade debtors.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience and available forward-looking
information.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1
(b)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

information.

o internal credit rating

° external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the financial
situation of individual property owner or the debtor

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtor, including changes in the payment
status of debtor and individual property owner.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

The contract assets and trade and other receivables are subject
to the expected credit loss model. While cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, time deposits are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial since those cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, time deposits are subject to reputable banks
with good credit rating and low risk of default. The expected
credit losses of bank acceptance notes are assessed to be low,
and no loss allowance provision is made as banks have a low
risk of default and a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1

(b)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Contract assets and trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for contract assets and trade receivables. The
contract assets relate to product quality warranty and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
the contract assets. The expected credit losses also incorporate
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the contract assets and
trade receivables. The Group has identified consumer price
index, broad money supply and purchasing managers’ index as
the most relevant factors for forward-looking adjustments for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

To measure the expected credit losses, customers of the Group
were grouped into two categories based on credit risk

characteristics:

1)  Normal customers for sales of goods subject to collective

EHEEERMNANEERE ZEIKFIA
(T EFERITELER) R20225612 A 31
HX2021F12 A1 HMBREREEE
FEWR :

assessment
The loss allowance provision of contract assets and trade
receivables (excluding bank acceptance notes) for sales of
goods as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were
determined as follows:

1€ML 25FlE 3FENLE
DIE Fof E3E F4E 4P E “st
More More
More than than
Less than 2 years 3 years More
than 1 year to to 3 to 4 than
1 year 2 years years years 4 years Total
20225128318 As at 31 December 2022
TEEIE R X Expected loss rate 5.1% 89% 11.2%  37.5% 100.0%
REEE Gross carrying amount 131,579 78,128 36,649 88 — 246,444
BABREE Loss allowance provision (6,746)  (6,952)  (4,096) (33) - (17,827)
BERNENEROGERA A
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

EHEENE FEIWFIE (E) Contract assets and trade receivables (Continued)
1FE0E 2L 3FLNE
DI E ZE2F E3F F4F 4FDE Bz
More More More
Less than than than More
than 1 year to 2 years to 3 years to than
1year 2vyears 3years 4years 4 years Total
”2021E12831H As at 31 December 2021
SEEIE =P Expected loss rate 4.8% 7.8% 13.0%  27.9%  100.0%
REZE Gross carrying amount 144,237 49,819 28,179 1,500 24 223,759
BRBHEER Loss allowance provision (6,947)  (3,897)  (3,651) (418) (24)  (14,937)

2) ZAERFHEHES
HRWEAFERTBREEENENES
AR - AEEKEN N BRHREER
KARHERER 2 80RE - MFAENTE
AR AAKERSRERBRFE

o BEBALBERFHEE

s EMAFRRENETUHEM K

3

o BHBEMHAEITHD

E=1

MEEERAFEBFEHENE S EUKGER
2022F 12 A1 B R E A E R EXEK
B & » Rl A AR 37,760,0007T & AR
87,760,000 0 (2021 : AR ¥
36,453,0007T & A R #36,453,0007T) °

H Al U IR

AEED 128 AFRRIRR T A2 HR
BRI A (R 8 B URERR
% B KR 3B O0 M 72 ) 71 4 2 b & W kIR
MBHEERSK -

2)  Customers subject to individual assessment

For individual trade receivables which were determined that there
was objective evidence that an impairment had been incurred,
the expected credit losses were separately reviewed for
impairment and fully impaired. The Group considered that there
was evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators
were present:

° significant financial difficulties of the debtor

° probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and

° in a lawsuit with the debtor.

Gross carrying amount and loss allowance provision of trade
receivables for sales of goods subject to individual assessment
are RMB37,760,000 and RMB37,760,000 as at 31 December
2022, respectively (2021: RMB36,453,000 and RMB36,453,000).

Other receivables

The Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for
other receivables under the 12 months expected losses method
or lifetime expected losses method, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 MBEEEE® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31 HBRKREE (®) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) (continued)

(b) 15HEE &) (b) Credit risk (Continued) (continued)

() ZHEERME &) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (continued)
o {th e W IE (48) Other receivables (continued)

H i EURIEE ER £ RE AR To measure the expected credit losses of other receivables,
B ETEEMERGRIERTEEEEEX other receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics.

EERERXBENEIGIEREINRER Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised

4% 5 T8 B AT Uiz [o] B<5 7E 188 45 o LS o

expectation of recovering additional cash.

(i) BB G R

(i) Loss allowance provision reconciliation

were written off against the provision when there was no

M2022F12H31H 6N EE B HE As at 31 December 2022, the loss allowance provision for
WHIE (BRERERREEALER) & contract assets, trade receivables (including accounts receivable,
HEMERIEN B ERBEEREEARE commercial acceptance notes) and other receivables reconciles

R FEEREBEERERNT - to the opening loss allowance for that provision as follows:
BHEE
RE5 Hith
FEW =R IE FEW =R IE @t
Contract
assets and
trade Other
receivables receivables Total
1202261 A1 B EFEAEE  Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2022 51,390 476 51,866
REEBER/(BE)FE Net allowance/(reversal) of impairment losses 4,293 9) 4,284
i 5E AT Uk ] A R M BROR Receivables written off as uncollectible (96) - (96)
M2022F 12 A31BMFEREBLR  Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2022
RS 55,587 467 56,054
R2021F1 A1 BHIFEMIBXEIR  Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2021 49,446 593 50,039
REBRREE,/ (BQ)F8 Net allowance/(reversal) of impairment losses 3,582 (117) 3,465
BEERITE R EEE Reversal of impairment losses for individual
assessment (49) — (49)
W85 1 AT MR 0 R M 0B Receivables written off as uncollectible (1,589) - (1,589)
R2021F12 31 BMFEREBKX  Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2021
ES 51,390 476 51,866

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(c) REE2EPE
AEBEBBEFTENRELREEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Group aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate amount
of cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the consolidated balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

LR1E

Less than 1 year

®2022E12H31H
B 5 K E b FRIE (BEEG)
&3k (f15E28)

720214£12H831H
B 5 N H b e A ZE (B EE)

0] TEFEEMEMTE ENEERINREERE
B B -
3.2 E4XEHE

AEEEREANBERE ERELAEE R
BREMEEN  UARRIRHEREAE
fbE s AREAE  WHFREERRE
IABR IR E AR o

BTHRFAFHBERREE  AEEAFHE
XN FERROREEHE ARRRER
R BITHRR B EEENRDET

At 31 December 2022

Trade and other payables (note (i) 163,873

Borrowings (note 28) 2,000
165,873

At 31 December 2021

Trade and other payables (note (i) 52,273

(i) Excluding other taxes payables, employee benefits payables and provision for
quality warranty expenses.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 UHMBRKER@®

3.3 AF{EME
BRATFEIENSRIEEBTRNGE
FKETE o ZEHMEEANBGAEEATFERE
BADBAT=(EE L

s MNHREEXABHEEGEMSHRE
(REFAR)(F—M) -

s EREENREBEBRNE —HAN
BEINAIBRBAE THER
(BPE %) s &% (B A B AR 5 E A
B/IEZR) -

s UHERABEMSBEENEELR
B AEGITAIBRBAER) (F=
R

BROTESRT AN AEEHEMEREE
(BREZLEMRYFIE - BRHEES
EREFARBEIRSFERE) ME
HaE(BREESREMEMNRIENLRE
FOEBREHR  WEREEEATE
B e

4 FAREEHEET RFAE

AEBENBELRMEM R ERFENE
fEr R - BREERER THEEHR
KEHBEAENAS -

AR BB R KAE L B R RER - TS &5
fREtmEEE L EBBERGRE
[l - AAEXEREER NMEAVRFREE
ElBENREERELERNFHBRN MGG
MR R o

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured by
different valuation methods. The inputs to valuation methods are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy, as
follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level
2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).

Other than the derivative financial instruments, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s other financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, restricted cash, time deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) and short-term liabilities (including trade
and other payables and borrowings) approximate their fair values
due to their short-term maturities.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.




4 FAETEHEFTRAE @

() EHMEERESHEWRIFRE

BHREBERE ZRWFRBREBRZERN
BRZORRKBHERERNM/RRK - NME
HE B RR MR BERER B AN B AE
B AREARBENESREHROBHE
FCE% ~ BRITN N ARG M A EHIE th #I R o

AREBENEENE S ERFIAR2022F
% 202112 A31 H R BREE R sE 181

E‘go

(b) ERREBEFREH
EEMEHBREREELERHE - XA
FEBBIET  TOXFEAENZKE
EHEEME - WX EEENRERGE
REMTHROESEIR - AEBEZERK
FEELBREENHRENAEHREE
IR -

HETERERMPABBRBRAETH
HEETREEBRARRRAIGESR ER
758 M A B PR D B = SR BN IR S 4R B
@ o FEMBER R RS AEAR - BB
ZRARFEARATEEHRYMERE
ERHBANER

(c) BEERFEHEMEFR

AEERNSZEE AR FEREREE )
EEFEMSIEHENER T RMAAER]
HHFEMERNBREEINR - AREIR
BEEEIFFLEMX BB EERMEINH
ERANRBEUFENEELRGEAESEE
HFHEHEYM RO A BB FE - (Fh A5
FIABRMEEMNES) B HFERRFHE
HEMEBESBEE MR D

(BRFESHERA - BRIFMEBHEAARE T IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(@) Impairment of contract assets and trade receivables
The loss allowance for contract assets and trade receivables is
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amounts of contract assets and trade receivables of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were disclosed in
note 18.

(b) Current and deferred income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of income tax assets and
taxation in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

(c) Allowance for inventories and properties held for sale
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories at each
balance sheet date to determine whether the inventories and
properties held for sale are carried at lower of cost and net
realisable value. The Group estimates the net realisable value of
each inventory or property held for sale, based on its related
selling price less additional cost to sale and historical experience
on similar inventories. Any change in the assumptions used in
making the estimates would increase or decrease the amount of
allowance of inventories and properties held for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5 KA
TERUARFECREARAARTNES
@ TERUREERAEEER RE—
MRS ER - W iR I BRIB R -

AEBFERELEERBEE R ARE
EIMHB A REANTEE - Ei 2202246
N2021F12A31B It FEREHEE R

5 REVENUE

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The CODM regards
the Group’s business as a single operating segment and reviews

the financial statements accordingly.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of a
range of equipment for manufacturing steel wire products and
leasing. Revenue from sales of goods and rental income for the

RUA A RS W AT ¢ years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
HERIEEE Sales of production lines
— REBRBE — Heat treatment phosphating lines 22,793 —
— BEERMGEES — Brass electroplating wire
production lines 21,206 35,398
— HMAEER — Other production lines 34,696 11,655
B IHE R Sales of standalone machines 99,306 100,716
Hith Rk - TR Sales of other mould repairing
B 14 85 &5 58 equipment, component parts and
accessories 24,433 12,264
el A Rental income 5,614 5,806
B2 BA Trading income - 1,206
208,048 167,045
LN Timing of revenue recognition
— R—EBREEA — Over time 5,614 5,806
— RE—KE — At a point in time 202,434 161,239
208,048 167,045
BERNENEROGERA A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RIESBEH  BRIMEEHBAARE T TIR)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5 W@ 5 REVENUE (Continued)
H 220224 2021512 A31H IEFE - For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
WABEERIBERT ¢ geographical information on the total revenue is as follows:
BE12A31BLLFEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
WA Revenue
— EREE — Mainland China 199,491 165,416
— Hitp — Others 8,557 1,629
208,048 167,045
REBEHNRAREATINEEF ZER The Group’s revenues were derived from the following external

F&BERANEEWRAI0%A L -

customers that individually contributed more than 10% of the
Group’s revenues.

#E12A31BLLFEE
Year ended 31 December

20224 20214

2022 2021

NEIV Company A 54,052 N3 FAN/AT
NG Company B 39,713 S EFAN/AT
~A]C Company C 27,750 21,136
A FID Company D EAN/A 81,869
ARIE Company E ABEAN/A 38,598

1. MREE20214F K% 2022412 A31 H L& [Z AR 1.

A EAEARREEIAI0%HIA L

The corresponding revenue during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2022
did not contribute 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5 WA@® 5 REVENUE (Continued)
(a) BHAEE (a) Contract liabilities
() AEEEERTINEEEFEHANE (i) The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
f& : contracts with customers:
»12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
aHAE Contract liabilities
— REHEERNTENR — Advance payments from sales of
standalone machines 99,783 11,707
— REHELEGNTEMNZK  — Advance payments from sales of
production lines 14,175 28,204
— REHEHMBEERE — Advance payments from sales of other
T4 R B HTER R mould repairing equipment,
component parts and accessories 3,456 2,293
117,414 42,204
(i) BB EEXEE) (i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities

@ AEEHNEGHABEFEZEREEFPHE
ELEEGRERNTBMNK - ARAE
ERE E2022F12 A1 B It FE R
RRAIABRI T=ZHHBRBEBEARK
590,000,000THE XA X AN A
BR2022412 31 HE B INA R
78,308,0007C °

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

(@)

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
advance payments from customers in respect of sales of
production lines and standalone machines. As at 31
December 2022, contract liabilities have increased by
RMB78,308,000 since the Group signed three significant
contracts totally RMB590 million with Company A during
the year ended 31 December 2022.




5 WA

(a) &HERE@W®

(iii) EEE 4B BRI CERMA

TR FITR A7 3R 25 H P e 22 0 U A o B A
HAMNAERBNESE -

FEMBRERME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES BT - BRIFMAZBBEUARE T LIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5 REVENUE (continued)

(@) Contract liabilities (Continued)

(iii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised

in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities.

(@)  Contract liabilities

HEZ12A31BHLFE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
SFAFENE N B BEEBRNERER Revenue recognised that was included in
WA the balance of contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year
— REAEELEESKNTBENMNZK  — Advance payments from sales of
production lines 27,849 9,405
— REEEEMATEN K — Advance payments from sales of
standalone machines 11,659 9,033
— REHEEHMEERE — Advance payments from sales of
TE M R G RI TR R other mould repairing equipment,
component parts and accessories 2,095 882
41,603 19,320
—E__FERE
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(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

6 FEHISHAX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
HE12A31BLFE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
BRmRERMNEFEEE Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress (23,957) (8,150)
BT A R+ # Raw materials used 156,487 117,041
EERMNAX (fiE9) Employee benefit expenses (note 9) 24,336 20,231
e R Depreciation and amortisation
— LT AR (MIFE13) — Land use rights (note 13) 545 508
o/ E RS — Property, plant and equipment
(M$5E14) (note 14) 7,489 6,861
— BEWMZE (H:E15) — Investment properties (note 15) 2,455 2,728
— BVEE — Intangible assets 19 23
INOLRREREGE Outsourced installation fee and
transportation expenses 9,911 5,922
HAa RIS Other tax charges 4,237 3,285
BXEEA Professional fees 1,374 3,203
% B8R0 B & Auditor’s remuneration
— BTAR® — Audit services 1,491 1,396
XBBEE Entertainment expenses 1,992 957
HAER Office expenses 1,162 893
ZIRER Travelling expenses 1,396 1,304
RIEHEMERERE Allowance for impairment of properties
held for sale - 2,668
FERERK Allowance for impairment of inventories 1,145 919
B Other expenses 2,640 1,912
BEHERSE HERXR Total cost of sales, selling expenses
ITBRMX and administrative expenses 192,722 161,701

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

7 HiA 7 OTHER INCOME
HE12A1BILLERE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
BT R B (B X (a)) Government subsidies (note (a)) 927 655
REBRT (F5E(0) Value-added tax (“VAT”) refunds
(note (b)) 305 286
1,232 941

Bt 5 Notes:

@ BN#MEEEEAEESkEEEEREETEES (@ Government subsidies mainly represented subsidies for the Group’s intelligent
Tt EEE ERE AL © manufacturing projects and contribution of stabling staff employment.

() WBEHEBABBER  2EWE R RESEREER (o)  According to the relevant tax regulations, the sale of self-developed software
EERAB(EEBRHGDHEEBTHERGER products of a wholly owned subsidiary, Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology
BERREZ2027TF4A B ZHEFER Co., Ltd. (“Haisheng Software”), was entitled to VAT refunds until April 2027.

8 Hitwliis (&518) — B8 8 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

BE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
bE 5 Wz, (&5 18) Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 7,817 (2,451)
BAFESFABENEREER Fair value gains on financial assets
N EW S at FVPL 237 624
MTESBMTANAFTERR Fair value gains on derivative financial
(P 3% (a)) instruments (note(a)) 173 306
HEYWE  WMENMEREENKZ Gans on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 16 —
Hith Others (76) 184
8,167 (1,337)
Bt = Note:
(@) Wzt BRI IMNE Yz - R2022F 12318 » I (@  The gains were primary attributable to the foreign exchange gains. There are no

EAREERPINEAHD - N2021F12A31H * K
EiEEHINE S Y B & % AN 5 A4,877,000%
7T HERHARE31,001,0007T @ AFEWZE
R2022 5 &38 -

outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December 2022. The
notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange
contracts as at 31 December 2021 were USD4,877,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB31,091,000, the fair value gains have been realised in 2022.

— & — —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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9 REERARX 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
T8 HehBIBRELA Wages, salaries and discretionary
bonuses 17,510 14,376
Hib i REKA « EFFI & Other social security costs, housing
HibfE BRF benefits and other employee benefits 4,702 3,887
BRESHRA — REM-KETE]  Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 2,124 1,968
24,336 20,231
(@ ABEREHFAL (a) Five highest paid individuals

FAXEEREGESHFATERE=4A The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
(20215 : MB)EE - BENMSRME Group for the year include three (2021: two) directors whose
S4FTREI DT R R o F R FER E RS emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in note 34. The

(20215 : =F) ATHIBES AT emoluments payable to the remaining two

individuals during the year are as follows:

(2021: three)

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

HBE12A3181LEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021

I8 HeREL Wages, salaries and bonuses 693 942

HibEERF Other employee benefits 111 154

BRARESKA — EREMEFHETE]  Pension costs — defined contribution

plans 81 129
885 1,225

MIE - Note:

0] REZE2022F12A31 B ILEE  MERZR % 0] During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the five highest paid
AT WA &5 E B & 1E A 00 A 7R 5 B /Y 28 B 5k 2k individuals received emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or upon
RERALA R (E - joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

BERDERNERHOBERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES BT - BRIFMAZBBEUARE T LIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

B T LA T EE R A S The number of individuals whose emoluments fell within the
following band:
HE12A318ILEE
Year ended 31 December
202245 20214
2022 2021
P& & E (&) Emolument band (in HK$)
T 1,000,000/ 7T (FHERZE  Nil — HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to nil —
2= AR #893,3007T) RMB893,300) 2 8
10 BAFZUEA 10 FINANCE INCOME
HE12A318ILEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
RITHIBULA Bank interest income 2,835 2,545
REIR UGS Amortisation of unearned financial
income 90 96
2,925 2,641

—s-——spgs 17
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11 FfRHAX (%)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
EHAMER — REMCEEH Current income tax — PRC corporate
income tax 438 446
EEATFH (BHEE19) Deferred income tax (note 19) 324 (984)
762 (538)

BR N3Pt By R B (R R FT S ARSI -
BAMMEMRLEEENMMER

AEE

PEEEMEH
ZER B L E R AR B AR SZ ) B BB M B AR AR R
ARBBRAEN -

BEFBECERASHE(HEEMGEH
ED) O ARFTMBEBRACEMSHEXA
25% o IRBFEEMBTENHBER -
RARARFERIEMEEER  URBE
2022F 12 A31H IEF EH A 15% (2021
F15%) TR B EREHRE o

B ZE2022F12A31AILFE - BB ER
FHREAR AR (DEREMEF]) FE /MK
PEERK - PR ARE1,000,0007TH) FER
PAERA2.5%MEFH B EAMEHE -
i A R 1,000,000t £ A F #3,000,000
TT A FERR B F B Al R F 5% RO AS FA R 1 ZE AT
1SHE (2021F : DRIA5%K%10%) °

HZE2022F12A31BILEE  RAIHE
MO BB N T FE F 25% (2021 4F : 25%) Hy 1R
EERE -

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Except for the PRC corporate income tax described below, the
Group is not subject to income tax of other jurisdictions.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within the
Group established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”), the Company’s applicable CIT rate is 25%. Under the
relevant regulations of the New CIT Law, the Company was
qualified as High/New Tech Enterprise, and applied a reduced
CIT rate of 156% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
15%).

Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Co., Ltd. (“Haisheng
Software”) was qualified as the Small and Micro Enterprise, the
taxable profit less than RMB1 million applied a reduced CIT rate
of 2.5%, the taxable profit between RMB1 million and RMB3
million applied a reduced CIT rate of 5% for the years ended
31 December 2022 (2021:5% and 10%, respectively).

The other subsidiary of the company applied a CIT rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 25%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

The difference between the actual income tax charge in the
consolidated income statement and the amount which would
result from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before tax can
be reconciled as follows:

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
B& BT 15 8t 50 F1 H Profit before income tax 23,366 4173
BETER 2% T EMTIE Taxation calculated at the statutory
tax rate of 25% 5,842 1,043
NTEENFE Effects of:
AEBTRME A ETE Different tax rates applicable to different
BRABE subsidiaries of the Group (2,468) (383)
ot 2% A 2 HO BB AN RE R Extra deduction allowance for research
and development expenses (1,442) (560)
g AR E RN R R Extra deduction allowance for newly
purchased equipment (619) —
FABATEERELSH  Utilisation of tax losses for which no
BEMNNIEEE deferred income tax asset was
recognised previously = (15)
B I ERERIRE TS Utilisation of temporary difference for
EEMERZEZRE which no deferred income tax asset
was recognised previously (644) (780)
] gk ET 1S B 0B A9 B 32 Expenses not deductible for income
tax purposes 93 157
FiBBiEx (ER) Income tax expense/(credit) 762 (538)

—s-——spgs 17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 BiEF 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

BRERBAMNAET ERBEFARRAR] The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

% 5 4 B DA R A A h A S5 & - attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares during the year.

HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
AN AR R AR R E A ) Profit attributable to equity shareholders
(AR®EFT) of the Company (RMB’000) 22,604 4,711
EETLABMMEFESE  Weighted average number of ordinary
(F&) shares in issue (thousand) 128,000 128,000
EBREARREEZF Basic and diluted earnings per share
(AR¥ES) (RMB cents) 17.66 3.68

AR AR A R20224F k2021412 A31H As the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
WERERBETEINEEE TS BR - E shares outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, diluted
RESRFNERGRELRRZT - earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share.

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

13 #HE 13 LEASES
HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
EREEE Right-of-use assets
B 1 A1 B FEY 4k Opening balance at 1 January 17,957 18,465
EEEREYE (MsE150b))  Transfers from investment properties
(note 15(b)) 3,783 —
B> H Amortisation charge (545) (508)
12831 B EREER Closing balance at 31 December 21,195 17,957
"12831H As at 31 December
B 7R Cost 27,913 23,462
EEs 3 Accumulated amortisation (6,718) (5,505)
BREE(E Net book amount 21,195 17,957

@ AEBEWFBFEAEEESRMRF (a) All the right-of-use assets are land use rights of the Group

BR R By £ {58 I - WARIR R HA50

FOHERS -

(o) AEELH(FERENEHEDFT AT (b) Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights were included
in the administrative expenses and cost of sales in the
amount of RMB206,000 and RMB339,000, respectively.

FAX REHEKA - RBEDRIRARE
206,0007T I A K% 339,0007T °

© AKBWHEELH

AEERBETYE  HEAH K

BYZN—F

() The Group’s leasing activities

which are located in Mainland China and are held on
leases for 50 years.

The Group leases out properties, the rental contracts are
typically made for periods of more than one year.

—E__FE®RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RIESBEH  BRIMEEHBAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

ry
14 Y%  -BERRE 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BiER
gF fes RE  EFERE BoERHE  ERRE HEIR ct
Computer
and
electronic Office Interior Construction
Buildings  Machinery Vehicles equipment equipment decoration in progress Total
#2021E1R18 At 1 January 2021
A Cost 93,850 14,710 7,280 5,356 1,860 3,546 156 126,758
e Accumulated depreciation (29,390) (6,139) (5,700) (4,857) (1,611) (670) - (48,267)
EEFE Net book amount 64,460 8,571 1,580 499 349 2,876 156 78,491
HF2021E12A31HIEEE  Year ended 31 December 2021
FHREFE Opening net book amount 64,460 8,571 1,580 499 349 2,876 156 78,491
NE Additions - 31 104 199 97 116 1,208 1,755
282 Transfers - 1,149 - 99 - - (1,248) -
HE Disposals - (39) 6) - - - - 45)
EZH Depreciation charge (4,239) (1,098) (598) (261) (118) (552) = (6,861)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 60,221 8,614 1,085 536 328 2,440 116 73,340
20215£12A318 At 31 December 2021
B Cost 93,850 15,537 7,262 5,654 1,957 3,662 116 128,038
2 E Accumulated depreciation (33,629) (6,923) 6,177) (5,118) (1,629) (1,222) = (54,698)
BEFE Net book amount 60,221 8,614 1,085 536 328 2,440 116 73,340
#HE20225F12A31BIEEE  Year ended 31 December 2022
FNEEFE Opening net book amount 60,221 8,614 1,085 536 328 2,440 116 73,340
NE Additions - 1,789 867 m 476 991 10,329 15,223
BRAKANE Transfers from investment
properties 10,664 = = = = = = 10,664
HERATRIR Transfers from construction in
progress = 6,010 = = = 807 (6,817) =
HE Disposals - ) (21) 6) - - - (30)
mELH Depreciation charge (4,477) (1,393) (546) (281) (116) (676) - (7,489)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 66,408 15,017 1,385 1,020 688 3,562 3,628 91,708
R20225£12R318 At 31 December 2022
A Cost 108,946 23,279 7,702 6,297 2,433 5,460 3,628 157,745
2EHNE Accumulated depreciation (42,538) (8,262) (6,317) (5,277) (1,745) (1,898) - (66,037)
BEFE Net book amount 66,408 15,017 1,385 1,020 688 3,562 3,628 91,708
82 ssmiEnEROERAD

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in

the consolidated income statement:

BE12A31BLLFEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
HE R Cost of sales 3,676 3,490
THRAX Administrative expenses 3,808 3,364
HE R Selling expenses 5 7
7,489 6,861
15 REYE 15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
BRAE At cost
B 1 A1 B FE Y4 Opening balance at 1 January 37,507 40,235
EERE T FERERYE «©  Transfers to land use right and property,

T B= Ko & 4 (P 3£ (b)) plant and equipment (note (b)) (14,447) —
EREHEST T Depreciation and amortisation charge (2,455) (2,728)
12831 B EREER Closing balance at 31 December 20,605 37,507
"12831H At 31 December
DN Cost 37,920 57,466
2 ITE R#EH Accumulated depreciation and

amortisation (17,315) (19,959)
RmFE Net book amount 20,605 37,507

(a) AEBRIKEMENMPAPE - FHK (@ The Group’s investment properties are located in the PRC
and measured using the cost model.

RIERETE -

—z-——spxz 18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

RESDEHATES  DEORE RS
(ERR AR AR - ARERANED
AFEEE=RATEHBETHE -

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

15 #REYE 15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(o) 202294 H30H @ AEBR FET (b) On 30 April 2022, lease of certain plants and office buildings
MWERFARENHEE  LEHNARB were ceased and the Group changed to self occupy such
B-ERNAREE AEEBRED plants and office buildings. Due to the change in use, the
XEFoBE AT HERAEUARDE - Group reclassified the investment properties to land use
R N 55 o right and property, plant and equipment.

) AEBEREVMENATFEBRBILZEFE (€) The fair value of Group’s investment properties is determined
EEBGERITIGPCERREE by an independent professional qualified valuer, Jiangsu
AEBERAGIEFEE c NEEIRE Zhongtian Assets Appraisal Office Co., Ltd, on an annual
MEH N TER - ERMERRBE basis. In determining the fair value of the investment
(R BaiE) ERMISH A LR MISR properties, the valuer uses assumptions and estimates
SRRERGE  HEHEEEMNHA that reflect, amongst other factors, comparable market
SRANRERBERTR - TE - & transactions in an active market, rental income from current
B ERIEFRAB NG HBARK leases and assumptions about rental income from future
HEHSWABRE - REMELTE leases in light of current market conditions, capitalisation
AR ASER S A EERFEHAT rates, terminal vyield and reversionary income potential.

Valuations were based on income approach and market
approach, the fair value of the investment properties are as
follows:
®12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
KEMENRTEE Fair value of the investment properties 72,088 89,455

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use. The fair value of
the Group’s investment properties was measured on Level 3 fair
value measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES BT - BRIFMAZBBEUARE T LIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 #REYE 15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
REEMERGEERARERNEEN The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated
T income statement for investment properties:
BE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022 20214
2022 2021
e WA Rental income 5,614 5,806
EXASWANEELERME Diect operating expenses that generate
rental income (2,455) (2,728)
3,159 3,078
16 KMIBAT 16 SUBSIDIARIES
AR B R2022612 A31 B HV T B A 7% The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2022:
B
& A A S 4t B % BT
AT & ERERER RERER FEERANETEERZ IBEBREZEDY
Place of
incorporation and Registered/issued Ownership interest Principal activities and
Name of company kind of legal entity and paid-up capital held by the group place of operations
20225F 20214
2022 2021
TEEERBRERERAT] FE - BREERA ARS5,000,0007T 100% 100% fE7 BT HME &
g5
Jiangsu Sunlit Equipment Technology the PRC, RMB5,000,000 Machinery products
Company Limited Limited liability trading in the PRC
company
SRRt PR BREERA AR1,080,0007T 100% 100% HEFFEETRHFER
RHEFNRE S
Haisheng Software the PRC, RMB1,080,000 Software development
Limited liability and software patent
company rights trading in the
PRC
“E_FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17 BRERNEISHET A 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
®12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
SRIEE Financial assets

REBERATENEHMEE Financial assets at amortised cost

B NhHMEWTE (M @) Trade and other receivables (note (a)) 242,368 260,153
RekBeSEER Cash and cash equivalents 113,250 33,817
BRFIER Restricted cash 108,617 59,875
EHfF K Time deposits 59,970 76,459
BAFEESTANIERMETESB  Derivative financial instruments
I8 at FVPL = 227
act Total 524,205 430,531
®12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
SHEE Financial liabilities
RBREERETENESHEE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
&=k (f3E28) Borrowings (note 28) 2,000 —
B 5 NEMENZIE (M5 D) Trade and other payables (note (b)) 163,873 52,273
165,873 52,273

B

(@)

(o)

Notes:
TBEEGHNEE - (@) Excluding contract assets.
TEFEEMEMNTE ENEERIAREERE (b) Excluding other taxes payables,
P B - quality warranty expenses.
BERNENEROGERA A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

employee benefits payables and provision for
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 SHIEE - BES R HMEWRIE 18 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
B S EWRIE Trade receivables
FE U BR 3 (I3 (@) Accounts receivable (note (a)) 216,915 220,159
B FE R FURLE & IR Less: allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable (52,239) (49,829)
FEUBR SR — F5 Accounts receivable — net 164,676 170,330
EEXSES i) Commercial acceptance notes (note (b)) 43,495 40,053
B BEZRBREER Less: allowance for impairment of
commercial notes (2,042) (1,561)
EEANZE — F5 (MisE({)) Commercial acceptance notes — net
(note (b)) 41,453 38,492
SR1TACH Z & (K3 (o)) Bank acceptance notes (note (b)) 33,457 47,652
B 5 RWKRIE — F8 Trade receivables — net 239,586 256,474
EHEE (5F () Contract assets (note (c)) 23,794 376
B ANEERBERE Less: allowance for impairment of contract
assets (1,306) —
EHEE — T Contract assets — net 22,488 376
HihEWRIE Other receivables
H b J& W R IE Other receivables 3,503 4,467
B RERB WA Less: unearned financial income (254) (312)
R At IR R E R Less: allowance for impairment of other
receivables (467) (476)
Hib EUKRIE — JFH5 Other receivables — net 2,782 3,679
264,856 260,529
JERBEB D Non-current portion 3,408 1,642
mENE Current portion 261,448 258,887
264,856 260,529

—z-——spxz 18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18

BHEE  EHREMEIRIE

(#8)

PHELER ERRRENS  REREER
FEENWMAI  ARBEHESNARET P RS
LR1BORMER - MHET MU REMM S -
AEEEHERNARETEPKEB0EIOKRH
EEH -

AEBNRUZBERERTAAZTBEREFEAL
R B—RPA\BEZFAHRRASEART =@
AREE -

MW2022F 12 A31H * B E & A R %9,610,000
TEBERIERREEEMNEENER (R2021412
A31H : ARK%6,320,0007T) °

EHEEREREERESHERTENARMLE
EERDRENSD - ZEHEAREREAERE
H(—RAMELBRURBRE 12318 A) EiR
& B B UER

18

Notes:

(@)

CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

For sale of production lines, standalone machines and equipment, apart from the
portion of product quality warranty, the Group grants less than 180 days credit
terms to customers in the sales contract. For sale of components parts and
accessories, the Group grants 30 to 90 days credit terms to certain customers
in sales contract.

Notes receivables of the Group include bank acceptance notes and commercial
acceptance notes, and are usually settled within six months or twelve months
from the date of issue.

As at 31 December 2022, notes receivables of RMB9,610,000 were pledged as
security for the Group’s notes payable (As at 31 December 2021 :
RMB6,320,000).

Contract assets are the portions of product quality warranty satisfied the
performance obligation but do not have the right to collect consideration. These
are due for collection upon the expiry of product quality warranty period, which
is usually 12 or 18 months from the acceptance by the customer of the
equipment.

Aging analysis based on recognition date of gross accounts

MEEEBERERRRERER R HE
BEER AT : receivable at the respective balance sheet dates is as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2022 20214
2022 2021
1A Within 1 year 66,447 104,184
1E24F 1-2 years 75,971 49,819
2E3F 2-3 years 38,029 28,179
3FLE Over 3 years 36,468 37,977
216,915 220,159
BHBRNENBRBROHERD A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets, trade and
other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

®12A318
As at 31 December
20224F 20214
2022 2021
AR RMB 262,719 259,176
ETT USD 2,137 1,353
264,856 260,529

BHEE BURER BEALRERE
i FE WK IR R E R IR 2 B T -

Movements of allowance for impairment of contract assets,
accounts receivable, commercial acceptance notes, other
receivables are as follows:

#E12A31BLLFEE
Year ended 31 December

20224 20214

2022 2021

R1A1BEMEER Opening balance as at 1 January 51,866 50,039

BB B FRE Net impairment losses 4,284 3,465
B B1ME Bl 5T 8RB S 18 Reversal of impairment losses for

individual assessment = (49)

H S S BT k1= A E U SR8 Receivables written off as uncollectible (96) (1,589)

12831 HBIEKR 6% Closing balance at 31 December 56,054 51,866

ERENG K EE KRB KIBRIENRL
MEREFAGERBERANIEREE
REHEEREBEFR] -HEHEARK
BRI — AR A TR B UK B BR SNR 2 B B

The creation and release of allowance for impaired contract
assets and receivables have been included in “Net impairment
losses on financial assets and contract assets” in the
consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

—=-——sgHs 189
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 AHBE -ESRHMMEWMIE 18 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND OTHER
(#) RECEIVABLES (Continued)
2 5 N H Ath RN FIE R BRI B B2 A B AR The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
2 approximate their fair values.

off IR

REE AN &= ERARRY ERE The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
HEWHIEMNERERNE ASEWEFEE carrying amounts of each class of receivables mentioned above.

AT IR R EELR © The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
19 BEFSHEE — FHE 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET
BEMBHREESTAT ¢ The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:
"12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
EEFRBHRHEE : Deferred income tax assets:
— BRERBE121E A & Uk @ — to be recovered after more than
12 months 10,531 9,893
— B2 A AU — to be recovered within 12 months 3,569 3,954
14,100 13,847
IBEFRBER Deferred income tax liabilities:
— BRBBE12{8 A %Yk O — to be recovered after more than
12 months (537) -
— BR12ME A R mE — to be recovered within 12 months (74) (34)
(611) (34)
IBEFBHREE — FE Deferred income tax assets — net 13,489 13,813

90 =g EREBRAERAR
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET

(Continued)
RILEFTEMEESS T ¢ The movement on the deferred income tax assets is as follows:
BERERE KRERAE BEEE Hith st
Allowance
for  Unrealised
impairment profit Tax losses Others Total
202151H18 At 1 January 2021 11,465 22 1,037 323 12,847
FAHE) RAkER Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement 519 63 420 2) 1,000
"2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 11,984 85 1,457 321 13,847
"2022%1A1H At 1 January 2022 11,984 85 1,457 321 13,847
FA/NE) e KER Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement 890 72 (719) 10 253
2022%£12A31H At 31 December 2022 12,874 157 738 331 14,100

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities is as

follows:
Y BER
RIBINEN AFEE
ERHER Y 25 st
Temporary
differences of
property, plant
and equipment Fair value
depreciation gains Total
2202151 A1H At 1 January 2021 — (18) (18)
MBEHZREREE Charged to the consolidated income
statement — (16) (16)
2021%¥12H31H At 31 December 2021 — (34) (34)
202251A1H At 1 January 2022 - (34) (34)
(B)FFALFEWER (Charged)/credited to the
consolidated income statement (611) 34 (577)
#2022%12H31H At 31 December 2022 (611) = (611)
—EZCFERE

—=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 BEFIRHEE — FH®

2022F12A31H - AEBER AT ENE
BrERLY A ARKET8,914,0007T (2021
£ AR #81,066,0007T) ° AEEE B
202212 AT B KA BRI ERER
BRABREHIEEE - AEEZN2021F
12A31 BZEUENEREZENARK
78,492,000 L ERIELEIRIBE E ©

A K #4,440,0007T &) i 18 /&5 18 #5110 2026
FHHY -

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET
(Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB78,914,000(2021:
RMB81,066,000). All of the deductible temporary differences
have been recognised as deferred tax asset as at 31 December
2022. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately RMB78,492,000 of such deductible temporary
differences as at 31 December 2021.

The tax losses of RMB4,440,000 will expire in 2026.

20 &8 20 INVENTORIES
®12A318
As at 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
R Raw materials 89,425 25,846
E& M Work in progress 91,856 60,532
UK Finished goods 18,775 27,095
DN Cost 200,056 113,473
VERIEREEE Allowance for impairment (3,582) (4,505)
R FE Net book amount 196,474 108,968

HE2022F12A31ALEE - R AR
TWEATHEXN I NFEXTNBAR
#143,586,0007C (20214F : AR ¥
115,732,0007T) © R BEFERERK
AR ¥1,145,0007T (20214 : A R#&
919,0007T) * ARAAEBEEHEHEEE
& i % 15 B A K # 2,068,000t (2021
F: AR¥924,0007T) °

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in “Cost of sales”
amounted to approximately RMB143,586,000 (2021:
RMB115,732,000), which included the allowance for impairment
of inventories of RMB1,145,000 (2021: RMB919,000) and
reversal of impairment of RMB2,068,000 (2021: RMB924,000) as
the Group sold the relevant goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

21 [EHEYE 21 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
R1B1BEDNHEER Opening balance at 1 January 46,495 49,482
e Disposals (2,941) (319)
VERIEREE Allowance for impairment - (2,668)
P12A31 HEREER Closing balance at 31 December 43,554 46,495
®12A31H At 31 December
B AR Cost 55,146 59,123
BEEE Allowance for impairment (11,592) (12,628)
BREFE Net book amount 43,554 46,495

FR20184F + ZN/A &) [m) LU 3R B 3 5 Hh /2= el %
BRARI(TERDBERELRERET
22 I = & 5 % 2695k A SR 1E B U166 E (X
E([ZEWE]D BRERBRARE
74,349,0007C ° ZEMHEHNRED B BE
HILRBBMESERAA(KAARP
REFMBEB AR BERXARQRNEE N
REZBSEHATAIN - AEERTEEZ
ZYE Bt BREERRBIFELE
W% o R2022F 128310 * AR AHFA
EHh125%& (20214F12A31H8 : 135E) »

In 2018, the Company acquired from Shandong Snton Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd (the “Vendor”) 166 residential units
of Tong Xing Garden at No. 269 Guangxing Road, Kenli District,
Dongying City, Shandong Province, the PRC (the “Properties”) at
an aggregate consideration of RMB74,349,000. The
consideration for the Properties has been settled by way of
setting off the same outstanding amount owed to the Company
by Shandong Snton Steelcord Co., Ltd., which is a customer of
the Company and a related company of the Vendor. The
Group’s intention is to sell these Properties and, accordingly,
such assets are recognised as properties held for sale. At
31 December 2022, the Company held 125 such units
(81 December 2021: 135 units).

—E__FE®RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 FEFRIE 22 PREPAYMENTS
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
i E R MR R TR 3B Prepayments for purchase of raw
materials 11,998 3,904
TE AT HE (B FR N L At B 1R Prepayments for value added tax and
other taxes 3 32
12,001 3,936

23 RE&ERIRITHEEES

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

®12A31H

As at 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
RITREFRS Cash at bank and on hand 113,250 33,817
|ITER Bank deposits 168,587 136,334
281,837 170,151
B BRHIIRE (@) Less: Restricted cash (note (a)) (108,617) (59,875)
B EEFE R (M3 (o)) Less: Time deposits (note (b)) (59,970) (76,459)
HekReFBEEE Cash and cash equivalents 113,250 33,817

BERNENEROGERA A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES BT - BRIFMAZBBEUARE T LIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Notes:
BRHFESATINEEFTELETF A : (@  The restricted cash is denominated in the following currencies and purposes:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021
MEBEITRENZERE R Pledged for issue of notes payables
— AR¥ —RMB 33,359 2,610
— X —UusD 11,811 26,174
BEAELR o E 1 Pledged for letter of guarantee*
— AR¥ —RMB 31,467 -
— £ —USD 31,980 —
BESINEE ER A Pledged for foreign exchange option
— AR¥% —R™MB - 31,091
108,617 59,875
* BREE-EZNEPIIVNGHE  ~A5EH * Pursuant to an agreement with a new customer, the Group received cash
ZEFPRERSANRIERTEN T BN advance from the customer as first installment of the order. Accordingly,
KBl AEEERETREERTZ the Group pledged certain cash and issued letter of guarantee with
BEEUREZFLERIERER  FPRe amounts equivalent to 10% of the contract amount, to the customer as
HHEERENSTENI10% © ZEREZR security, such letter of guarantee will be released upon planned delivery
MR 8RR fEEd - of the goods.
AEENRSERESEEEE - THERA The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and restricted
RAERGIRES AT EREE - cash are denominated in the following currencies:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2022£F 20214
2022 2021
AR RMB 210,803 64,245
BT HKD 7 7
E usD 71,027 105,899
281,837 170,151
ST E ) AEE AL LD RIE - T 1T (b) The initial term of time deposits was over 3 months and less than 1 year. The

FR2022F 12 A31 B IETFHERMNERETF
2.51% (2021F 12831 H : §41.35%) °

weighted average effective interest rate of time deposits as at 31 December
2022 was 2.51% per annum (31 December 2021: 1.35% per annum).

—s-——apgs 195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

24 BRERRGERE

BT
EnEE [ % 17 it 18 st
Number of
issued Share Share
shares capital premium Total
(B
(shares)
#20225F At 1 January 2022 and
2021¢1H1H 2021 128,000,000 128,000 311,464 439,464
220225 % At 31 December 2022 and
2021%E12A31H 2021 128,000,000 128,000 311,464 439,464
25 REEFA 25 RETAINED EARNINGS
AREBTR
RMB’000
®2021%E1A81H At 1 January 2021 127,464
F AT E Profit for the year 4,711
FRZE2ES (HE26(b)) Use of safety fund (note 26(b)) 173
BR AT AR B (F5E29) Dividend paid (note 29) (6,400)
®2021E12H31H At 31 December 2021 125,948
20221818 At 1 January 2022 125,948
F AN H Profit for the year 22,604
FAZE2ES (H:E26(b)) Use of safety fund (note 26(b)) 317
2022%12H31H At 31 December 2022 148,869
EHRNEREROBERD A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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FEMBRERME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

26 f#E 26 RESERVES

BERAE EEEE 45 Rl e st

Capital Statutory Special
reserves reserves reserves Total

(Pt 5% (a)) (P 3£ (b))

(note (a)) (note (b))
#20215E1H1H At 1 January 2021 17,637 38,879 10,256 66,772
FHLEEE Use of safety fund — — (173) (173)
#2021%E12A831H At 31 December 2021 17,637 38,879 10,083 66,599
®20221H1H At 1 January 2022 17,637 38,879 10,083 66,599
PFHRZEES Use of safety fund - - (317) (317)
20224128 31H At 31 December 2022 17,637 38,879 9,766 66,282

Ff&E

(@)

R IR B AR B 12 R A AR DA B e rp B AR S BT
AR (HEEEER)WASSREAR  hEE
EERBUABEHEEMNEFBRENFEZMAN (R
RS ETAERIEE) #910%5 2 K (£ 45 7 A #5 5
EEEEBATEL - BEETERAEENERE
Hh B2 EEBEMEANE0% AT HRREIE
RTE T — RO BE R -

BRERRLZEEEEEBEARN2012F/MHH
ETER BHoEEERAERRANETES
HEALREES - ZEES T ARSI RE
Z&2 AR AERRRES IR RELELZEMAX
% SEREECERSHFBEZRERAT -

Notes:

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC Operational
Entities”), the PRC Operational Entities are required to appropriate 10% of their
annual net profit, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the
PRC accounting standards, to the statutory surplus reserve fund before
distributing any net profit. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
fund reaches 50% of the registered capital of the PRC Operational Entities, any
further transfer is at the discretion of shareholders.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State of Administration of Work
Safety in 2012, certain group entities are required to set aside an amount to a
safety fund at certain percentage of revenue. The fund can be used for
improvement of safety for machinery manufacturing, and is not available for
distribution to shareholders. Upon incurring safety expenditure, an equivalent
amount is transferred from safety fund to retained earnings.

—E-_FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27 BHRHEMEMARIE

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

®12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
B 5 A I8 (M iE@) Trade payables (note (a)) 86,765 21,528
ANES:ACIEA () Notes payable (note (b)) 70,801 26,330
HENNEERZR Quality warranty deposits from suppliers 2,508 2,463
FEfE B 7 Employee benefits payables 2,453 2,267
Y - B MERERENFKIE  Payables for property, plant and
equipment 1,522 16
HAth fE SRR IR Other taxes payables 4,551 3,759
EERERZEE Provision for quality warranty expenses 304 240
HA Others 2,277 1,936
171,181 58,539
B 5E - Notes:
(@) B RMNFIENRRSTET ¢ (@) Aging analysis of trade payables is as follows:
#12H318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
14ER Within 1 year 82,843 21,206
1824 1-2 years 3,606 225
2FE3F 2-3 years 219 —
3FE Over 3 years 97 97
86,765 21,528
(o) FEZRARBITE IR S FREER (H7E23) - (o)  The notes payables are secured by pledge of cash deposits to banks (note 23).

EHERNDENBZROBRAE
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED




FEMBRERME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES BT - BRIFMAZBBEUARE T LIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28 B 28 BORROWINGS
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
1F A Within 1 year 2,000 —
BREHRBHEECERERKIBEERE M The total balance of borrowings relates to transferred

BRARTALRIEDIBERK LHER
RARATEBREZETANBRANKEE
SRk -

29 B
RARRERGWEERIKREEHZE2021F12
AB1HILFEMARE - BLE2020%12 A
SIHEFERBPRESRARKO.05T
(A% B #2%8 A R #6,400,0007T) B 72021
F2EURM -

ARREETERZSIRE E2022F12H4
STHIEFEMREARESRARK0.087T
(B B 4a%E A R¥10,240,0007T) @ HERE
RIEABRBEE BZBEREAFRER
20236 HORBRITHRRBF AE it
) o

receivables, the bank acceptance notes were discounted but
were not derecognised as the Group retained late payment and
credit risk of the issuers.

29 DIVIDENDS

No dividend of the year ended 31 December 2021 has been
proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company. A final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of
RMBO0.05 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
RMB6,400,000, has been fully paid in 2021.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2022 of RMB0.08 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
RMB10,240,000 has been proposed by the Board of Directors
of the Company but not recognised as a liability at year end.
The proposed dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
9 June 2023.

—z-——spxzs 19
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(@ PFRAAGHATANBERSEMSHRESNE (@  Reconciliations of profit before income tax to cash generated

30 EEMRRE

RN : from operations were as follow:
HE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
B& Fir 1% %t g #1 H Profit before income tax 23,366 4,173
MATSIEFE Adjustments for:
— EREH (fiEe) — Depreciation and amortisation (note 6) 10,508 10,120
— BWHFEREHNEERE — Net allowance for impairment of
HHF 58 (FI3E18) receivables and contract assets
(note 18) 4,284 3,416
— FERAEEE (M320) — Allowance for impairment of inventories
(note 20) 1,145 919
— FIEHEMEREBEHE — Allowance for impairment of properties
(FfF5E21) held for sale (note 21) - 2,668
— RER B A — Amortisation of unearned financial income
(FF3E10) (note 10) (90) (96)
— HEWE - BEAZENWZE — Gains on disposal of property, plant and
(ffF7£8) equipment (note 8) (16) =
— BBA — Finance income (1,260) =
— BATEFABZNES/H — Fair value gains on financial assets at fair
BEMATFEKE value through profit or loss (note 8)
(FfF3E8) (237) (624)
— EX () 18 (KisEs) — Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (note 8) (7,817) 2,451
— TESRIT AN A FEKE — Fair value gains on derivative financial
(PfF7E8) instruments (note 8) (173) (306)
BESSEHHAIEEFH : Operating profit before changes in
working capital: 29,710 22,721
BEESSEH Changes in working capital
— 78 — Inventories (88,651) 3,660
— REHEME — Properties held for sale 2,941 319
— FEfIE — Prepayments (8,065) 10,069
— BHEE B RHAMEIR — Contract assets, trade and other
B receivables (13,278) (58,721)
— BRHIFEE — Restricted cash (77,896) 1,270
— B MEMENFKIE — Trade and other payables 111,136 (14,716)
— AHEaE — Contract liabilities 75,210 1,438
BEMSB (R RE Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 31,107 (33,960)
BERNENEROGERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 ZEMBRE W 30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Continued)
b) RExeHERERTP  HEWE W (o) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
BEREEOFSRIERE sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:
HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20225 20214
2022 2021

ﬁﬁ'«%¥ MENEBRERFTS  Proceeds from disposal of the property,

I8 plant and equipment 46 45

) EBHFEHER (€) Net debt reconciliation
EHEEBFENEHZHMT : The movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.
REETHHER

Liabilities from
financing activities

=N
Borrowings
R2022%F1 A1 BEKFHE Net debt as at 1 January 2022 -
BMERSRA Financing cash inflow 7,000
R2022% 12 A31 HMES F58 Net debt as at 31 December 2022 7,000
31 EXRKIE 31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
RERE BB mMEF  EFJHERBENE Capital expenditures contracted and not provided for in the
ARAZWT : consolidated financial statements are as follows:
®12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
M - B REE Property, plant and equipment 2,892 —

—z-——zpRz 20
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32 FBAXRS

AEEBRERLEE - REBRLERKREF
T RAES  BER2022512 A31
B R+ H AR A)60.34% B I -

RE 220224 {2021 FE12 A31H IE£F
[§  ANEE & EER T ETEREARAR
% o

() EEEEEWHE
TEEHEREES EEkafER
[E - & 220224 K&2021F12 A31H L&
ENFETEE/ESIIGOT :

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang Degang,
Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua, who collectively
held 60.34% direct equity interest in the Company as at
31 December 2022.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
significant transaction has been carried out between the Group
and related parties.

(a) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors, supervisors and senior
management. The key management compensation for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out as below:

HBZE12A318LLEE
Year ended 31 December

2022 20214
2022 2021

FEEEEME Key management compensation
— I8 Hekita — Wages, salaries and bonuses 2,310 2,319
— B RERKE — Welfare and pension 556 541
2,866 2,860

BERDERNERHOBERA A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY

FEMBRERME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

EATNEEBRBR Balance sheet of the Company
®12A318
As at 31 December
B 5 20225 20214
Note 2022 2021
&aE ASSETS
ERHEE Non-current assets
FREEE Right-of-use assets 21,195 17,957
W WE R Property, plant and equipment 86,955 67,870
wEME Investment properties 17,349 33,946
B AE Intangible assets 13 32
R B R RIEE Investments in subsidiaries 24,719 24,719
EHEE ESHNMEM Contract assets, trade and
JE W IE other receivables 3,408 1,642
RIEFTEHEE — FE Deferred income tax assets
— net 8,069 8,544
161,708 154,710
RENEE Current assets
BE Inventories 197,522 109,533
RIELEWE Properties held for sale 43,554 46,495
A IE Prepayments 11,999 3,904
EHEE -EHNHEM Contract assets, trade and
JiE Uk k08 other receivables 241,771 244,311
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 227
ERHIFEE Restricted cash 108,617 59,875
7E BRI 77 3K Time deposits 59,970 76,459
RekBFeEBEEE Cash and cash equivalents 112,045 33,572
775,478 574,376
mEE Total assets 937,186 729,086
—E__FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

33 XATIMBEERBRN#EEE 33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

(#) OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
RXATMEEERERH) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
®12A318
As at 31 December
B FE 20224 20214
Note 2022 2021
i EQUITY
fi% Z< Share capital 128,000 128,000
&7 & (B Share premium 311,464 311,464
] Reserves (Pt 5% (a))
(Note(a)) 83,670 83,987
REB&F| Retained earnings (Ff5E(a))
(Note(a)) 113,074 86,968
ERES Total equity 636,208 610,419
BE LIABILITIES
REBE Current liabilities
B REMENIKIE Trade and other payables 181,148 76,427
EHEaE Contract liabilities 117,414 42,136
EHMEHAs Current income tax liabilities 416 104
& Borrowings 2,000 —
300,978 118,667
HEE Total liabilities 300,978 118,667
HESRAR Total equity and liabilities 937,186 729,086

204 sExmhrEMERAERAD
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Misf(a) FATHIRERS

(BRFESHERA - BRIFMEBHEAARE T IR

FEMBRERME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

BEXAE ZEEMHE BHEE REEE KRIEN

Capital Statutory Special Total Retained

reserves reserves reserves reserves earnings

?20215E1H1H At 1 January 2021 38,065 35,839 10,256 84,160 69,394
F R FE Profit for the year = = = = 23,801
PALEES Safety fund used - — (173) (173) 173

EEIRRE Dividend declared — — — — (6,400)
R2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 38,065 35,839 10,083 83,987 86,968
®2022F1H1H At 1 January 2022 38,065 35,839 10,083 83,987 86,968
AR Profit for the year - - - - 25,789
FHZEES Safety fund used - - (817) (317) 317
R 20225E12HA31H At 31 December 2022 38,065 35,839 9,766 83,670 113,074

34 EERESEEFRER

(@ EEREEMNHE
EEEREEHZE202F12A31ALF
EH)FrBHE s T

(a)

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS
Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

BRERE
- REHK 2R
i s ET B4 el BEHEH @t
Pension
costs
— defined Allowances
Discretionary contribution and benefits
Name Fees Salaries bonus plans in kind Total
WITEE Executive Directors
R Zhang Degang - 364 137 44 56 601
wRER (M) Zhang Degjiang (note (i) - 360 144 4 64 612
BEE Feng Lili = 219 34 41 60 354
EQTEE Non-executive Directors
RARE Zhang Jinghua - - - - - -
BIEBTES Independent Non-executive Directors
e Yu Jianfeng 80 - - - - 80
Byl Zhong Ruifeng 80 = = - - 80
228 Liang Yaozu 80 = - - _ 80
o Supervisors
DEHES Yang Jinghua - 107 12 21 34 174
B Wei Vi - - - - - -
I Peng Jiashan - - - - - -
240 1,050 327 150 214 1,981

— & — —

—=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 EERESEANRER @ 34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)
(a) EEREENINEZ (®) (a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
BEEREEHE2021F12A31B L4 The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year
EREMEA T ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
BREKA
— REHRK AR
e e e BIETEAL Bk EMEF FoH
Pension
costs

— defined  Allowances
Discretionary  contribution  and benefits

Name Fees Salaries bonus plans in kind Total

BTES Executive Directors

R Zhang Degang - 460 38 43 56 597

ERCEACE) Zhang Degjiang (note (i) - 450 45 43 64 602

FBITES Non-executive Directors

ST Gao Feng = = = = = =

REREE Zhang Jinghua = = = = = =

BIEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

] Liu Chaojian 44 - - - - 44

WEH Ho Yuk Ming Hugo 45 = - = - 45

58 Gao Fuping 45 = = = = 45

e Yu Jianfeng 43 - - = - 43

Ehnie Zhong Ruifeng 43 - = = = 43

22 Liang Yaozu 43 - - - - 43

BE Supervisors

SERE Yang Jinghua - 109 11 23 28 171

B Wei Vi - - - - — —

Zmu Peng Jiashan = = = = = =

263 1,019 94 109 148 1,633

B 5 - Note:

0] RARNRSITRABBERESHRBEAE - 0] The chief executive of the Company is Mr. Zhang Degiang, who is also a director.
REZE2022F12A31 B ILFE - HIEESWEA During the year ended 31 December 2022, no directors received emoluments
SEMESEAMAREB S ABKORESHIER from the Group as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
BEBAEE MEEENEXRAERNETAMS compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or had agreed to waive any
(20214 : &) © emoluments (2021: Nil).

(b) EFERHKEF (b) Directors’ retirement benefits

BEEENE RN WA EE AR R None of the directors received or will receive any retirement

BN (20214 : &) - benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

206 msmioENEROGERAT
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34 EEREEREARER @

(c) EEHEERN
BT E 0 G A B U ER K 5 Uk B AT {a) Bl Bk
BA) (20214 : &) o

(d) REGESRBRBZ=FREHNRE

REE2022F12A31B IEFE - K& H
WEFRESESRGRETME =M
B (20214 : #) -

(e) WEE -  ZZRFEFEHNZAER
RREERENMEERATEANE
R EERERMXZHER

MREE2022F12A31R IEFE - HI&EIA
BEX XREFEFEFEIAERBRZF
EXZNHEERRIBEANER  BEXR
KEAMRR 5T HE (20214 « &) -

N EFEERXS RHEISHPHEX
HEx

RE R F REREHE - ERQ AR

VCoEESERETHBEEAEZ (THE

B E) BEARREBEENEAR

2 RHREHNTFE(21F : ) -

35 HAREIE

20231 A31H SEETEEEERE
e G B EP (TEA ) fT e - &
I BRBHRELEMESREEE —
ERR2022F 12 31 BIIERE WX Mg
F BREAARK13,085,0007T - A&
ETEHAR B £2023F 1231 L FE 5
HE—BREMEBRBREDARE
8,210,0007T °

FEMBRERME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIES AR TRAIFMBEEUARE FLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not

pay consideration to any third parties for making available

directors’ services (2021: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there are no loans,

quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the

directors, or controlled body corporates and connected entities
of such directors (2021: Nil).

(ff Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in

relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was

a party and in which a director of the Company had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year (2021: Nil).

35 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 31 January 2023, a group entity, Haisheng Software entered
into an agreement with a local government authority(“the
Purchaser”), pursuant to which Haisheng Software has agreed to
sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to purchase a building
currently included as investment properties as at 31 December
2022 for a total consideration of RMB13,085,000. The Group is
expected to record a gain of approximately RMB8,210,000 for
the disposal of investment property in the year ending
31 December 2023.

—E__FE®RE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

(BrIES AR BRIFMAEBUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

#HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December

20224 20214 20204 20194 20184

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

AREBTRE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

KA Revenue 208,048 167,045 121,620 134,757 176,857

LR, (E18) Operating profit/(loss) 20,441 1,532 (465) 6,855 54,128

AR (EE) Income tax expense/(credit) 762 (538) 455 2,980 10,593

FRHHE Profit for the year 22,604 4,711 2,419 8,079 48,054
FRARR B REEM Earnings per share attributable

FRAF to shareholders of the
(AAR¥ES3TR) Company for the year
(expressed in RMB cents)

— EXR#EE — Basic and diluted 17.66 3.68 1.89 6.31 37.54

EF =& Gross profit margin 22.82% 21.33% 24.88% 22.69% 38.67%

mEFEE(BEX) Operating profit/(loss) margin 9.83% 0.92% (0.38)% 5.09% 30.61%

# A = Net profit margin 10.86% 2.82% 1.99% 6.00% 2717%

®12A31H
As at 31 December

20224 20214 20204F 20194 20184

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ARBTRE ARETT ARBTT AREBTT ARETET

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

SEmMBEE Non-current assets 150,418 144,291 151,980 158,078 157,762

B EE Current assets 795,314 588,664 595,925 587,533 558,802

Uk IN=E Current liabilities 291,117 100,944 114,205 114,330 86,962

MENVE EFE Net current assets 504,197 487,720 481,720 473,203 471,840

BEERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 654,615 632,011 633,700 631,281 629,602

BEFE Net assets 654,615 632,011 633,700 631,281 629,602

(&N Capital 128,000 128,000 128,000 128,000 128,000

& Reserves 66,282 66,599 66,772 66,886 65,707

ik Total equity 654,615 632,011 633,700 631,281 629,602

08 msmrEnsRAERAS

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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